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$279,315,000
UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT

$160,230,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Series A

MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Principal Amount Interest Rate Yield CUSIP**

2/15/2022 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.270% 914233 W98
2/15/2023 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.380% 914233 X22
2/15/2024 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.430% 914233 X30
2/15/2025 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.460% 914233 X48
2/15/2026 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.600% 914233 X55
2/15/2027 $8,015,000 5.000% 0.710% 914233 X63
2/15/2028 $8,010,000 5.000% 0.870% 914233 X71
2/15/2029 $8,010,000 5.000% 1.020% 914233 X89
2/15/2030 $8,010,000 5.000% 1.110% 914233 X97
2/15/2031%* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.200% 914233 Y21
2/15/2032%* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.280% 914233 Y39
2/15/2033* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.330% 914233 Y47
2/15/2034* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.410% 914233 Y54
2/15/2035%* $8,010,000 4.000% 1.650% 914233 Y62
2/15/2036* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.490% 914233 Y70
2/15/2037* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.530% 914233 Y88
2/15/2038* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.570% 914233 Y96
2/15/2039%* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.610% 914233 720
2/15/2040%* $8,010,000 5.000% 1.650% 914233 738
2/15/2041% $7,180,000 5.000% 1.690% 914233 753
2/15/2041* $830,000 3.000% 2.090% 914233 Z46

$119,085,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Refunding Series A
MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Principal Amount Interest Rate Yield CUSIP**

2/15/2022 $12,350,000 5.000% 0.270% 914233 Z61
2/15/2023 $15,230,000 5.000% 0.380% 914233 Z79
2/15/2023 $1,850,000 2.000% 0.380% 914233 787
2/15/2024 $12,155,000 5.000% 0.430% 914233 795
2/15/2025 $10,095,000 5.000% 0.460% 914233 2A8
2/15/2025 $1,995,000 3.000% 0.460% 914233 2B6
2/15/2026 $11,975,000 5.000% 0.600% 914233 2C4
2/15/2027 $11,890,000 5.000% 0.710% 914233 2D2
2/15/2028 $11,795,000 5.000% 0.870% 914233 2E0
2/15/2029 $11,690,000 5.000% 1.020% 914233 2F7
2/15/2030 $5,185,000 5.000% 1.110% 914233 2H3
2/15/2030 $6,415,000 1.500% 1.110% 914233 2G5
2/15/2031%* $6,460,000 5.000% 1.200% 914233 2J9

Priced to the first optional call date of February 15, 2030 assuming redemption at par, but any such redemption shall be at the option of the
University.

Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP numbers have
been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with the University and are included solely for the convenience of the holders of the
2020 Bonds. The University is not responsible for the selection or use of these CUSIP numbers, does not undertake any responsibility for
their accuracy, and makes no representation as to their correctness on the 2020 Bonds or as indicated above. The CUSIP number for a
specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the 2020 Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not
limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other
similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the 2020 Bonds.



This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the University and the
purchasers or holders of any of the 2020 Bonds. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to
change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under
any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the University or the State
since the date hereof. Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether
or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. No representation is made that any
of such statements will be realized. All quotations from and summaries and explanations of provisions of laws of
the State contained in this Official Statement do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the official compilations thereof. All references to the 2020 Bonds, the Indentures and the resolutions
and proceedings of the University and the State Bond Commission relating thereto are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the definitive forms of the 2020 Bonds, the Indentures and such resolutions. This Official Statement is
submitted only in connection with the sale of the 2020 Bonds and may not be reproduced or used in whole or in part
for any other purpose, except as specifically authorized by the University and the State. No dealer, broker,
salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than as
contained in this Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be
relied upon. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall
there be any sale of the 2020 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make
such offer, solicitation or sale.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE 2020
BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
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CONTENTS OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT

This Official Statement of the University of Connecticut, including the cover page, inside cover page, Part I
and Part I, and the Appendices and Schedules thereto, is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information
relating to the University in connection with the sale of $279,315,000 aggregate principal amount of its 2020 Bonds.

Part I of this Official Statement, including the cover and inside cover page and the Appendices thereto,
contains information relating to the 2020 Bonds. Appendix I-A of this Official Statement contains certain
information concerning the University as of its date, except as otherwise provided therein. Part Il of this Official
Statement, including the Appendices thereto, is the most recent Annual Information Statement of the State and
contains certain information about the State as of its date and contains supplementary information as of the date
hereof. The cover page, inside cover page, Part I, Part II, and the Appendices and Schedules thereto should be read
collectively and in their entirety.

Specific information about the outbreak of COVID-19 and the University’s response and its effects on the
University’s finances and operations is included in “Global Health Emergency Risk” on page 2; “The University
Efforts to Mitigate the Impact of COVID 19” on page 1-A-(4); “University Budget (Storrs and Regional
Campuses) on page 1-A-(16) and “Fiscal Year 2021 Budget and the Anticipated Financial and Operational
Impact on UConn Health from Covid-19 on page I-A-(35). Information about the effect of COVID-19 on the
State’s finances and the State’s response is included in “COVID-19 Impact on General Fund” included in STATE
GENERAL FUND on page 11-33 and “COVID-19 Outbreak” included in COVID-19 AND OTHER MATTERS
on page II-107. Also see FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND BONDHOLDER
CONSIDERATIONS on page I-A (i) and on page II-8.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
relating to

$279,315,000
UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT

$160,230,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Series A
$119,085,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Refunding Series A

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Official Statement, including the cover page, the inside cover page, the appendices and
schedules attached hereto, is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information in connection
with the offering and sale of $160,230,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Series A (the “2020 Series A
Bonds”) and $119,085,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Refunding Series A (the “2020 Refunding
Series A Bonds” and, collectively with the 2020 Series A Bonds, the “2020 Bonds”) of the University of
Connecticut (the “University”). The 2020 Bonds are authorized pursuant to the University of Connecticut
2000 Act, Sections 10a-109a to 10a-109y inclusive of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of
1958 as amended (“the Act” or the “UConn 2000 Act”) and are authorized, issued and secured under the
provisions of a General Obligation Master Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 1995 (the “Master
Indenture”), as supplemented and amended by certain supplemental indentures, including the Twenty-
fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 1, 2019 (the “Twenty-fourth Supplemental
Indenture”) and the Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 2020 (the “Twenty-
seventh Supplemental Indenture”). The Master Indenture and supplements thereto, including the Twenty-
fourth Supplemental Indenture and the Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture, are collectively referred
to herein as the “Indentures.” All series of bonds issued under the Master Indenture are herein called the
“Bonds” or “General Obligation Bonds.” The Indentures were each approved by the Board of Trustees of
the University (the “Board”) and entered into with U. S. Bank National Association (successor to State
Street Bank and Trust Company and Fleet National Bank of Connecticut) of Hartford, Connecticut, as
Trustee thereunder.

The University is defined by the Act as a constituent unit of the state system of public higher
education which includes the University of Connecticut Health Center (the “UConn Health”). The Act
establishes the University as a body politic and corporate and instrumentality and agency of the State of
Connecticut (the “State”) and enables the University to borrow money in its own name on behalf of the
State for the purpose of providing sufficient funds for a special capital improvement program for the
University (the “UConn 2000 Infrastructure Improvement Program” or “UConn 2000). See “UCONN
2000 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM?” below.

The UConn 2000 Infrastructure Improvement Program established by the Act is designed to
modernize, rehabilitate and expand the physical plant of the University. The Act provides for a thirty-two
year capital budget program in three phases, estimated to cost $4,619,300,000. The Act was originally
adopted in 1995 to authorize and finance the UConn 2000 Phase I Projects and the UConn 2000 Phase II
Projects at University campuses not including UConn Health, and was amended in 2002 (the “21st
Century UConn Act”) to add the authorization and financing of UConn 2000 Phase III Projects which
included projects at UConn Health. In 2010, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed
P.A. 10-104 which increased the cost of certain UConn Health projects, authorized additional projects for
UConn Health and extended UConn 2000 for an additional two fiscal years to 2018. In 2011, the General
Assembly enacted and the Governor signed P.A. 11-75 which increased the estimated cost of two UConn
Health projects. In 2013, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed P.A. 13-233 (“Next
Generation Connecticut”) which authorized additional projects, increased the cost of certain projects,
increased the authorized funding amount for bonds secured by the State debt service commitment (the
“State Debt Service Commitment”) and extended UConn 2000 for an additional six fiscal years to 2024.



In 2017, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed PA 17-2 which extended UConn 2000
for an additional three fiscal years to 2027 but did not change the total aggregate amount which may be
authorized for UConn 2000 projects. In 2020, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed
PA 20-1 which revised the amounts of debt service commitment bonds that UConn could issue in years
2020-2027 inclusive, but did not change the aggregate amount of debt service commitment bonds that
could be issued.

The Act provides for a plan of financing UConn 2000 projects with $4,282,900,000 of general
obligation bonds of the University secured by the State Debt Service Commitment. See “NATURE OF
OBLIGATION AND SOURCES OF REPAYMENT” below. The balance of the estimated cost of
UConn 2000 projects which is not to be financed by the University’s Bonds secured by the State Debt
Service Commitment may be paid with the proceeds of special obligation bonds (“Special Obligation
Bonds”) of the University, general obligation bonds of the State (“State General Obligation Bonds™) or
with gifts or other revenue or borrowing resources of the University. See “UCONN 2000
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM?” below. As of the date of delivery of the 2020
Bonds, the University will have outstanding $1,686,150,000 of its General Obligation Bonds (including
the 2020 Bonds) secured by the State Debt Service Commitment, $200,915,000 of its Special Obligation
Bonds and $26,586,092 of its Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement, the proceeds of which have
funded or will fund UConn 2000 projects. See Appendix [-A, “UNIVERSITY FINANCES - University
Indebtedness.”

The 2020 Series A Bonds represent the thirty-fourth series of General Obligation Bonds being
issued pursuant to the Act and the Master Indenture (including eleven series of refunding bonds) and it is
the first series of bonds issued pursuant to the Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture. On June 24,
2020, the University’s Board of Trustees approved the Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture and
submitted it to the Governor on July 13, 2020. The Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture was deemed
approved by the Governor on August 13, 2020 authorizing the issuance of General Obligation Bonds in
the maximum amount of $260,000,000 plus amounts which were unissued and carried forward from
previous supplemental indentures. To date, (i) $3,803,600,000 of General Obligation Bonds have been
authorized to be issued for UConn 2000 projects pursuant to the Indentures; (ii) $3,544,000,000,
consisting of the aggregate principal amount of such General Obligation Bonds issued to date, minus
amounts to finance costs of issuance and plus a portion of the original issue premium of certain of the
Bonds, has been deposited to the Construction Account for UConn 2000 projects; and (iii) $259,600,000
remains authorized to be issued for UConn 2000 projects following the issuance of the 2020 Series A
Bonds. See “UCONN 2000 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM.”

The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds represent the thirty-fifth series of General Obligation Bonds
being issued pursuant to the Act, the Master Indenture (and the twelfth series of refunding bonds) and the
second series of bonds issued pursuant to the Twenty-fourth Supplemental Indenture. See “PLAN OF
REFINANCING” herein.

All references herein to the Act, the Indentures and the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the definitive documents. Capitalized terms have the meaning given to them in this Official
Statement, including Appendix I-C of Part I hereof.

GLOBAL HEALTH EMERGENCY RISK
Consideration for Bondholders

In making an investment decision with respect to the Bonds, investors should consider carefully
the information in this Official Statement, including the following.



The COVID-19 Outbreak

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization proclaimed COVID-19 to be a public health
emergency of international concern and on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared
COVID-19 to be a national emergency. The ongoing impact of COVID-19 has materially affected state,
national, and global economic activity; and increased public health emergency response costs. Many
states and municipalities have taken measures to contain the spread of COVID-19 that are having
negative effects on global and local economies. In addition, businesses and people have altered behaviors
in manners that are negatively affecting the economy.

As a result of the COVID-19 global pandemic, the University faces tremendous budgetary
uncertainty for Fiscal Year 2021. In particular, operating revenues for Storrs and the regional campuses
will very much depend on the University’s ability to remain open for in-person instruction on all
campuses, maintain enrollment, and maintain occupancy in the housing and dining programs. As of the
date of this Official Statement, the Fiscal Year 2021 budget forecasts for Storrs and the regional campuses
includes $1,441.9 million in expenditures and $1,434.4 million of revenue, yielding a net loss of $7.5
million. Operating revenues for UConn Health depend on its remaining open for elective procedures and
on patients continuing to seek out such services. As of the date of this Official Statement, the Fiscal Year
2021 budget forecasts for UConn Health includes $1,290.8 million in expenditures and $1,175.9 million
of revenue, yielding a net loss of $114.9 million. The University will continue to seek external support as
well as reduce expenses to mitigate these “expected” or “forecasted” losses. However, there can be no
assurances that COVID-19 will not materially adversely impact the financial condition of the University,
including the University’s credit ratings in the future. For further information concerning the University’s
finances and the University’s response to COVID-19, see APPENDIX I- A “The University Efforts to
Mitigate the Impact of COVID 19” on page 1-A-(4); “University Budget (Storrs and Regional
Campuses) on page [-A-(16) and “Fiscal Year 2021 Budget and the Anticipated Financial and
Operational Impact on UConn Health from Covid-19 on page I-A-(35). See also FORWARD-
LOOKING INFORMATION AND BONDHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS on page I-A-(i).

For information concerning the State’s finances and the State’s response, see “COVID-19 Impact
on General Fund” included in STATE GENERAL FUND on page 11-33 and “COVID-19 Outbreak”
included in COVID-19 AND OTHER MATTERS on page 1I-107. See also FORWARD-LOOKING
INFORMATION AND BONDHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS on page I1-8.

NATURE OF OBLIGATION AND SOURCE OF REPAYMENT
In General

The Bonds (including the 2020 Bonds) are general obligations of the University for the payment
of which, in accordance with their terms, the full faith and credit of the University are pledged. The 2020
Bonds are additionally secured by the pledge of and a lien upon the State Debt Service Commitment.

Full Faith and Credit of the University

The 2020 Bonds are general obligations of the University for which its full faith and credit are
pledged and are payable from all Assured Revenues. Assured Revenues, as more particularly defined by
the Act and Master Indenture, include general revenues from fees, tuition and other like charges, grants
and gifts, all to the extent not otherwise pledged, as well as annual State appropriations for operating
expenses and the annual amounts of the State Debt Service Commitment. Assured Revenues do not
include patient revenues or any other revenues derived from clinical operations of the University.

Under the Master Indenture, the University has reserved the right and expects to issue Additional

Bonds to finance UConn 2000 projects secured by the State Debt Service Commitment upon the terms
and conditions set forth therein (See Appendix [-B, “EXCERPTS FROM THE GENERAL
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OBLIGATION MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST”). The Act currently limits the maximum amount
of Bonds so secured by the State Debt Service Commitment to $4,282,900,000, exclusive of any amounts
borrowed to refund Bonds, plus amounts necessary to finance Costs of Issuance on each Series of Bonds.

Pursuant to the Act, upon the issuance of Additional Bonds, securities of the University shall be
conclusively presumed to be fully and duly authorized and issued under the laws of the State, and any
person shall be estopped from questioning their authorization, sale, issuance, execution or delivery. Any
pledge made by the University shall be deemed a statutory lien which shall be valid and binding from the
time when the pledge is made against all parties having claims against the University. Neither the Act,
the Indentures or resolution, nor any other instrument by which a pledge is created need be recorded. Any
revenues or other receipts, funds, moneys so pledged and thereafter received by the University shall be
subject immediately to the lien of the pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act and such
lien shall have priority over all other liens. See Appendix I-B, “EXCERPTS FROM THE GENERAL
OBLIGATION MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST.”

The covenants of the University with respect to the Bonds are set forth in the Master Indenture.
The Act provides for, and the Master Indenture includes, remedies available to the Trustee for protection
and enforcement of any and all rights granted under the financing provisions of the Act, including by
mandamus to enforce and compel performance of any duty required to be performed by any officer of the
State mentioned in said provisions (including the Treasurer) and the University. See Appendix I-B,
“EXCERPTS FROM THE GENERAL OBLIGATION MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST.”

As required by the Act, the form of the Master Indenture for the Bonds issued to finance the
UConn 2000 Phase I Projects and the UConn 2000 Phase II Projects secured by the State Debt Service
Commitment was approved by the State Bond Commission on December 21, 1995. After the enactment
of the 21st Century UConn Act, the Master Indenture was amended to provide for the financing of UConn
2000 Phase III Projects. As required by the Act, the form of the conformed Master Indenture was
approved by the State Bond Commission on December 19, 2003.

As required by the Act, the Board of Trustees’ resolution approving each Supplemental Indenture
for the issuance of Bonds must be submitted to the Governor. The Governor may, not later than thirty
(30) days after such submission, disapprove the same by notifying the Board of Trustees of such
disapproval and the reasons for it. If the Governor does not act within thirty (30) days, the resolution is
deemed approved. The resolution approving the issuance of general obligation bonds and the Twenty-
seventh Supplemental Indenture was submitted to the Governor on July 13, 2020 and was deemed
approved by the Governor on August 13, 2020. The resolution approving the issuance of refunding bonds
and the Twenty-fourth Supplemental Indenture was submitted to the Governor on August 3, 2017 and
approved by the Governor on August 25, 2017. The Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture authorized
the issuance of general obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $260,000,000 for Fiscal Year 2020-
2021 and carried forward $199,600,000 of bond authorization from the Twenty-sixth Supplemental
Indenture which remained unissued, thus increasing the amount of general obligation bonds authorized by
the Twenty-seventh Supplemental Indenture to $459,600,000 of which $259,600,000 will be authorized
and unissued following the issuance of the 2020 Series A Bonds.

Pursuant to the Act, the Bonds, including the 2020 Bonds, do not constitute a debt or liability of
the State or any municipality thereof and neither the faith and credit nor taxing power of the State or any
municipality is pledged to the payment of principal of or interest on the 2020 Bonds. The issuance of the
2020 Bonds by the University does not obligate the State or any municipality or political subdivision to
levy or pledge any form of taxation to the payment of principal of or interest on the 2020 Bonds. The
University has no taxing power.

Pursuant to PA 17-2, any calculation under Section 3-21 in connection with the State
indebtedness does not include any general obligation bonds issued to finance UConn 2000.



The University under the Master Indenture has reserved the right to pledge and place a lien upon
particular Assured Revenues, other than the State Debt Service Commitment, to secure obligations, other
than the Bonds secured by the State Debt Service Commitment, issued to finance UConn 2000 or other
University projects. See Appendix I-B, “EXCERPTS FROM THE GENERAL OBLIGATION MASTER
INDENTURE OF TRUST.”

State Debt Service Commitment

The State Debt Service Commitment is defined by the Act and the Indentures as the commitment
by the State to pay an annual amount for the punctual payment of Special Debt Service Requirements on
securities issued as general obligations of the University, as the same shall arise and shall become due and
payable. Special Debt Service Requirements include, among other things, the principal on serial Bonds or
sinking fund installments on term Bonds (the “Principal Installments™) and interest accruing thereon.

As part of the contract of the State with the holders of the Bonds, including the 2020 Bonds, the
Act provides that appropriation of all amounts of the State Debt Service Commitment shall be made out
of the resources of the General Fund of the State and that the Treasurer of the State (the “Treasurer”) shall
pay such amount in each fiscal year to the paying agent on the Bonds so secured or otherwise as the
Treasurer shall provide. The Master Indenture provides for such amount to be deposited by the Treasurer
directly to the Trustee for deposit into the Debt Service Fund on or before the Interest Payment Date with
respect to interest, and the Principal Installment Date with respect to principal or sinking fund
installments, on any Bonds.

In the opinions of Bond Counsel and Co-Bond Counsel, the State has validly appropriated all
amounts of the State Debt Service Commitment and the Treasurer has the duty and is validly mandated
and obligated to pay such amounts to the Trustee, and such appropriation and mandate and obligation of
payment do not require further legislative approval.

The Master Indenture provides that the Bonds shall be secured by the pledge of and a lien upon
the Trust Estate which includes the proceeds of the Bonds, the Debt Service Fund (including moneys on
deposit in or payable thereto) and the Redemption Fund. The Indentures provide for the pledge of and a
lien upon the State Debt Service Commitment.

The University, consistent with the Act, is relying upon the receipt of the annual amount of the
pledged State Debt Service Commitment for the payment of the 2020 Bonds and, accordingly, is not
planning to budget any of the other Assured Revenues for the payment of the Bonds, including the 2020
Bonds.

State Covenants

Pursuant to the Act, the State covenants with holders of any securities issued under the Act, in
consideration of the acceptance of and payment for the securities until the securities, together with the
interest thereon, with interest on any unpaid installment of interest and all costs and expenses in
connection with any action or proceeding on behalf of the owners, are fully met and discharged or unless
expressly permitted or otherwise authorized by the terms of each contract and agreement made or entered
into by or on behalf of the University with or for the benefit of such owners, that the State: (1) will not
create or cause to be created any lien or charge on the assets or revenues pledged to secure such securities,
other than a lien or pledge created thereon pursuant to the Act; and (2) will not in any way impair the
rights, exemptions or remedies of the owners. In addition, pursuant to the Act, the State covenants and
the University is authorized to include and has included the following State covenant in the Master
Indenture as a contract of the State that the State will not limit or alter the rights vested in the University
by the Master Indenture and the Act until the Bonds, together with the interest thereon, are fully met and
discharged and such contracts (the Master Indenture and the Bonds) are fully performed on the part of the
University; provided nothing in the Act shall preclude such limitation or alteration if and when adequate
provision shall be made by law for the protection of the holders of such Bonds of the University.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 SERIES A BONDS
In General

The 2020 Series A Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds, in book-entry-only form (as
described herein), in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The 2020 Series A Bonds

The 2020 Series A Bonds will be dated the date of delivery, will bear interest at the rates per
annum and will mature on the dates and in the amounts as set forth on the inside cover page of this
Official Statement. Interest on the 2020 Series A Bonds will be paid semiannually on February 15 and
August 15 in each year, commencing on February 15, 2021. Interest will be calculated on the basis of a
360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be paid to the person in whose name the Bond is
registered as of the close of business on the last day of January and July in each year, or the preceding
business day if such last day is not a business day.

Principal of and interest on the 2020 Series A Bonds will be paid directly to The Depository Trust
Company (“DTC”) by U. S. Bank National Association, Hartford, Connecticut, as Paying Agent, so long
as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner. See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.”

Optional Redemption. The 2020 Series A Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2031 will be
subject to redemption prior to their maturity, at the election of the University upon the direction of the
Treasurer at any time, on or after February 15, 2030, in whole or in part on any date (each herein the
“Redemption Date”) from time to time, and in such maturity or maturities (but by lot within a maturity
among bonds bearing the same interest rate) as the Treasurer shall determine, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with interest accrued and unpaid on the Redemption
Date.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) nor more
than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date, by first-class mail, to the registered owner of such bond
at such Bondowner’s address as it appears on the books of registry or at such address as may have been
filed with the registrar for that purpose. So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered
owner of the 2020 Series A Bonds, all notices of redemption will be sent only to DTC.

DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 REFUNDING SERIES A BONDS
In General

The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds, in book-entry-
only form (as described herein), in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds

The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds will be dated the date of delivery, will bear interest at the
rates per annum and will mature on the dates and in the amounts as set forth on the inside cover page of
this Official Statement. Interest on the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds will be paid semiannually on
February 15 and August 15 in each year, commencing on February 15, 2021. Interest will be calculated
on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be paid to the person in whose name the
Bond is registered as of the close of business on the last day of January and July in each year, or the
preceding business day if such last day is not a business day.

Optional Redemption. The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds maturing on February 15, 2031 will

be subject to redemption prior to their maturity, at the election of the University upon the direction of the
Treasurer at any time, on or after February 15, 2030, in whole or in part on any date (each herein the
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“Redemption Date”) from time to time, and in such maturity or maturities (but by lot within a maturity
among bonds bearing the same interest rate) as the Treasurer shall determine, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with interest accrued and unpaid on the Redemption
Date.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) nor more
than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date, by first-class mail, to the registered owner of such bond
at such Bondowner’s address as it appears on the books of registry or at such address as may have been
filed with the registrar for that purpose. So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered
owner of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds, all notices of redemption will be sent only to DTC.

Principal of and interest on the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds will be paid directly to DTC by
U. S. Bank National Association, Hartford, Connecticut, as Paying Agent, so long as DTC or its nominee,
Cede & Co., is the Bondowner. See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.”

PLAN OF REFUNDING

The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds are being issued to currently refund all or a portion of
selected maturities of the University of Connecticut General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series A (the “2010
Refunded Bonds”), the University of Connecticut General Obligation Bonds, 2011 Series A (the “2011
Bonds”) and the University of Connecticut General Obligation Bonds, 2011 Refunding Series A (the
“2011 Refunding Bonds” and together with the 2011 Bonds, the “2011 Refunded Bonds” and collectively
with the 2010 Refunded Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”). The University and the Treasurer reserve the
right to refund all, a portion or none of the Refunded Bonds. The refunding of the Refunded Bonds is
contingent upon delivery of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds.

Refunded Bonds

Maturity Principal Call Call

Bond Date Amount Coupon Date Price
2010 Series A 2/15/2022 $370,000.00 4.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2022 $4,485,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2023 $445,000.00 4.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2023 $4,410,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2024 $4,855,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2025 $740,000.00 3.500% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2025 $4,115,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2026 $670,000.00 4.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2026 $4,185,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2027 $4,855,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2028 $4,855,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2029 $1,050,000.00 3.750% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2029 $3,805,000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2030 $630,000.00 3.800% 12/17/2020 100.000
2010 Series A 2/15/2030 $4.225.000.00 5.000% 12/17/2020 100.000

Total Refunded $43,695,000.00

Bonds



Maturity Principal Call Call

Bond Date Amount Coupon Date Price
2011 Series A 2/15/2022 $380,000.00 3.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2022 $8,605,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2023 $8,985,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2024 $795,000.00 3.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2024 $8,190,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2025 $8,985,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2026 $475,000.00 3.750% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2026 $8,510,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2027 $8,985,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2028 $8,985,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2029 $8,985,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2030 $3,625,000.00 3.750% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2030 $5,360,000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
2011 Series A 2/15/2031 $8.985.000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
Total Refunded $89.,850,000.00
Bonds
Maturity Principal Call Call
Bond Date Amount Coupon Date Price
2011 Refunding
Series A 2/15/2023 $4.795.000.00 5.000% 2/15/2021 100.000
Total Refunded $4,795,000.00
Bonds

Total of all Refunded Bonds  $138,340,000.00

Upon delivery of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds, a portion of the proceeds of the 2020
Refunding Series A Bonds will be deposited in the Redemption Fund pursuant to the Indenture. From the
Redemption Fund (i) a portion of such proceeds in the amount of $44,419,583.42 will be transferred to
the Paying Agent for the 2010 Refunded Bonds to pay the principal of and accrued interest on the 2010
Refunded Bonds and (ii) the remaining portion of such proceeds will be transferred and placed in escrow
with U.S. Bank National Association (the “Escrow Agent”), under an Escrow Deposit Agreement (the
“Escrow Deposit Agreement”) to be dated December 17, 2020 between the Escrow Agent and the
University. The Escrow Agent will deposit in an irrevocable trust fund called the Escrow Deposit Fund
(the “Escrow Deposit Fund”) $96,964,186.41. $96,964,186.00 of the net proceeds of the 2020 Refunding
Series A Bonds, which will be used to purchase (i) non-callable direct obligations of the United States of
America, (ii) non-callable obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, including State and
Local Government Series Securities or (iii) certificates that evidence ownership of the right to payments
of principal or interest on obligations described in (i) or (ii) above (the “Government Obligations”), the
principal of and interest on which, when due, along with the uninvested cash amounts of $0.41, will
provide amounts sufficient to meet principal, interest payments and redemption prices on the 2011
Refunded Bonds on the dates such payments are due. All investment income on and maturing principal
of the Government Obligations held in the Escrow Deposit Fund and needed to pay the principal and
premium of, and interest on the Refunded Bonds will be irrevocably deposited by the University in the
Escrow Deposit Fund for payment of the Refunded Bonds.



SOURCES AND USES OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2020 BONDS

The University expects to apply the proceeds from the sale of the 2020 Bonds as follows:

Sources
Par Amount of the 2020 Series A BONAS........ccccuvvviiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeas $160,230,000.00
Par Amount of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds.........cccccveeevvevreevieenieennnenne. 119,085,000.00
Net Original Issuance Premium of the 2020 Series A Bonds........cccceccevenenee 40,764,901.35
Net Original Issuance Premium of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds.......... 22.936,136.80
TOLAl SOUICES ....vivieeieieienieiieteete ettt ettt sttt et seeseeseesessessesseneensenens $343,016,038.15
Uses
CONSIIUCTION ACCOUNT.......cciureieeeirrieeeeeirieeeeeireeeeeetreeeeeteeeeeeiareeeeeareeeeeeareeeeeenneas $200,000,000.00
Deposit to Redemption Fund...........cccoeviiiiiiiiciiiniieceeeeeceeee e 141,383,769.83
Costs of Issuance Account for 2020 Series A Bonds ........ccoovevvvvvviveivnveeeennnnn. 259,150.03
Costs of Issuance Account for 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds ...................... 194,020.34
Underwriters’ Discount for 2020 Series A Bonds..........ccooovvvvivviiiiiiiiiiiineennne.. 735,751.32
Underwriters’ Discount for 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds..........ccceevveneenee. 443,346.63
TOLAl USES vttt sttt ettt ettt b et et e e eneenes $343,016,038.15

Pursuant to the Master Indenture, amounts in the Construction Account may be invested by the
Trustee at the direction of the University with the consent of the Treasurer, and amounts in the Costs of
Issuance Accounts may be invested by the Treasurer, in such Investment Obligations as permitted by the
Master Indenture and paragraph (f) of Section 3-20 of the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended.
Amounts deposited to the Redemption Fund shall be used to refund the 2010 Refunded Bonds and to fund
an irrevocable escrow to refund the 2011 Refunded Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Escrow Deposit
Agreement.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

Unless otherwise noted, the description which follows of the procedures and record-keeping with
respect to beneficial ownership interests in the 2020 Bonds, payment of interest and other payments on
the 2020 Bonds to DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined) or Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter
defined) of the 2020 Bonds, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interests in the 2020 Bonds
and other bond-related transactions by and between DTC (as hereinafter defined), the DTC Participants
and Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds is based solely on information provided on the DTC’s website
and presumed to be reliable. Accordingly, the University, the State and the Trustee do not and cannot
make any representation concerning these matters.

NEITHER THE UNIVERSITY, THE TRUSTEE NOR THE STATE WILL HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO SUCH DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT
TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR SUCH DTC PARTICIPANTS,
INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS. PAYMENTS MADE TO DTC OR
ITS NOMINEE SHALL SATISFY THE UNIVERSITY’S AND THE STATE’S OBLIGATION UNDER
THE ACT AND THE INDENTURES TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PAYMENTS.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the
2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede
& Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. One fully-registered 2020 Series A Bond certificate and one 2020 Refunding
Series A Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the 2020 Series A Bonds and the 2020
Refunding Series A Bonds, respectively, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and
will be deposited with DTC.



DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial
Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and
non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over
100 countries) that DTC’s participants (‘“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the
post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust
& Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.
DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to
others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either
directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of the 2020 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the 2020 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of
each actual purchaser of each 2020 Bond (“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and
Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
2020 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in the 2020 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for a series
of the 2020 Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2020 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2020 Bonds with DTC and their
registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds; DTC’s records
reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 2020 Bonds are credited, which
may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible
for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of 2020 Bonds may wish to take
certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 2020
Bonds, such as redemptions, defaults and proposed amendments to bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of 2020 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2020 Bonds for
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Trustee and request that copies of notices
be provided directly to them.
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Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the 2020 Series A Bonds within a
maturity of the 2020 Series A Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the
amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
the 2020 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.
Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Trustee as soon as possible after the
record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct
Participants to whose accounts the 2020 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing
attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal, interest and redemption prices on the 2020 Bonds will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice
is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail
information from the Trustee on a payment date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on
DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee,
the Paying Agent, the University or the State, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may
be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal, interest and redemption prices, if any, to Cede &
Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC)is the
responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the 2020 Bonds at any
time by giving reasonable notice to the University or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the
event that a successor depository is not obtained, 2020 Bond certificates are required to be printed and
delivered.

The University may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, 2020 Bond certificates will be printed and
delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained
from sources that the University believes to be reliable, but the University takes no responsibility for the
accuracy thereof.

DTC PRACTICES

The University can make no assurances that DTC, DTC Participants, Indirect Participants or
other nominees of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will act in a manner described in this Official
Statement. DTC and its Participants are required to act according to rules and procedures established by
DTC and its Participants which are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The University, the State, the Trustee and the Paying Agent may treat DTC (or its nominee) as
the sole and exclusive registered owner of the 2020 Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of
payment of the principal and redemption premium, if any, of, or interest on, the 2020 Bonds, giving any
notice permitted or required to be given to registered owners under the Indentures, registering the transfer
of the 2020 Bonds, or other action to be taken by registered owners and for all other purposes whatsoever.
The University, the State, the Trustee and the Paying Agent shall not have any responsibility or obligation
to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the 2020 Bonds under or
through DTC or any Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration books of the
University (kept by the Trustee) as being a registered owner, with respect to the accuracy of any records
maintained by DTC or any Participant; the payment by DTC or any Participant of any amount in respect
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of the principal, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the 2020 Bonds; any notice which is permitted
or required to be given to registered owners thereunder or under the conditions to transfers or exchanges
adopted by the University; or other action taken by DTC as registered owner. Interest, redemption
premium, if any, and principal will be paid by the Trustee to DTC, or its nominee. Disbursement of such
payments to the Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the
Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the Participants or the Indirect Participants.

For every transfer and exchange of beneficial ownership of any of the 2020 Bonds, a Beneficial
Owner may be charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be
imposed in relation thereto.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the 2020 Bonds, as nominee for DTC,
references herein to the Bondholders or registered owners of the 2020 Bonds (other than under the
captions “Tax Matters” and “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking” herein) shall mean Cede & Co., as
aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s practices has been obtained from
sources that the University believes to be reliable, but none of the University, the State nor the Trustee
take any responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Effect of Discontinuance of Book-Entry System. The following procedures shall apply if the
book-entry system is discontinued with respect to the 2020 Bonds.

Principal and Interest Payments. Principal of the 2020 Bonds will be payable at the corporate
trust office of the Trustee in Hartford, Connecticut, and interest on the 2020 Bonds will be payable to the
registered owner thereof on each interest payment date by check mailed to such registered owner at the
address shown on the bond register maintained by the Trustee, or on the special record date established
for the payment of defaulted interest. However, registered owners of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate
principal amount of 2020 Bonds may be paid interest by wire transfer upon written request filed with the
Trustee on or before the Record Date for the applicable interest payment date.

Registration and Transfer. The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept, at its corporate office in
Hartford, Connecticut, sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the 2020 Bonds, and, upon
presentation of 2020 Bonds for each purpose, the Trustee shall, under such reasonable regulations as it
may prescribe, register or transfer, or cause to be registered or transferred, on such books such 2020
Bonds. Any 2020 Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred upon such books by the person
in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such
registered 2020 Bond for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of transfer
executed in a form approved by the Trustee. Whenever any 2020 Bond shall be surrendered for transfer,
the University shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new 2020 Bond and maturity
and for a like aggregate principal amount. The Trustee is not required to transfer or exchange any 2020
Bond during the period fifteen (15) days before the mailing of a notice of redemption. The Trustee shall
require the Bondholder requesting such transfer or exchange to pay any tax or other governmental charge
required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange and may require the payment of any
reasonable sum to cover expenses incurred by the Trustee or University in connection with such
exchange.

UCONN 2000 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
Introduction
The UConn 2000 Infrastructure Improvement Program established by the Act is designed to
modernize, rehabilitate and expand the physical plant of the University. The Act provides for a thirty-two

year capital budget program in three phases, estimated to cost $4,619,300,000. The Act was originally
adopted in 1995 to authorize and finance the UConn 2000 Phase I Projects and the UConn 2000 Phase II
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Projects at University campuses not including UConn Health, and was amended in 2002 by the 21st
Century UConn Act to add the authorization and financing of UConn 2000 Phase III Projects which
included projects at UConn Health. In 2010, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed
P.A. 10-104, which increased the cost of certain UConn Health projects, authorized additional projects for
UConn Health and extended UConn 2000 for an additional two fiscal years to 2018. In 2011, the General
Assembly enacted and the Governor signed P.A. 11-75 which increased the estimated cost of two UConn
Health projects. In 2013, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed P.A. 13-233, Next
Generation Connecticut, which authorized additional projects, increased the cost of certain projects,
increased the authorized funding amount for bonds secured by the State debt service commitment and
extended UConn 2000 for an additional six fiscal years to 2024. In 2017, the General Assembly enacted
and the Governor signed PA 17-2 which extended UConn 2000 for an additional three fiscal years to
2027 but did not increase the total amount which may be authorized by the Board of Trustees for the
UConn 2000 projects. In 2020, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed PA 20-1 which
reallocated the amounts of debt service commitment bonds that UConn could issue in years 2020-2027
inclusive, but did not change the aggregate amount of debt service commitment bonds that could be
issued.

UConn 2000 is to be funded in part by the issuance of $4,282,900,000 of general obligation
bonds of the University secured by the State Debt Service Commitment. See “NATURE OF
OBLIGATION AND SOURCE OF REPAYMENT.” Of this amount, $3,544,000,000, consisting of the
aggregate principal amount of such general obligation bonds issued to date, plus a portion of the original
issue premium minus costs of issuance, has been deposited to the Construction Account for UConn 2000
projects, including the 2020 Bonds to fund UConn 2000 projects. The balance of the estimated cost of
UConn 2000 projects which is not to be financed by the University’s Bonds secured by the State Debt
Service Commitment may be funded by the issuance of the University’s Special Obligation Bonds, other
University Debt Obligations, State General Obligation Bonds or by gifts or other revenue or borrowing
resources of the University.

As of the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, the University has issued the following General
Obligation Bonds, Special Obligation Bonds, Governmental Lease Purchase Agreements and a
Promissory Note pursuant to the UConn 2000 Act in an aggregate par amount of $4,812,638,860 of which
$1,913,651,092 is currently outstanding including the 2020 Bonds. For details of outstanding UConn
2000 debt see Appendix I-A, “UNIVERSITY FINANCES — University Indebtedness.”

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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UCONN 2000 DEBT OBLIGATIONS

A. UConn 2000 General Obligation Bonds — Issued Amounts

1996 Series A Bonds
1997 Series A Bonds
1998 Series A Bonds
1999 Series A Bonds
2000 Series A Bonds
2001 Series A Bonds
2002 Series A Bonds
2003 Series A Bonds
2004 Series A Bonds
2005 Series A Bonds
2006 Series A Bonds
2007 Series A Bonds
2009 Series A Bonds
2010 Series A Bonds
2011 Series A Bonds
2013 Series A Bonds
2014 Series A Bonds
2015 Series A Bonds
2016 Series A Bonds
2017 Series A Bonds
2018 Series A Bonds
2019 Series A Bonds
2020 Series A Bonds
Total?

2004 Series A Refunding Bonds
2006 Series A Refunding Bonds
2007 Series A Refunding Bonds
2010 Series A Refunding Bonds
2011 Series A Refunding Bonds
2013 Series A Refunding Bonds
2014 Series A Refunding Bonds
2015 Series A Refunding Bonds
2016 Series A Refunding Bonds
2017 Series A Refunding Bonds
2019 Series A Refunding Bonds
2020 Series A Refunding Bonds
Total?

Issue Date

2/21/1996
4/24/1997
6/24/1998
4/08/1999
3/29/2000
4/11/2001
4/18/2002
3/26/2003
1/22/2004
3/16/2005
3/15/2006
4/12/2007
4/16/2009
5/25/2010
12/8/2011
7/31/2013
4/22/2014
4/16/2015
4/21/2016
1/19/2017
5/3/2018
5/8/2019
12/17/2020

Issue Date
1/29/2004
3/15/2006
4/12/2007
5/25/2010
12/8/2011
7/31/2013
4/22/2014
4/16/2015
4/21/2016
1/19/2017
5/8/2019
12/17/2020

B. UConn 2000 Special Obligation Bonds — Issued Amounts

1998 Series A Bonds
2000 Series A Bonds
2002 Series A Bonds
2018 Series A Bonds
Total?

2002 Series A Refunding Bonds
2010 Series A Refunding Bonds
2012 Series A Refunding Bonds
Total?

Issue Date
2/04/1998
6/01/2000
2/14/2002
3/29/2018

Issue Date
2/27/2002
6/16/2010

12/13/2012

C. Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement

Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement
Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement

Total?
D. Note

Amended and Restated Promissory Note

Total®

Original Par Amount (OID)/OIP! Construction Account Deposit
$83,929,715 $(274,931) $82,606,220
124,392,432 (2,319,590) 121,080,861

99,520,000 634,629 99,280,000
79,735,000 (45,210) 79,032,919
130,850,000 (120,981) 130,000,000
100,000,000 1,141,140 100,000,000
100,000,000 1,706,295 100,000,000
96,210,000 4,623,183 100,000,000
97,845,000 2,816,971 100,000,000
98,110,000 3,004,101 100,000,000
77,145,000 2,612,437 79,000,000
89,355,000 431,004 89,000,000
144,855,000 6,312,563 150,000,000
97,115,000 8,733,758 105,000,000
179,730,000 21,613,069 200,000,000
172,660,000 17,685,693 189,000,000
109,050,000 11,792,198 120,000,000
220,165,000 31,273,159 250,000,000
261,510,000 40,055,804 300,000,000
311,200,000 40,676,400 350,000,000
276,075,000 25,628,525 300,000,000
174,785,000 26,356,777 200,000,000
160,230,000 40,764,901 200,000,000
$3,284,467,147 $285,101,893 $3,544,000,000

Original Par Amount (OID)/OIP' Deposit to Redemption Fund?

$216,950,000 $27,144,300 $247,794,279
61,020,000 5,103,655 65,472,900
46,030,000 3,897,620 49,505,477
36,095,000 2,903,755 38,704,429
31,905,000 5,183,727 36,841,566
51,250,000 7,374,396 58,228,911
92,940,000 7,044,682 99,513,683
34,625,000 5,860,522 40,279,496
80,425,000 10,437,499 90,481,693
33,950,000 3,165,137 36,960,192
64,680,000 8,496,052 72,813,086
119,085,000 22.936.137 141,383,770
$868,955,000 $109,547,483 $977,979,482
Original Par Amount (OID)/OIP! Construction Account Deposit
$33,560,000 $(888,481) $30,000,000
89,570,000 (1,159,469) 87,000,000
75,430,000 287,983 72,180,000
141,725,000 16,710,803 152,000,000
$340,285,000 $14,950,836 $341,180,000
Original Par Amount (OID)/OIP! Deposit to Redemption Fund?
$96,130,000 $1,747,947 $96,830,821
47,545,000 4,618,962 51,812,926
87.980.000 20.655.986 107,670,292
$231,655,000 $27,022,895 $256,314,039
Issue Date Original Par Amount Project Costs
12/18/2003 $75,000,000 $75,000,000
08/15/2005 6,900,000 6,900,000
$81,900,000 $81,900,000
Issue Date Original Par Amount Project Costs
7/1/2015 $5.376,713 $5.376,713
$5,376,713 $5,376,713
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I Net OIP and Accrued Interest, if any, may be used to fund the Construction Account or Redemption Fund and to pay for Costs of
Issuance.

2 Totals may not sum due to rounding.

3 Reflects Bond proceeds deposited to Redemption Fund; total deposits to the Trustee to be held in an Escrow Deposit Fund may include
other funds.

The Act

Powers. The Act enables the University to borrow money and enter into financing transactions in
its own name and expands the authority of the University to supervise directly construction of its projects
including all UConn 2000 projects. In order for the University to construct the UConn 2000 Projects and
issue securities for UConn 2000, the Act, among other things, provides the University with the following
powers: (a) to have perpetual succession as a body politic and corporate and an instrumentality and
agency of the State; (b) to contract, to sue, to be indemnified, and to defend any action; (c) to indemnify
parties and to be sued by the holders of its securities on an express contract; (d) to retain or employ
architects, accountants, engineers, legal and securities counsel; (e) to plan, acquire, construct, renovate,
equip, own, operate, maintain, dispose of and demolish any project; (f) to acquire, hold or dispose of any
interest in real or personal property and to hold, sell, assign, lease, rent or encumber, other than by
mortgage, any such interest; (g) to receive money from federal and state governments or others; and (h) to
fix and collect fees, tuition, charges, rentals and other charges for enrollment and attendance at and use of
the University.

The University may revise, delete and add projects to the list of UConn 2000 projects, provided a
material addition or deletion must be approved by a legislative act of the General Assembly of
Connecticut. No revision, addition or deletion can reduce the amount of the State Debt Service
Commitment. The University may determine the sequencing and timing of projects, revise estimates of
cost and reallocate funds among projects, all in accordance with the Act.

The Act provides that the principal amount of the securities authorized to be issued for a project
is deemed an appropriation and allocation of such amount for such project and approval by the Governor
is deemed the allotment by the Governor of such capital outlays. Upon such approval, the University may
award contracts, and issue and sell securities respecting expenditures under such contracts which will be
paid within the year following issuance of such securities and to provide for costs of UConn 2000 of not
more than twenty percent in excess of such expenditures. Certain Costs of Issuance may be added to the
amount of securities so issued.

Rate Covenant. The Act contains a rate covenant for the benefit of bondholders and the State
wherein the University agrees to charge and collect and increase from time to time, tuition, fees and
charges for services provided by the University, which together with other Assured Revenues, such as
those from the Minimum State Operating Provision and the State Debt Service Commitment, shall be
sufficient to permit the University to operate and maintain itself as an institution dedicated to excellence
in higher education, to operate and maintain the physical University plant in sound operating condition
and to cover the Special Debt Service Requirements on Outstanding Bonds. See Appendix I-B,
“EXCERPTS FROM THE GENERAL OBLIGATION MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST.”

Minimum State Operating Provision. Pursuant to the Act, the State commits to appropriate,
annually, an amount for operations of the University, after consideration of other amounts available to the
University for its operations, which amount shall be consistent with the University (including the UConn
2000 projects) continuing to operate in furtherance of and pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution
of the State and applicable law as an institution dedicated to excellence in higher education. However,
nothing in the Act shall be construed to preclude the State from appropriating a lower or higher amount
than the amount appropriated in the previous Fiscal Year so long as the State provides and determines that
the University can continue to operate as an institution dedicated to excellence in higher education and
such amount so appropriated shall then constitute the Minimum State Operating Provision.
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Special External Gift and Endowment Funds. The Act creates two funds designed to encourage
private sector gifts to fund UConn 2000 projects and to increase endowment funds of the University.

The Special External Gift Fund was created to receive Special Eligible Gifts from the private
sector, in furtherance of UConn 2000. Special Eligible Gifts and interest or other income earned on the
Special External Gift Fund are to be used to pay costs of any UConn 2000 project.

The Endowment Fund is dedicated to endowed professorships, scholarships and programmatic
enhancements. See Appendix [-A under the subsection, “University Finances - The University of
Connecticut Foundation, Inc.”

Construction of Projects. The UConn 2000 Infrastructure Improvement Program currently
comprises numerous projects ranging in cost from under $1,000,000 to over $800,000,000. UConn 2000
Phase I Projects and UConn 2000 Phase II Projects are located on several of the University’s campuses
(not including UConn Health), with the preponderance of projects located on the main campus at Storrs.
UConn 2000 Phase III Projects include projects for the Storrs and regional campuses as well as several
projects to be located at UConn Health. The University is authorized to assume the responsibility and
supervision of any project including preparation of detailed plans and specifications for each project.
Subject to applicable law, the University maintains construction standards for all projects, including
provisions relating to materials and equipment, and health and safety. The Act provides an expedited
permitting process for the issuance of any license, permit, approval and administrative action required in
connection with any UConn 2000 project.

The Act provides that each contract let in accordance with the Act must provide that payment is
limited to, and the State and the University shall have no liability beyond, the amount provided therein.

Comprehensive Plan. The Act provides that the University shall develop a comprehensive plan
to guide Next Generation Connecticut investments. The comprehensive plan was adopted by the Board of
Trustees on February 24, 2016.

UConn 2000 Reports to the General Assembly. The Act provides for semi-annual reporting on
the status and progress of UConn 2000 to certain committees of the General Assembly. In accordance
with the Act, the most recent semi-annual report was submitted in July, 2020.

The Act also requires that progress reports regarding the University’s achievement of goals set
out in the Comprehensive Plan be submitted annually to the joint standing committees of the General
Assembly having cognizance of matters relating to finance, revenue and bonding, commerce and higher
education. The most recent report was submitted by the University on December 20, 2019.

LITIGATION
University

There is no litigation of any nature pending or threatened against the University restraining or
enjoining the issue, sale, execution or delivery of the 2020 Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting
the validity of the 2020 Bonds or any proceedings of the University taken with respect to the issuance or
sale thereof, the application of the proceeds of the 2020 Bonds or of amounts appropriated as the State
Debt Service Commitment out of the resources of the State’s General Fund under the UConn 2000 Act
for the payment of the 2020 Bonds or the existence or powers of the University.

In May 2020 a claim was filed with the State Office of the Claims Commissioner seeking to file a
class action lawsuit against the University for its decision not to refund tuition and certain fees following
the move to remote instruction in Spring 2020. The claim seeks damages in excess of $5 million. As a
State institution of higher education, the University is entitled to sovereign immunity, unless waived by
the General Assembly or expressly by statute, such as claims founded on any express contract between
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the University and purchasers and subsequent owners and transferees of securities issued by the
University or on any financing documents entered into pursuant to the Act. When sovereign immunity has
not been waived either by the General Assembly or expressly by statute, the principle of sovereign
immunity acts as a bar to any claim for money damages against the State or its employees. However, the
General Assembly has authorized the State’s Office of the Claims Commissioner to “authorize suit
against the State on any claim which, in the opinion of the Claims Commissioner, presents an issue of law
or fact under which the State, were it a private person, could be liable.” The Claims Commissioner may
dismiss a claim, award damages up to $20,000, recommend to the General Assembly payment of
damages in excess of $20,000, or authorize a claimant to sue the State in superior court.

The University is being represented by the State Office of the Attorney General in connection
with the claim.

In addition, the University is defending various legal matters in State and federal courts. The
University’s General Counsel and the Office of the Attorney General are of the opinion that none of those
suits, either individually or in the aggregate, are likely to have a material adverse impact on the
University’s financial position.

State

There is no litigation pending or threatened against the State contesting or affecting the obligation
of the State with respect to the State Debt Service Commitment for the payment of the 2020 Bonds.
However, the State, its officers and employees are defendants in pending lawsuits. The Attorney
General’s Office has reviewed the status of such pending lawsuits. See “LITIGATION” in Part II hereto
for a description of such litigation.

Upon delivery of the 2020 Bonds, the State shall furnish a certificate of the Attorney General of
the State, dated the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, which shall state that, except as disclosed in this
Official Statement, there is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending by or against the State
which, in the opinion of the Attorney General, will be finally determined so as to result individually or in
the aggregate in a final judgment against the State which would materially adversely affect its financial
condition or the power of the State to levy, collect and enforce the collection of taxes or other revenues
for the payment of its bonds.

COVENANT OF THE STATE

Under the Act, the State has pledged and agreed with the holders of any bonds and notes issued
under the Act, including the 2020 Bonds, that the State will not limit or alter the rights vested in the
University until such obligations, together with the interest thereon, are fully met and discharged,
provided that nothing shall preclude such limitation or alteration if and when adequate provision shall be
made by law for the protection of the holders of such bonds and notes.

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT

The Act provides that the 2020 Bonds shall be legal investments in which public bodies of the
State and its political subdivisions, all municipalities and municipal subdivisions, all insurance companies
and associations and other persons carrying on an insurance business, all banks, bankers, banking
associations, including savings and loan associations, building and loan associations, investment
companies and other persons carrying on a banking business, all administrators, guardians, executors,
board of trustees and other fiduciaries, and all other persons whatsoever who are now or may be
authorized to invest in securities of the State, may properly and legally invest funds, including capital, in
their control, or belonging to them. The 2020 Bonds are also securities which may properly and legally
be deposited with and received by all public officers and bodies of the State or any agency or political
subdivision and all municipalities and public corporations for any purpose for which the deposit of
securities of the State is now or may be authorized by law.
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APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Legal matters related to the authorization, issuance and sale of the 2020 Bonds are subject to the
approval of Pullman & Comley, LLC, Hartford, Connecticut, Bond Counsel to the University, and Law
Offices of Joseph C. Reid, P.A., New York, New York, as Co-Bond Counsel to the University. Bond
Counsel and Co-Bond Counsel propose to deliver their approving opinions with respect to the 2020
Bonds substantially in the forms set forth in Appendix I-D1 and Appendix I-D2 hereto. Certain legal
matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their Co-Counsel, Lewis & Munday, A Professional
Corporation, of Detroit, Michigan, with offices in Glastonbury, Connecticut and Hawkins Delafield &
Wood LLP, Hartford, Connecticut (“Underwriters’ Counsel”). Both Underwriters’ Counsel currently
serve as bond counsel to the State in connection with other State bond issues and various other matters.
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the State by its Disclosure Counsel, Day Pitney LLP,
Hartford, Connecticut.

TAX MATTERS
Opinion of Bond Counsel — Federal Tax Exemption

In the opinion of Bond Counsel and Co-Bond Counsel (collectively, “Bond Counsel”) to the
University, under existing law, interest on the 2020 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum
tax. In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely on certain representations, certifications of fact, and
statements of reasonable expectations made by the University, the Treasurer and others in connection
with the 2020 Bonds, and Bond Counsel will assume continuing compliance by the University and the
Treasurer with certain ongoing covenants relating to certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”) to assure the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross income
under the Code.

Certain Ongoing Federal Tax Requirements and Covenants

The Code establishes certain significant ongoing requirements that must be met subsequent to the
issuance and delivery of the 2020 Bonds in order that interest on the 2020 Bonds be and remain excluded
from gross income under the Code. These requirements include, but are not limited to, requirements
relating to use and expenditure of gross proceeds of the 2020 Bonds, yield and other restrictions on
investments of gross proceeds, and the arbitrage rebate requirement that certain excess earnings on gross
proceeds be rebated to the federal government. Noncompliance with such requirements may cause
interest on the 2020 Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to
their issue date, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance occurs or is discovered. In the Tax
Regulatory Agreement, which will be delivered concurrently with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds, the
University and the Treasurer will covenant to comply with such applicable requirements of the Code to
assure the exclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds from gross income under the Code.

Certain Collateral Federal Tax Consequences

The following is a brief discussion of certain collateral federal income tax matters with respect to
the 2020 Bonds. It does not purport to deal with all aspects of federal taxation that may be relevant to a
particular owner of a 2020 Bond. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special
rules, are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and
disposing of the 2020 Bonds.

Prospective owners of the 2020 Bonds should be aware that the ownership of such obligations
may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to various categories of persons, such as
corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations), financial institutions, property and
casualty and life insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement
benefits, individuals otherwise eligible for the earned income tax credit, and taxpayers deemed to have
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incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry obligations the interest on which is not included
in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the 2020 Bonds is subject to information reporting
to the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in a manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. In
addition, interest on the 2020 Bonds may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a
registered owner that (a) fails to provide certain identifying information (such as the registered owner’s
taxpayer identification number) in the manner required by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by the IRS as
being subject to backup withholding.

Original Issue Premium

Certain of the 2020 Bonds may be offered at prices in excess of their stated principal amounts
(“Premium Bonds™). An initial purchaser with an initial adjusted basis in a Premium Bond in excess of
its principal amount will have amortizable bond premium which is not deductible from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. The amount of amortizable bond premium for a taxable year is determined
actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Premium Bond based on the purchaser’s
yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds callable prior to their maturity, over the period to the
call date, based on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and giving effect to any call premium). For
purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial
purchaser who acquires such obligation with an amortizable bond premium is required to decrease such
purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the amount of amortizable bond premium
for the taxable year. The amortization of bond premium may be taken into account as a reduction in the
amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning such
Premium Bonds. Owners of the Premium Bonds are advised that they should consult with their own
advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.

State Taxes

In the opinion of Bond Counsel to the University, under existing statutes, interest on the 2020
Bonds is excluded from Connecticut taxable income for purposes of the Connecticut income tax on
individuals, trusts and estates and is excluded from amounts on which the net Connecticut minimum tax is
based in the case of individuals, trusts and estates required to pay the federal alternative minimum tax.

Interest on the 2020 Bonds is includable in gross income for purposes of the Connecticut
corporation business tax.

Owners of the 2020 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the
determination for state and local income tax purposes of original issue premium accrued upon sale or
redemption thereof, and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning or disposing of
such 2020 Bonds.

Owners of the 2020 Bonds should consult their tax advisors with respect to other applicable state
and local tax consequences of ownership of the 2020 Bonds and the disposition thereof.

General and Post Issuance Events

Tax legislation, administrative actions or court decisions, at either the federal or state level, may
adversely affect the tax exempt status of the interest on the 2020 Bonds under federal or state law or
otherwise prevent beneficial owners of the 2020 Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax
status of such interest. In addition, such tax legislation, administrative actions or court decisions, could
affect the market value of the 2020 Bonds and their marketability. This could arise from changes to
federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of federal or state income taxes (including
replacement with another type of tax), repeal of the exclusion of the interest on the 2020 Bonds from
gross income for federal or state income tax purposes, or otherwise. It is not possible to predict whether
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any legislative or administrative actions or court decisions having an adverse impact on the federal or
state income tax treatment of holders of the 2020 Bonds may occur. Prospective purchasers of the 2020
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the impact of any change in law on the 2020
Bonds.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is rendered as of its date, and Bond Counsel assumes no obligation
to update or supplement its opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to its attention or
any changes in law that may occur after the date of its opinion. Bond Counsel’s opinions are based on
existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are further based on factual representations made
to Bond Counsel as of the date of issuance. Moreover, Bond Counsel’s opinions are not a guarantee of a
particular result, and are not binding on the IRS or the courts; rather, such opinions represent Bond
Counsel’s professional judgment based on its review of existing law, and in reliance on the
representations and covenants that it deems relevant to such opinions. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion
regarding any other federal or state tax consequences with respect to the 2020 Bonds. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion on the effect of any action taken in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel on the
exclusion from gross income for federal or state income tax purposes of interest on the 2020 Bonds.

The discussion above does not purport to deal with all aspects of federal or state or local taxation
that may be relevant to a particular owner of the 2020 Bonds. Prospective owners of the 2020 Bonds,
particularly those who may be subject to special rules, are advised to consult their own tax advisors
regarding the federal, state and local tax consequences of owning and disposing of the 2020 Bonds.

RATINGS

The 2020 Bonds have been rated “A1” by Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s™), 7 World
Trade Center, New York, New York; “A+” by S&P Global Ratings (“S&P”), 55 Water Street, New York,
New York and “A” by Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”), One State Street Plaza, New York, New York. Moody’s,
S&P and Fitch have all assigned a “stable” credit outlook on the University’s general obligation debt.
Each such rating and credit outlook reflects only the views of the respective rating agency and an
explanation of the significance of such ratings and credit outlooks can be obtained from Moody’s, S&P
and Fitch, respectively. Such ratings are not intended as a recommendation to buy or own the 2020
Bonds. There is no assurance that such ratings will continue for any period of time or that they will not
be revised or withdrawn. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of such ratings on the 2020
Bonds may have an adverse effect on the market price thereof.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 3-20e of the General Statutes of Connecticut gives the University and State the specific
authority to enter into continuing disclosure agreements in accordance with the requirements of Securities
and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12 as amended (the “Rule”). The University, as issuer of the 2020
Bonds, under the Rule will enter into agreements with the Trustee substantially in the form of the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement attached hereto as Appendix I-E to this Part I, one for the 2020 Series
A Bonds and one for the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds (collectively, the “Continuing Disclosure
Agreement”). The Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall constitute the University’s written undertaking
for the beneficial owners of the 2020 Bonds. The State as the obligated person under the Rule will enter
into an agreement with the Trustee with respect to the 2020 Bonds for the benefit of the beneficial holders
of the 2020 Bonds, substantially in the form of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement attached to
Appendix I-E1 to this Part I (the “State Continuing Disclosure Agreement”). Pursuant to the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement and under the State Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement and the State Continuing Disclosure Agreement, herein called collectively, the “Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking”), the University and the State, respectively, agree to provide or cause to be
provided, in accordance with the requirements of the Rule, (i) certain annual financial information and
operating data, (ii) notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to the 2020 Bonds within ten
(10) business days of the occurrence thereof (such notice only by the University with respect to the
University), and (iii) timely notice of a failure to provide the required annual financial information on or
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before the date specified in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. The Underwriters’ obligation to
purchase the 2020 Bonds shall be conditioned upon their receiving, at or prior to the delivery of the 2020
Bonds, an executed copy of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.

The intent of such undertaking is to provide on a continuing basis the financial information and
operating data described in the Rule. Accordingly, there is reserved the right to modify the disclosure
thereunder or format thereof so long as any such modification is made in a manner consistent with the
Rule and as permitted by the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.

The purpose of such undertaking is to conform to the requirements of the Rule and not to create
new contractual or other rights other than the remedy of specific performance in the event of any actual
failure by the University or the State to comply with its written undertaking. The Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking shall provide that any failure by the University or the State to comply with any provisions of
such undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default with respect to the 2020 Bonds under the Master
Indenture.

To its knowledge, in the last five years the University has not failed to comply in any material
respect with its undertakings entered into in connection with any bonds issued by the University. The
University has determined that it inadvertently failed to make specific reference to official statements
filed on EMMA in 2017 and 2018 which provided certain operating data, such as percentage of
enrollment by residence status for some students and passing rates on certain national exams. After
discovering such failure, the University promptly filed its Official Statement, dated March 15, 2018 on
EMMA under the continuing disclosure tabs to correct such failures. In addition, the University has
determined that it did not file an event notice for the incurrence of a financial obligation by UConn Health
which was required to be filed by September 29, 2020 but instead the University filed such event notice
on October 9, 2020. In making these disclosures the University has not concluded and does not admit
that the omission to make specific reference to its official statements on file on EMMA or the filing of an
event notice nine days late were material failures to comply with its continuing disclosure obligations.
The University has modified its disclosure practices to prevent such failure in the future.

Certain prior annual reports of the University and other required reports are available from the
Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) website of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(the “MSRB”), or such other website as may be designated from time to time by the MSRB or the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Filings through EMMA are linked to particular obligations by a 9-
digit CUSIP number, based on base (6-digits) CUSIP numbers, which are subject to being changed after
the issuance of obligations as a result of various actions. The University has entered into continuing
disclosure agreements requiring filings to be made by the Trustee with respect to hundreds of CUSIP
numbers. Most filings by the Trustee through EMMA, such as annual reports, are made using the base 6-
digit CUSIP numbers. Although the Trustee endeavors through this process to link each report filed
through EMMA to the correct CUSIP number (including those assigned without its knowledge), there can
be no guarantee of complete accuracy in this process, given the large number of 9-digit CUSIP numbers
assigned to the University’s obligations. The University does not believe an inaccuracy resulting from
such CUSIP process is a material failure to comply with its continuing disclosure obligations.

To its knowledge, in the last five years the State has not failed to comply in any material respect
with its undertakings pursuant to a continuing disclosure agreement executed by the State. The State has
determined it did not file an event notice for (i) a rating upgrade of its Bradley International Airport
Special Obligation Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2000A in May 2016, (ii) a rating downgrade of its
Certificates of Participation (Connecticut Juvenile Training School Energy Center Project) in April 2018,
(iii) a rating upgrade of the short-term rating on the State’s General Obligations Bonds (2016 Series C)
(Variable Rate Demand Bonds) in June 2018 and (iv) a notice of the incurrence of financial obligation in
connection with the Connecticut Higher Education Supplemental Loan Authority State Supported
Revenue Bonds (CHESLA Loan Program) 2020 Series B-AMT and State Supported Revenue Refunding
Bonds (CHESLA Loan Program) 2020 Series C NON-AMT in June 2020. The State promptly filed such
notices after discovering each omission. In making this disclosure, the State has not concluded and does
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not admit that these omissions are a material failure to comply with its continuing disclosure obligations.
The State has modified its disclosure practices to prevent such failures in the future. Certain prior annual
reports of the State and other required reports are available from the EMMA website of the MSRB or
such other website as may be designated from time to time by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Filings through EMMA are linked to particular obligations by a 9-digit CUSIP number,
based on base (6-digit) CUSIP numbers, which are subject to being changed after the issuance of
obligations as a result of various actions. The State has entered into continuing disclosure agreements
requiring filings to be made with respect to thousands of CUSIP numbers. Most filings by the State
through EMMA, such as annual reports, are made using the base 6-digit CUSIP numbers. Although the
State endeavors through this process to link each report filed through EMMA to the correct CUSIP
number (including those assigned without its knowledge), there can be no guarantee of complete accuracy
in this process, given the large number of 9-digit CUSIP numbers assigned to the State’s obligations. The
State does not believe an inaccuracy resulting from such CUSIP process is a material failure to comply
with its continuing disclosure obligations.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters have jointly and severally agreed, subject to certain conditions precedent, to
purchase all, but not less than all, of the 2020 Series A Bonds from the University at an aggregate
purchase price of $200,259,150.03 (representing the aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Series A
Bonds, plus original issue premium of $40,764,901.35 and less Underwriters’ discount of $735,751.32).
The 2020 Series A Bonds may be reoffered and sold to certain dealers (including unit investment trusts
and other affiliated portfolios of certain underwriters and other dealers depositing the 2020 Series A
Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than those stated on the inside cover page of this Official
Statement and such public offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters.

The Underwriters have jointly and severally agreed, subject to certain conditions precedent, to
purchase all, but not less than all, of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds from the University at an
aggregate purchase price of $141,577,790.17 (representing the aggregate principal amount of the 2020
Refunding Series A Bonds, plus original issue premium of $22,936,136.80 and less Underwriters’
discount of $443,346.63). The 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds may be reoffered and sold to certain
dealers (including unit investment trusts and other affiliated portfolios of certain underwriters and other
dealers depositing the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than those
stated on the inside cover page of this Official Statement and such public offering prices may be changed,
from time to time, by the Underwriters.

Certain of the Underwriters have entered into distribution agreements with other broker-dealers
(that have not been designated by the State as Underwriters) for the distribution of the Bonds at the
original issue prices. Such agreements generally provide that the relevant Underwriter will share a
portion of its underwriting compensation or selling concession with such broker-dealers.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

PFM Financial Advisors LLC is serving as the financial advisor in connection with the issuance
of the 2020 Bonds.

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS

AMTEC, of Avon, Connecticut (the “Verification Agent”) will deliver to the University, on or
before the settlement date of the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds, its attestation report indicating that it
has examined the information and assertions provided by the University and its representatives. Included
in the scope of its examination will be a verification of the mathematical accuracy of (a) the mathematical
computations of the adequacy of the cash and the maturing principal of and interest on the Government
Obligations to pay, when due, the maturing principal of and interest and redemption premium on the
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Refunded Bonds, and (b) the mathematical computations supporting the conclusion of Bond Counsel that
the 2020 Refunding Series A Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds” under the Code.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY AND THE STATE

Included in Appendix I-A of Part 1 is various financial information relating to the University.
The audited financial statements of the University (excluding the University of Connecticut
Foundation) and UConn Health contained in Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 have been included herein in
reliance upon the Certificates of Audit of the Auditors of Public Accounts, respectively, of the State.

Included in Appendices II-C and II-D of Part II is various financial information relating to the
State. The audited financial statements contained in Appendices II-C and II-D have been included herein
in reliance upon the Independent Auditors’ Report and Certificate of Audit, respectively, of the Auditors
of Public Accounts of the State.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Periodic public reports relating to the financial condition of the University and its various
operations are prepared by officers of the University and provided to the Board of Trustees at its regular
monthly meetings. In addition, the University regularly reports to the Governor, the Secretary of the
Office of Policy and Management and various committees of the State legislature and regularly receives
reports from consultants, commissions and special task forces relating to various aspects of the
University’s financial affairs.

The University will make available copies of its official statement relating to the issuance of its
securities under the Master Indenture from time to time upon request through the Office of the State
Treasurer or the University’s Executive Vice President for Administration and Chief Financial Officer.

Additional information concerning the University may be obtained upon request of the President,
Thomas C. Katsouleas, Attention: Scott A. Jordan, Executive Vice President for Administration and Chief
Financial Officer, 352 Mansfield Road, Storrs, Connecticut, 06269, (860) 486-3455.

Additional information concerning the State may be obtained upon request of the Office of the
State Treasurer, Honorable Shawn T. Wooden, Treasurer, Attention: Sarah Sanders, Assistant Treasurer
for Debt Management, 165 Capitol Avenue, Suite 2003, Hartford, Connecticut, 06106, (860) 702-3288.

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or
not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representation of fact. No representation is made
that any of such statements will be realized. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or

agreement between the University and the State and the purchasers or holders of any of the 2020 Bonds.

This Official Statement is submitted only in connection with the issuance and sale of the 2020
Bonds by the University and may not be reproduced or used in whole or in part for any other purpose.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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Pursuant to the UConn 2000 Act, the 2020 Bonds described above have been sold by the
Treasurer of the State of Connecticut in conjunction with the University and the inclusion of Part II has
been authorized by the Treasurer of the State of Connecticut.

TREASURER OF THE
STATE OF CONNECTICUT UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
By: /s/ Shawn T. Wooden By: /s/ Scott A. Jordan
Shawn T. Wooden Scott A. Jordan
State Treasurer Executive Vice President for
Administration and Chief Financial
Officer

Dated: December 9, 2020
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APPENDIX I-A

UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNIVERSITY

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION AND BONDHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS

This Appendix I-A contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “may,” “believe,” “could,” “might,”
“possible,” “potential,” “project,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “predict,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “approximate,” “contemplate,” “continue,” “target,” “goal” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain these words. All forward-looking statements included in this Appendix I-A are
based on information available to the University up to the date as of which such statements are to
be made, or otherwise up to, and including, the date of this document, and the University assumes
no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that
arise after the date hereof or after the date of any report containing such forward-looking
statement, as applicable. Such statements may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties,
and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance and achievements to be different
from future results, performance and achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Investors are cautioned that the actual results could differ materially from those set
forth in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements included in this Appendix I-
A do not contemplate the economic or other effects related to COVID-19, unless specifically
referenced. In addition, where so referenced, actual results could differ materially from those
anticipated in such forward-looking statements. For further information regarding COVID-19, see
“Global Health Emergency Risk” on page 2 of Part I of the Official Statement.

The publication of this Appendix I-A does not constitute or imply any representation (i)
that the foregoing is material to investors, (ii) regarding any other financial, operating or other
information about the University or its debt obligations or (iii) that no other circumstances or
events have occurred or that no other information exists concerning the University or its debt
obligations which may have a bearing on the financial condition of the University, the security for
its debt obligations, or an investor’s decision to buy, sell or hold any debt obligations. This
information is subject to change without notice. This Appendix I-A only speaks as of its date and
does not imply that there has been no change in any other information relating to the obligations
with respect to which this Appendix I-A is filed as described above. Nothing contained in this
Appendix I-A is, or should be construed as, a representation by the University that the information
included in this Appendix I-A or any previous filings constitutes all of the information that may be
material to a current decision to invest in, hold or dispose of any of the obligations, or any other
securities issued for the benefit of the University. Moreover, there is no duty created by this filing
for the Board, or the University to update the information included in this Appendix I-A.
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This Appendix A, furnished by the University of Connecticut (the “University”), contains
information as of the date of this Official Statement, except as expressly provided herein. This
Appendix A and the schedules attached hereto should be read collectively and in their entirety.
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UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
INTRODUCTION

The University of Connecticut (the “University”) was established and exists as an institution for the
education of residents of the State of Connecticut (the “State”). The University, originally established in 1881, is
one of the nation’s nine colonial land grant colleges. Since it was established, the University has consistently
expanded its academic program and physical plant to meet the higher educational needs of State residents. In April
1881, the Connecticut General Assembly established the Storrs Agricultural School after accepting a gift of 170
acres of land, several buildings, and money from Charles and Augustus Storrs. The Storrs Agricultural School
opened on September 28, 1881, with 12 students in the first class. Before the turn of the century, there were two
name changes, to Storrs Agricultural College in 1893 and to Connecticut Agricultural College in 1899. In 1933, it
became Connecticut State College, reflecting its steady advances and broadened mission. In 1939, the General
Assembly designated it the University of Connecticut, reflecting its graduate and professional education, research
and public service programs. In 1965, the University became the flagship institution of higher education in the State
under the new Constitution of the State, which in Article VIII, Section 2 provides that the State shall maintain a
system of higher education, including the University, dedicated to excellence in higher education.

In addition to the main campus in Storrs (“Storrs”), there are four undergraduate regional campuses (one of
which also houses the graduate School of Social Work), a School of Law and a complex of health and educational
facilities (sometimes referred to herein as the “University of Connecticut Health Center” or “UConn Health” or
“UCH”). UConn Health consists of the School of Medicine, the School of Dental Medicine, medical and dental
educational clinics, UConn Medical Group and the UConn John Dempsey Hospital. The Storrs and regional
campuses and UConn Health comprise 4,267 acres of land and are strategically located throughout the State. The
University competes with public and private institutions for students.

As of November 2020, the University had over 270,000 alumni worldwide and almost 32,700 students
(including UConn Health) studying in 14 colleges and schools offering eight undergraduate and 23 graduate and
professional degree programs.

The State’s support for the University reflects the status of the University as the flagship institution of the
State system of higher education.

GOVERNANCE, ACADEMIC PROGRAMS AND CAMPUSES
Board of Trustees

Composition. The Board of Trustees of the University (the “Board of Trustees™) consists of 21 persons.
The Governor, the Commissioner of Education, the Commissioner of Agriculture, the Commissioner of Economic
& Community Development and the Chair of UConn Health Board of Directors are ex-officio members of the
Board of Trustees. The Governor is the ex-officio President of the Board of Trustees and is authorized to appoint
twelve members of the Board of Trustees who reflect the State’s geographic, racial and ethnic diversity. Two
members of the Board of Trustees are elected by the University alumni, and two are elected by the students enrolled
at the institutions under jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees.

Although the University is governed by a single Board of Trustees with one chief executive officer, UConn
Health maintains a separate budget and is by statute a separate entity for purposes of maintaining operating funds
and State appropriations. It is managed by a board of directors (the “Board of Directors™) to which the Board of
Trustees has delegated certain duties and authority. Information concerning UConn Health is included under the
heading “UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT HEALTH CENTER” below in this Appendix A.



Membership. The name, term, position and affiliation or profession of each member of the Board of
Trustees is as follows:

Term
Name Ends Position Affiliation/Profession
The Honorable Ned Lamont President ex-officio ~ Governor
Miguel A. Cardona Member ex-officio Commissioner of Education
Bryan Hurlburt Member ex-officio Commissioner, Department of
Agriculture
David Lehman Member ex-officio Commissioner, Department of
Economic & Community
Development
Sanford Cloud, Jr. 2014* Member ex-officio,  Chairman and CEO, The Cloud
Chair UCH BOD Company, LLC
Andy F. Bessette 2025 Vice-Chair Executive Vice President & Chief
Administrative Officer, The
Travelers Companies, Inc.
Mark L. Boxer 2022 Vice-Chair Executive Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer, University of
Hartford
Charles F. Bunnell 2025 Vice-Chair Chief of Staff, The Mohegan Tribe
Shari G. Cantor 2025 Vice-Chair Mayor, West Hartford, CT
Andrea Dennis-LaVigne 2025 Secretary and Vice-  Veterinarian, Bloomfield Animal
Chair Hospital
Justin M. Fang 2022 Student Member Graduate Student
Marilda L. Gandara 2023 Vice-Chair Retired President, Aetna Foundation
Inc.
Jeanine A. Gouin 2021 Alumni-Elected Vice President, Milone & McBroom,
Member and Vice- Inc.
Chair
Rebecca Lobo 2021 Member Sports Broadcaster
Kevin J. O’Connor 2025 Member Vice President & Chief Legal
Officer, Carrier
Bryan K. Pollard 2023 Alumni-Elected Associate General Counsel, United
Member Technologies Corporation
Thomas D. Ritter 2021 Member Attorney, Brown Rudnick
Philip E. Rubin 2023 Vice-Chair Senior Advisor, Haskins
Laboratories
Daniel D. Toscano 2025 Chair Global Head of Leveraged &
Acquisition Finance, Morgan
Stanley & Co, Inc.
Ethan Werstler 2024 Student Member Undergraduate Student

* Board members continue to serve until re-appointed or replacements are appointed.

Duties of the Board of Trustees. Subject to statewide policy and guidelines established by the Board of
Regents for Higher Education, the Board of Trustees is authorized to establish rules and general policies for the
governance of the University, including its mission, regional campuses, degrees and academic programs. The Board
of Trustees appoints the President, manages the investments and directs the expenditures of the University. The
Board of Trustees is required by law to review and approve the annual University budget and facility, planning and
capital expenditure budget priorities. The Board of Trustees may employ the faculty and other personnel needed to
operate and maintain the University. The Board of Trustees is authorized to fix the compensation of University
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personnel, establish terms and conditions of their employment and prescribe their duties and qualifications. The
Board of Trustees is authorized to constitute its professional staff and establish compensation and classification
schedules for such personnel.

Officers of the Board of Trustees. The officers of the Board of Trustees, apart from the Governor who is
President ex-officio, are the Chair, Vice-Chairs and Secretary. The Chair is privileged to make or discuss motions
and to vote on all questions. The Chair may designate a Vice-Chair to act in his or her absence.

Daniel D. Toscano was appointed Chairman of the Board of Trustees in 2019. Chairman Toscano is a
University of Connecticut 1987 graduate with a Bachelor of Sciences degree in finance and earned his MBA from
the University of Pennsylvania in 1999. He is currently Global Head of Leveraged & Acquisition Finance at
Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. He served eleven years on the UConn Foundation Board of Directors, including
serving as chair of the board for three years and as chair of the Investment Committee for several years prior.

Committees of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees acts as a committee of the whole on all
matters requiring action. The Board of Trustees is authorized by the Act to adopt a resolution delegating to the
Finance Committee of the Board such matters relating to the issuance and sale of securities in the name of the
University on behalf of the State as it may determine appropriate, except as to the authorization of the amount of,
the nature of, and property to be financed by, such securities; provided that, the Board of Trustees must retain
overall control, responsibility and supervision.

In addition to the Financial Affairs Committee, other Board of Trustees committees include Academic
Affairs; Buildings, Grounds and Environment; Compensation; Construction Management Oversight; Committee for
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, Executive; Honors & Awards; Institutional Advancement; Joint Audit and
Compliance; Committee for Research, Entrepreneurship and Innovation; Student Life; and UConn Health.

University Governance and Administration

Governance and Administration. The administration of the University is determined in part by legislative
enactment, in part by the By-Laws of the Board of Trustees, and in part by regulations made by the President, the
University Senate, and the several faculties. The Board of Trustees is authorized by law to appoint a President of
the University. The President is the chief executive officer of the University. The President is responsible for
carrying out the policies and enforcing the rules adopted by the Board of Trustees.

On February 5, 2019, the Board of Trustees appointed Thomas C. Katsouleas, Ph.D. as the 16" President of
the University of Connecticut effective August 1, 2019. Dr. Katsouleas previously served as the Provost and
Executive Vice president at the University of Virginia, one of the nation’s top three public research universities.
Prior to that, he had served as the Dean of the Pratt School of Engineering at Duke University and Professor of
electrical and computer engineering. Dr. Katsouleas earned his bachelor’s degree summa cum laude in 1979 from
UCLA, and received his Ph.D. in physics in 1984, also from UCLA. He was a researcher and faculty member at
UCLA for seven years after receiving his Ph.D., before joining the University of Southern California (“USC”)
faculty as an associate professor of electrical engineering in 1991, becoming full professor in 1997. He also was an
Associate Dean of USC’s engineering school and Vice Provost of information technology services. Dr. Katsouleas
is a leading scholar in the field of plasma science and has authored or co-authored more than 250 publications.

The names and backgrounds of other principal administrative officers of the University are as follows:

Name Position Background

Carl Lejuez Provost and Executive PH.D. and M.A, West Virginia University, B.A.,
Vice President for Emory University; 20 years in higher education at
Academic Affairs research universities, most recently as Interim Provost

of the University of Kansas, as well as Dean of KU
College of Liberal Arts and Sciences.
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Name Position Background

Scott A. Jordan Executive Vice President =~ M.P.A., Harvard University, B.A., University of
for Administration and Massachusetts; over 25 years in state and local
Chief Financial Officer government finance in the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts, most recently as Undersecretary of the
Massachusetts Executive Office for Administration and
Finance.

Andrew Agwunobi, M.D.  Executive Vice President =~ M.D., University of Jos Nigeria, Pediatric Residency at
for Health Affairs Howard University Hospital, M.B.A. Stanford
Graduate School of Business; over 20 years in
healthcare and administration including serving as
Director with the Berkeley Research Group and Chief
Executive of Providence Healthcare.

Legal Services. The University receives legal services from the University’s Office of the General
Counsel and from the State’s Office of the Attorney General. The University also retains private counsel on
occasion through the Office of the Attorney General. The Act authorizes the University, independent of the Office
of the Attorney General, to use the legal services of private attorneys in connection with the construction, operation
or maintenance of any UCONN 2000 project. Pursuant to the Act, the University has retained attorneys in
connection with the construction of UCONN 2000 projects, including claims and litigation arising from such
projects. In addition, UConn Health has the statutory authority to engage outside counsel, relative to UConn
Health’s clinical enterprise, through the University of Connecticut Health Center Finance Corporation.

The University Efforts to Mitigate the Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic’s effects change on a daily basis. Accordingly, the University’s efforts are
ongoing and evolving. In an effort to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on Storrs and the Regional Campuses, the
University immediately took the following steps in March 2020: employees who were able to tele-commute began
working from home, student instruction was moved to online course delivery for the remainder of the Spring term,
events larger than 100 people were cancelled or postponed, many athletic competitions were cancelled, and the
majority of students housed on campus were sent home. Since that time, the University has worked to lay out
certain conditions (i.e. testing requirements, contact tracing) for resuming operations in conjunction with the
Governor’s four-stage Reopening Plan.

At this time, the University has implemented certain protocols and safety measures and has welcomed a
limited number of students, faculty and staff back on campus while encouraging tele-education and tele-
commuting. The protocols and safety measures are assessed daily. Each student, faculty and staff member must
promise to follow recommended public health protocols to keep the University community safe.

Specifically, each student, faculty and staff member will:

e wear a mask or face covering in public places — outdoors or indoors;

e avoid close contact, aside from roommates and family, by maintaining at least six feet of physical
distancing from others;

e regularly wash hands — for at least 20 seconds — and use hand sanitizer;

o follow state, local and University rules regarding gathering sizes, pedestrian traffic patterns, and other
new regulations designed to promote safety and good health — including limiting social gatherings to
very small groups on campus or off campus;

e monitor daily for COVID-19 symptoms and inform health services or health care provider regarding
any changes in health status;

e commit to medical isolation, quarantine, or other medical direction when advised to do so by a health
care provider;

¢ read all University COVID-19 communications and take action as necessary; and

¢ maintain all immunizations including an annual flu vaccine, as advised by a healthcare professional.
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The University Reopening Plan is comprised of four parts:
1. Plan for repopulating campus:
o Assumes a combination of in person, remote learning, and hybrid classes.
o Physical space limitations/occupancy in place for classrooms, dining halls, common spaces
(i.e. library, student recreation center), department and administrative offices, campus
transportation, and residence halls.
o Every member of community required to wear a face mask/covering in public areas and
common/shared spaces.
o Proper sanitation of facilities on an ongoing basis will be ensured.
o Travel will be limited.
o Flexible work options for faculty and staff where possible to include tele-commuting, schedule
changes, or rotational schedules.
2. Plan for monitoring the health of students, faculty and staff:
o If a student is residing in campus housing or attending in person classes, they are required to be
tested for COVID-19.
o If an employee is coming to any campus because their job duties require them to be there, they
are expected to be tested for COVID-19.
o Surveillance testing throughout the year will be performed.
3. Plan for containment:
o Protocols are in place to support isolation and quarantine.
o Contact tracing will be used in conjunction with testing to effectively manage disease
transmission.
4. Plan for altering operations/campus-shutdown:
o The Governor and Commissioner of the Department of Public Health have the authority to
effectively shut down the University in the event of a declared public health emergency.
o The University President has the authority to shut down the University and will consult with
state and local health officials.
o If'the University is shutdown, a plan is in place for the continuation of instruction.

The University continues to carefully monitor developments and the directives of federal, state, and local
officials to determine what additional precautions and procedures may need to be implemented by the University in
response to the pandemic. Regardless of the environmental conditions, the University remains ready to deliver the
educational standard of excellence that we are known for providing to our students by faculty and staff. The
University closely monitors all data and trends regarding the presence of COVID-19. Currently, a COVID-19
dashboard is updated daily and conveys all pertinent statistics (https://reopen.uconn.edu/covid-dashboard/).

Strategic and Academic Plan

Adopted on February 10, 1995, the Strategic Plan serves as the Board of Trustees’ blueprint for the
University’s future. It describes a University on the road to educational pre-eminence. Just as UCONN 2000 is the
General Assembly’s blueprint for transforming the physical infrastructure, the Strategic Plan is the blueprint for
reshaping UConn’s scholastic and social environment.

In 2013, the University developed a revised Academic Plan to set the future direction and priorities for the
University and to identify new goals and strategic initiatives to realize its aspiration to be counted among the
nation’s top flagship public universities. The Academic Plan is characterized by bold and innovative ideas
about how the University can:

Increase research productivity;

Adapt to change and implement innovations in teaching pedagogy;

Develop interdisciplinary ideas for research and scholarship with global implications; and
Establish models of academic organizational structures.
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In the 2020-21 academic year, the University will undergo a process to develop a new Strategic Plan. The
Strategic Plan will establish a common set of priorities at UConn to unite our community toward shared goals of
excellence in research, life-transformative education and driving economic growth in Connecticut.

Next Generation Connecticut

Public Act 13-233, “An Act Concerning Next Generation Connecticut” was adopted in 2013, which, among
other things, extended the UCONN 2000 program and increased the statutory authorizations for the UCONN 2000
bonds secured by the State’s debt service commitment. In 2017, Public Act 17-2 was adopted which extended the
capital bonding program through Fiscal Year 2027 and revised the bonding schedule from Fiscal Year 2018 to
Fiscal Year 2027 but did not change the total amount which may be authorized for UCONN 2000 projects. In
2020, Public Act 20-1 was adopted which reallocated the bonding amounts among the fiscal years 2020 through
2027 but did not change the total amount authorized. Next Generation Connecticut also included an operating
budget component reflected in the University’s State appropriation to support Next Generation Connecticut. The
operating funds are subject to the annual legislative appropriations approval process.

Next Generation Connecticut is a major initiative supported by the State that greatly expands educational
opportunities, research and innovation in the STEM disciplines at the University. The shared goal of Next
Generation Connecticut is to leverage the strength and resources of the University to build Connecticut’s future
workforce, create jobs and bring new life to the State’s economy. The cornerstone of this effort is a major increase
in the University’s enrollment, the expansion of faculty — above and beyond the University’s current faculty hiring
initiative — and new and updated facilities to accommodate enhanced STEM research and teaching, as well as the
growing student population.

Next Generation Connecticut is comprised of both capital and operating budget components. Given the
State’s fiscal challenges, the amount of operating funds appropriated from the State in Fiscal Year 2015 through
Fiscal Year 2021 has been significantly reduced relative to what was originally planned. This reduction in expected
operating funds contributed to a reduction in the capacity to hire new faculty and created significant challenges for
the University in meeting its original goals although the University has made some progress toward meeting such
goals.

Status of UCONN 2000 Projects
Numerous UCONN 2000 projects have been completed from 1997 until the present. The following table

lists the UCONN 2000 projects, which have been authorized by the Board of Trustees, the funding source and the
construction status of the project:

Projects Authorized |Construction Status'
A. General Obligation Bonds

Total — Storrs and Regional Campus Project List

Academic and Research Facilities Ongoing
Agricultural Biotechnology Facility Completed
Agricultural Biotechnology Facility Completion Completed
Alumni Quadrant Renovations? Completed
Arjona and Monteith (new classroom buildings) Completed
Avery Point Campus Undergraduate and Library Building Completed
Avery Point Marine Science Research Center - Phase 1 Completed
Avery Point Marine Science Research Center - Phase 11 Completed
Avery Point Renovation Completed
Beach Hall Renovations Completed
Benton State Art Museum Addition (Phases I & 1) Completed
Benton State Art Museum Addition (Phase I11) Completed
Biobehavioral Complex Replacement Completed
Bishop Renovation Completed
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Business School Renovation — Phase 11 Completed
Central Warehouse - New Completed
Chemistry Building Completed
Deferred Maintenance & Renovation Lump Sum Balance Completed
Deferred Maintenance & Renovation Lump Sum Balance Completed
Deferred Maintenance/Code Compliance/ADA Compliance/Infrastructure Ongoing
Improvements & Renovation Lump Sum and Utility, Administrative and

Support Facilities- Phase 111

East Campus North Renovations® Completed
Engineering Building (with Environmental Research Institute) Completed
Equipment, Library Collections & Telecommunications - Phase | Completed
Equipment, Library Collections & Telecommunications Completion - Phase II |Completed
Equipment, Library Collections & Telecommunications - Phase I1I Ongoing
Family Studies (DRM) Renovation Completed
Farm Buildings Repairs/Replacement Completed
Fine Arts Phase II Completed
Floriculture Greenhouse Completed
Gant Building Renovations Completed
Gant Plaza Deck Completed
Gentry Completion Completed
Gentry Renovation Completed
Grad Dorm Renovations Completed
Hartford Relocation Acquisition/Renovation Completed
Hilltop Dormitory Renovations Completed
Heating Plant Upgrade® Completed
Ice Rink Enclosure Completed
International House Conversion (a.k.a. Museum of Natural History) Completed
Intramural, Recreational and Intercollegiate Facilities Completed
Jorgensen Renovation Completed
Koons Hall Renovation/Addition Completed
Lakeside Renovation Completed
Law School Renovations/Improvements Completed
Litchfield Agricultural Center — Phase I Completed
Manchester Hall Renovation Completed
Mansfield Apartments Renovation Completed
Mansfield Training School Improvements — Phase 11 Completed
Mansfield Training School Improvements — Phase 111 Ongoing
Monteith Renovation Completed
Music Drama Addition Completed
Natural History Museum Completion Completed
North Campus Renovation® Completed
North Hillside Road Completion Completed
North Superblock Site & Utilities Completed
Northwest Quadrant Renovation - Phase [ Completed
Northwest Quadrant Renovation - Phase 11 Completed
Old Central Warehouse Completed
Parking Garage-North Completed
Parking Garage #3 Completed
Pedestrian Spinepath Completed
Pedestrian Walkways Completed
Psychology Building Renovation/Addition Completed
Residential Life Facilities Ongoing
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School of Business

Completed

School of Pharmacy Completed
School of Pharmacy / Biology Completion Completed
Shippee/Buckley Renovations® Completed
South Campus Complex” Completed
Stamford Campus Improvements/Housing Completed
Stamford Downtown Relocation — Phase I Completed
Storrs Hall Addition Completed
Student Union Addition Completed
Support Facility Completed
Technology Quadrant-Phase [A Completed
Technology Quadrant-Phase 11 Completed
Torrey Life Science Renovation Completed
Torrey Renovation Completion and Biology Expansion Completed
Torrington Campus Improvements Completed
Towers Renovation® Completed
Underground Steam & Water Upgrade Completed
Underground Steam & Water Upgrade Completion Completed
Waring Building Conversion Completed
Waterbury Downtown Campus Completed
Waterbury Property Purchase Completed
West Campus Renovations Completed
West Hartford Campus Renovations/Improvements Completed
White Building Renovation Completed
Wilbur Cross Building Renovation Completed
Young Building Renovation/Addition Completed
UConn Health

CLAC Renovation Biosafety Level 3 Lab Completed
Deferred Maintenance/Code Compliance/ADA Compliance/Infrastructure & Ongoing
Improvements Renovation Lump Sum and Utility, Administrative and Support
Facilities-Health Center

Dental School Renovation Completed
Equipment, Library Collections and Telecommunications-Health Center Ongoing
Library/Student Computer Center Renovation Completed
Main Building Renovation Completed
Medical School Academic Building Renovation Completed
Planning and Design Costs Completed
Research Tower Completed
Support Building Addition/Renovation Completed

The University of Connecticut Health Center New Construction and Renovation

Completed

B. Special Obligation Student Fee Revenue Bonds

Alumni Quadrant Renovations® Completed
East Campus North Renovations® Completed
Hilltop Dormitory New’ Completed
Hilltop Student Rental Apartments’ Completed
Intramural, Recreational & Intercollegiate Facilities® Ongoing
North Campus Renovation (including North Campus Student Suites Completed
and Apartments) >

Parking Garage-South’ Completed
Shippee/Buckley Renovations® Completed
South Campus Complex* Completed
Towers Renovations (including Greek Housing)? Completed
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! Some projects listed as ongoing might be substantially complete for use purposes. Also, note that some projects might reflect a completed status
for recently completed work, but future funding may still be available for which work has not yet begun.

2 Partially funded with proceeds from the University's General Obligation Bonds and partially funded with the proceeds of the
University’s Student Fee Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series A.

3 In addition, the University has entered into a tax-exempt lease financing for a Cogeneration Facility for the Heating Plant in the amount of $81.9
million under the UCONN 2000 authority.

4 Partially funded with proceeds from the University's General Obligation Bonds and partially funded with the University’s Student Fee Revenue
Bonds, 1998 Series A.

5 The Hilltop Dormitory New and the Hilltop Student Rental Apartments comprise the Hilltop Housing Complex which was funded along with the
Parking Garage South with the proceeds of the Student Fee Revenue Bonds, 2000 Series A.

® The Intramural, Recreational & Intercollegiate Facilities is partially funded with Student Fee Revenue Bonds 2018 Series A.

Campuses and Physical Plant

General Information. Of the six campuses, Storrs is the largest campus with 3,426 acres. There are four
undergraduate regional campuses strategically located throughout the State in Avery Point, Stamford, Waterbury
and Hartford. As of Fall 2020, there are 101 residential facilities all on the Storrs campus, serviced by eight large
dining halls, and three residential facilities on the Stamford campus. Together they have the capacity to provide
room and board for approximately 12,600 graduate and undergraduate students. For Fiscal Year 2021, the
University developed a COVID-19 de-densification plan that included housing less than 50% or approximately
5,200 students. The University closed the Torrington campus in 2016 and sold the land and buildings to a private
purchaser in June 2020. The University Extension facility remains active at the Torrington location and is expected
to remain there through June 2029 in order to fulfill the terms of a gift. The University is a tenant in the Extension
facility. In addition to the regional campuses, the University includes the University of Connecticut School of Law,
located in Hartford, and UConn Health, located in Farmington. Collectively these campuses are serving a student
body of almost 32,700 in the 2020-21 academic year.

Academic Programs and Degrees Conferred

The University offers a broad spectrum of liberal arts and sciences, professional and graduate education
degree programs through its 14 colleges and schools, including the School of Dental Medicine, School of Medicine
and School of Law. The University confers eight kinds of undergraduate degrees in 117 majors, 17 graduate
degrees in 88 research and professional practice fields of study and 6 graduate professional programs. The
University also offers individualized majors and interdisciplinary fields of study. The University has several special
facilities and programs. Research and academic program support is carried out both in the departments of 14
schools and colleges and at more than 100 research centers and institutes across all University campuses.

COMPETITION AND COMPETITIVENESS
Accreditation and Ranking

The New England Commission of Higher Education and several other accreditation bodies for specific
schools and programs accredit the University.

The National Science Foundation ranks the University 59 out of 408 public universities in the country in
research and development spending. The Carnegie Foundation currently classifies the institution with only 94 other
public institutions nationwide in the highest category of Doctoral Universities (Very High Research Activity). To
qualify for this classification, universities must annually award at least 20 doctorates and demonstrate high levels of
research based on several aggregate and per-capita (full-time faculty) measures, including research and
development expenditures, postdoctoral appointees, non-faculty research staff, and doctoral conferrals in
humanities, social sciences, STEM fields, and other fields (e.g., business, education, public policy, social work).

The quality of the University’s diverse graduate programs is enhanced by the presence of exceptional
graduate students. Over 6,700 students matriculated in graduate degree programs in academic year 2020-21; of this
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figure approximately 2,100 are supported on merit based graduate assistantships. This support is available in 88
fields of study in the arts and sciences and professional disciplines.

Student Admissions and Enrollment

Admissions. The University continues to be in high demand with 37,000 freshmen applications for all
campuses for the Fall 2020 entering class. The University of Connecticut is rated as “highly competitive” by
Barron’s Profiles of American Colleges 2020, 35th Edition. Also, the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) scores for
students entering the University consistently exceed the statewide and national SAT score averages.

Schedule of Freshmen Enrollment - Storrs Campus
Fall 2016 — 2020

Change in Enrolled as

Freshmen Change in Enrolled as  a Percentage
Fall Applications Applications Accepted Enrolled A Percentage of Accepted
2016 35,980 2.9 17,560 3,822 1.3 21.8
2017 34,198 5.0 16,360 3,683 (3.6) 22.5
2018 34,886 2.0 17,015 3,749 1.8 22.0
2019 35,096 0.6 17,346 3,603 (3.9) 20.7
2020 34,437 (1.9 19,316 3,825 6.2 19.8

While overall yield decreased for Fall 2020, amidst a record sized entering class, out-of-state and
international yield both increased over the prior year. The number of international first year students was 461, the
third highest number of entering international first year students in the University’s history.

Average Total SAT Scores*
Fall 2016 - 2020

Storrs Regional Connecticut National

Fall Campus Campuses Average Average
2016 1233 1022 1000 1002
2017** 1294 1093 1041 1060
2018 1306 1106 1053 1068
2019 1296 1113 1046 1059
2020 1281 1080 1039 1051

*Excluding the writing component
**For fall 2017 and forward, results are reflective of a newly designed SAT and
therefore, cannot be compared to previous year’s results.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Enrollment. Undergraduate enrollment at all campuses increased from Fall 2016 through 2020 as set forth

below.
Total Enrollment Data (Head Count)'
Fall 2016 — 2020

Undergraduates 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Storrs 19,324 19,241 19,133 18,847 18,917

Regional Campuses 4,306 4,604 4,845 5,053 5,454

Total 23,630 23,845 23,978 23,900 24,371

Graduates/Professionals’ 7,810 7,745 7,668 7,787 7,652

UConn Health

Medicine 408 411 425 444 449

Dental Medicine 179 181 186 202 197

Total 387 392 611 646 646

Grand Total 32,027 32,182 32,257 32,333 32.669

! Includes non-degree and part-time students.

2 Includes master’s and doctoral students at all campuses, including UConn Health, and students in the

professional degree programs in Law and Pharmacy.
Percentage of Enrollment by Residence Status
Fall 2016 - 2020
Undergraduate Graduate/Professional
Storrs Campus All Campuses Total University (excl. Schools of
Medicine and Dental Medicine)

Fall In-State Out-of-State In-State Out-of-State In-State Out-of-State
2016 72.5 27.5 76.8 23.2 61.4 38.6
2017 72.0 28.0 76.3 23.7 61.9 38.1
2018 71.5 28.5 76.2 23.8 63.2 36.8
2019 72.5 27.5 77.2 22.8 62.5 37.5
2020 72.4 27.6 717.3 22.7 65.2 34.8

Tuition and Other Fees (Storrs and Regional Campuses)

Pursuant to State law, the Board of Trustees is authorized to adopt a comprehensive schedule of tuition and
other fees, which is expected to prevail during the following fiscal year.

Tuition. For the academic year 2021, students classified as full-time undergraduate residents of Connecticut
will pay tuition of $14,406. Full-time out-of-state undergraduates will pay $37,074 per year. In the 2021 academic
year, total tuition revenues are budgeted to be $454.8 million. For the academic year 2022, full-time undergraduate
residents will pay tuition of $15,031, and full-time out-of-state undergraduates will pay tuition of $37,699 per year.

Mandatory Fees. For academic year 2021, undergraduate students must pay a General University Fee of
$1380 per year. Students also pay $2,048 per year in other fees, of which $580 is for student health services, $500
is for the Student Recreation Center, $190 is for various student-controlled organizations, $468 is for infrastructure
maintenance, $160 is a transit fee, and $150 is a Technology Fee. Due to COVID-19, the University has reduced
certain fees for students electing to take all on-line courses in academic year 2021. Commencing in 1998, certain
fees have been pledged for the payment of debt service on the University’s Special Obligation Bonds. See
“UNIVERSITY FINANCES - University Indebtedness” in this Appendix A.
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Other Fees. There are numerous optional fees at the University. The primary optional fees for the
academic year 2021 are the room ($7,238) and board ($6,020) fee. Higher and lower cost meal plan options are
available.

In-State Undergraduate Tuition & Other Fees
Academic Years 2017 - 2021

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Tuition $11,224  $11,998  $12,848 $13,798  $14,406
Room & Board' 12,172 12,514 12,874 13,258 13258
General University Fee 1,914 1,914 1,334 1,380 1,380
Other Fees’ 928 968 1,548 2,048 2,048
Total $26,238  $27,394 $28,604 $30,484  $31,092

! The Board Fee reflects the cost of the Value Meal Plan. Lower and higher cost meal plan options are available.
2 Other Fees includes fees collected by the University on behalf of various student-controlled organizations.

3 Beginning in 2019, the Student Health Service Fee was moved from the General University Fee category to Other

Fees.
FY 2021 Undergraduate Tuition and Fees
Peer University Comparison*
In-State Out-of-State
Boston College $60,447 $60,447
Boston University 58,072 58,072
Syracuse University 55,926 55,926
Northeastern University 55,452 55,452
Quinnipiac University 50,760 50,760
University of Vermont 19,062 43,950
Pennsylvania State University 18,450 35,514
University of Connecticut 17,834 40,502
University of Massachusetts 16,439 36,427
Rutgers University 15,407 32,189
University of Delaware 14,650 36,080
University of Maryland 10,778 36,890
*Per the 2018 College Board Admitted Student Questionnaire,
peers include those institutions which share the most cross-
admits with the University of Connecticut. Source of tuition and
fee rates is institution websites.
Student Financial Aid

The University provides financial aid and financial counseling. The University has a policy of admitting
students without regard to financial ability to pay and a policy of providing assistance to those admitted who
demonstrate need. Approximately 76% of all undergraduates are receiving some form of financial aid.

Scholarships, Grants and Work-Study. In addition to University financial aid, there are a number of
state, federal and private student financial aid programs available, including the Federal Pell Grant of $639 to
$6,345 (for Fiscal Year 2021) and the Federal Supplemental Education Opportunities Grant (SEOG) of up to
$4,000. Both are awarded annually based on need. In addition, the University offers a number of merit scholarships.
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The University also offers Federal Work-Study employment, which is need-based, and Student Labor employment,
which is available to all students.

Loan Programs. There are several loan programs at the University. Federal Direct Subsidized Stafford
Loans are based on financial need, and the Federal Direct Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are available to students
who do not qualify for the Federal Direct Subsidized Stafford Loans. Additionally, there is the Federal Direct
Parent Loan to Undergraduate Students (PLUS) program, and the Federal Direct Graduate PLUS loan is available
to eligible graduate students.

Tuition Waivers and Graduate Assistantships. The University is required by law to waive tuition for
certain veterans and children of veterans, certain students over the age of 62, graduate assistants, and certain other
students. The University is required by collective bargaining agreements to waive tuition for dependents of certain
employees. The foregone revenue resulting from all such waivers in the 2021 academic year is forecasted at $80.6
million.

Financial Aid to University Students (excluding Tuition Waivers)
for Fiscal Years 2017 — 2021 (in millions)

201 2018 2019 2020 2021

Forecast
University Supported $112.4 S$119.5 $129.2  $1429 $153.1
State 9.0 8.9 9.0 9.7 10.9
Federal 282 31.2 35.3 46.2 35.1
Other! 10.9 10.6 14.7 12.9 17.5
Grand Total $160.5 $170.2 $188.2 $211.7 $216.6

! Other funding comes from private sources such as the Foundation and Endowments.

UNIVERSITY FINANCES

Financial Management

The University’s Board of Trustees has the authority for fiscal oversight of the University. In addition to
the State appropriation, the University receives tuition, fees, auxiliary (including room, board and athletics), grants
and contract, and other revenues. Some of these revenues may be restricted or dedicated as to use by the terms of
the appropriation, gift, grant or contract.

The authority granted to the University in the Act builds upon the successful implementation of the
operational autonomy and responsibility provided in several pieces of legislation known as the Flexibility Acts,
enacted in the early 1990’s. The University became responsible and accountable for its operational decisions
independent of many of the previously imposed regulatory requirements. The enactment of UCONN 2000 extended
the authority vested in the University by the Flexibility Acts.

The financial statements contained in this official statement reflect budget execution results that are based
upon spending plans and operating and capital budgets approved by the Board of Trustees. In addition, the Joint
Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board, provides oversight of all University financial reporting and
processes and internal control systems, as well as direct engagement in the approval of independent auditing
services to augment the University’s internal audit capacity and the work performed by State auditors (the
“Auditors of Public Accounts”). The Auditors of Public Accounts annually issue an Independent Auditors’ Report
on the financial statements of the University.

In accordance with statutory requirements, a Construction Management Oversight Committee was
established in 2006. The CMOC is made up of seven (7) members, four (4) appointed by the Governor and General
Assembly and three (3) appointed by the University of Connecticut’s Board of Trustees, all for four year terms.
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Following expiration of their appointment terms and absent new appointments, the four non-UConn members
resigned. The non-UConn appointing authorities have not made new appointments. Notwithstanding that the
meetings of the CMOC continued to be noticed, the committee was unable to act in the absence of a quorum. As a
result, in 2015, the University transferred the duties of the CMOC to the Buildings, Grounds and Environment
Committee of the Board. Until such time as the legislature makes the required appointments or eliminates the
statutory requirement for the committee, the Board deemed it prudent to assume responsibility to review and
approve the University's construction management policies and procedures and accept the reports of the
Construction Assurance Officer.

The University has also implemented and staffed an organizational structure for capital program
contracting and procurement and has engaged an outside auditor to perform annual audits of the UCONN 2000
program.

Financial Statements of the University

The audited financial statements of the University of Connecticut and the University of Connecticut Health
Center (excluding the University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc.) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 are
included as Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 to this Official Statement.

Below is a five-year presentation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for

the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020. See “UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
HEALTH CENTER?” below in this Appendix A for the same information for UConn Health.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

(8 in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees '
Federal grants and contracts
State and local grants and contracts
Nongovernmental grants and contracts

Sales and services of educational departments

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 2
Other sources
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Scholarships and fellowships
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State appropriation
State debt service commitment for interest
Federal and state financial aid
Gifts
Investment income
Interest expense
Disposal of property and equipment, net
Other nonoperating revenue (expenses), net
Net Nonoperating Revenues
Loss Before Other Changes in Net Position

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
State debt service commitment for principal
Capital grants and gifts
Additions to permanent endowments
Athletic Conference Exit Fee

Net Other Changes in Net Position

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

NET POSITION

Net Position — Beginning of Year, Adjusted

Net Position — End of Year

Unaudited

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 341,809 $ 367,351 $ 386,921 $ 396,780 $ 422,519
104,725 100,397 106,561 121,593 125,936
21,200 16,931 19,441 17,959 19,944
19,490 28,005 18,386 23,577 21,042
20,543 20,325 23,708 22,710 15,688
210,455 209,851 210,990 211,036 169,016
10,758 11,909 14,009 29,750 31,960
728,980 754,769 780,016 823,405 806,105
557,497 556,411 569,359 569,872 602,873
287,553 349,328 338,545 417,689 597,737
245,871 245,357 264,456 279,602 257,977
19,737 19,039 19,655 21,063 20,167
98,767 104,807 108,185 119,346 117,870
12,437 11,791 8,870 11,409 23,367
1,221,862 1,286,733 1,309,070 1,418,981 1,619,991
(492,882) (531,964) (529,054) (595,576) (813,886)
384,747 374,113 342,987 356,898 376,866
53,092 64,757 70,740 77,333 78,963
38,968 34,800 37,986 42,222 64,549
25,380 23,628 19,732 28,185 21,790
1,448 2,996 6,059 11,957 7,881
(51,333) (59,129) (64,672) (70,460) (71,102)
(8,486) (1,418) (1,524) (2,345) (1,912)
(3,893) (1,776) (2,475) 745 207
439,923 437,971 408,833 444,535 477,242
(52,959) (93,993) (120,221) (151,041) (336,644)
103,400 281,576 187,269 154,405 -
5,071 1,388 5,099 3,907 2,276
14 1,149 338 171 171
- - - - (16,436)
108,485 284,113 192,706 158,483 (13,989)
55,526 190,120 72,485 7,442 (350,633)
997,599 1,053,125 7,743 3 91,418 * 98,860
$ 1,053,125 $ 1,243,245 $ 80,228 $ 98,860 $ (251,773)

! Net of scholarship allowances of $140,283, $148,415, $156,962, $172,581, and $182,914 respectively.
? Net of scholarship allowances of $4,056, $4,981, $6,495, $7,827, and $8,563 respectively.

3 During fiscal year 2018, the University of Connecticut adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. As a result, beginning net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was restated by $1,235,502 for the cumulative effect of applying this standard.

* The University of Connecticut overstated compensated absences liability reported as of June 30, 2018. This amount included fringe benefit costs for defined benefit plans
that were also included in net pension and net OPEB liabilities upon implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions . As a result, beginning net position for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2019 was restated by $11,190.

* The University did not issue bonds secured by the State's Debt Service Commitment during fiscal year 2020 so no additional State Debt Service Commitment for Principal

was recorded for fiscal year end 2020.
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Budget and Budgeting Procedure of the University

The University submits a biennial operating budget request to the Governor and General Assembly through
the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management (the Governor’s fiscal office). The operating budget request
sets forth a proposed expenditure plan for the amount necessary to meet cost increases while providing a constant
level of services. It may also include an amount for new or expanded programs. The operating budget includes
various revenue sources including the State appropriation, tuition, fees, auxiliaries and other revenue sources. The
Governor may reduce State agency allotments by not more than 5% unless approved by the Appropriations
Committee of the General Assembly, which shall, within ten days, approve or reject such reduction. The Board of
Trustees annually approves separate Spending Plans for the University and UConn Health. The Fiscal Year 2021
Spending Plan was approved by the Board of Trustees on June 24, 2020. An updated Fiscal Year 2021 budget
forecast was provided to the Board of Trustees on September 30, 2020. See “UNIVERSITY FINANCES-State
Support of the University-Appropriations” in this Appendix A.

UConn Health submits a separate operating budget request and receives a separate appropriation and
allotment. For discussion of UConn Health, see “UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT HEALTH CENTER” in this
Appendix A.

During each fiscal year, the Board of Trustees must quarterly submit to the General Assembly and the
Office of Policy and Management, a report of the actual expenditures of the University’s Operating and Research
Funds.

The University’s Capital Budget request process has been replaced by the Act. The Act provides for a
thirty-two year Capital Budget program of the University and authorizes $4,282.9 million to be financed by general
obligation bonds secured by the State’s Debt Service Commitment of the University. The estimated cost of
UCONN 2000 projects which is not to be financed by the University’s Bonds secured by the State Debt Service
Commitment may be funded by the issuance of the University’s Special Obligation Bonds, other University Debt
Obligations, State General Obligation Bonds or by gifts or other revenue or borrowing resources of the University.
For Bonds secured by the State Debt Service Commitment, phase I for Fiscal Years 1996-99 totaled $382 million,
phase II for Fiscal Years 2000-05 totaled $580 million and phase III for Fiscal Years 2005-27 totals $3,320.9
million. The University is required to provide a semi-annual update as to the progress of capital projects approved
as part of UCONN 2000.

University Budget (Storrs and Regional Campuses)

Financial Impact on the University from COVID-19 for Fiscal Year 2020. The budget planned on a
deficit of $19.6 million to be mitigated through additional salary savings from attrition and fund transfers from
prior budgeted projects and other initiatives. Through these mitigating actions, at the six-month mark, the
University was on track to end the Fiscal Year with a small $3.9 million surplus. When the pandemic struck, the
University refunded $33.6 million in housing and dining revenues after sending most of the residential students
home. This substantial loss was primarily offset through federal CARES Act funding and departmental spending
savings attributed to a spending freeze. The resulting unaudited Current Funds operating loss for Fiscal Year 2020
was $2.4 million.

Anticipated Financial and Operational Impact from COVID-19 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. The
continued impact of COVID-19 on social interaction, travel, economies and financial markets may in the future
adversely affect University finances and operations. It may materially adversely affect (i) the ability of the
University to conduct its operations and/or the cost of operations and the revenues generated thereby, and (ii) the
returns on and value of the University’s investment portfolio. The full impact of COVID-19 and the scope of any
adverse impact on University finances and operations in the future cannot be fully determined at this time.
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With the current COVID-19 pandemic, the University faces tremendous uncertainty for Fiscal Year 2021.
In particular, operating revenues will very much depend on the University’s ability to remain open for in-person
instruction on all campuses as scheduled, maintain enrollment, and maintain occupancy in the housing and dining
program. The current budget forecast includes better than anticipated revenues from the strong demand by degree-
seeking students as well as strategies to recruit more out-of-state students and contract with universities overseas to
keep our international students. Some factors which have hurt the fiscal situation are the assumed continuation of
the pandemic into the spring semester and the decision to reduce housing capacity to less than 50%. The newest
challenge to the budget is the increasing need for student safety and financial aid for students experiencing
economic hardship. The University has already implemented $48.0 million of budget reductions through
management furloughs ($4 million), program cuts ($13 million), capital reallocations ($9 million) and departmental
expense savings ($22 million). Therefore, as of September 30, 2020, the University was projecting a shortfall of
$27.5 million due to the impact of the pandemic. On November 17, 2020, the State of Connecticut Office of Policy
and Management (“OPM”) approved an allocation of $20.0 million to the University, to offset the refunds issued to
students last spring from the Coronavirus Relief Fund established within the Federal CARES Act following recent
guidance from the U.S. Treasury Department. As a result, the current Fiscal Year 2021 budget forecast includes
$1,441.9 million in expenditures and $1,434.4 million of revenue, yielding a forecasted net loss of $7.5 million. If
the University is forced to close earlier than planned, the net loss as of the date of the Preliminary Official
Statement was forecasted to be $29.4 million. As of the date hereof, the forecast has increased to a net loss forecast
of $35.8 million. As the remainder of the year unfolds, the State has indicated that it will continue to evaluate any
additional funding opportunities to address the pandemic impact and the University will continue to reduce
expenses where possible to mitigate the deficit.

Fiscal Year 2021 Revenue. For Fiscal Year 2021, State support is budgeted at a level of $396.5 million
(allotment $208.8 million and fringe benefits/adjustments $187.7 million including year-end accounting accruals),
an increase of $19.8 million or 5.3% more than the Fiscal Year 2020 amount. State support is the second largest
source of revenue for the University. Tuition is the largest source of revenue (excluding waivers) and is budgeted
at $454.8 million, an increase of $9.5 million or 2.1% over the Fiscal Year 2020 amount. Tuition revenue
collections reflect a $608 annual rate increase. Fee revenue is comprised of course fees from summer school, part-
time, and non-degree students as well as self-supporting programs (off-campus MBA, EMBA, etc.). Also included
in this category is the General University Fee, which supports multiple student support programs. Finally, there are
various other fees included in this category such as the Student Recreation Center Fee, Infrastructure Maintenance
Fee, Application Fees and Late Payment Fees. The fee collections for Fiscal Year 2021 are budgeted to be $133.6
million, a decrease of $20.9 million or 13.5% less than the Fiscal Year 2020 amount. Due to COVID-19, the
University has reduced certain fees for students electing to take on-line courses. Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue is
budgeted to be $114.4 million, which is a decrease of $63.2 million or 35.6% less than the Fiscal Year 2020
amount. Residence halls and rental properties, dining services and athletics generate most of the Auxiliary
Enterprise Revenue. For Fiscal Year 2021, the University is only housing approximately 5,200 students or less
than 50% to de-densify the campus. With respect to the Research Fund, the granting agency or donor restricts most
of the revenues. Research Fund revenues for Fiscal Year 2021 are budgeted to be $124.3 million, which is a $5.4
million increase or 4.5% more than Fiscal Year 2020.

Fiscal Year 2021 Expenditures. Total Fiscal Year 2021 expenditures of $1,441.9 million are budgeted to
decrease by $22.8 million or 1.6% less than the Fiscal Year 2020 amount. Personal services expenditures are
budgeted to reach $543.9 million or $12.3 million more than Fiscal Year 2020. Fringe benefit expenditures are
budgeted to be $320.8 million or $14.9 million more than Fiscal Year 2020. Financial Aid expenditures are
budgeted to be $216.6 million, which is an increase of $4.9 million or 2.3% more than the Fiscal Year 2020
amount.

The University budget is normally at risk for the impacts of potential spring semester enrollment changes,
decreases in State support, and increasing fringe benefit rates, which are determined by the State. In addition to
these ongoing operating budget risks, the continuation of the COVID-19 global pandemic may adversely affect
University finances and operations. Therefore, the full impact of the pandemic on the University cannot be fully
determined at this time.
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In addition to actual results of operations for Fiscal Years 2017-2020, the following schedule reflects the
Fiscal Year 2021 budget forecast.

Statement of Current Funds Operations (in millions)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
Current Funds Revenues: (Unaudited) Forecast
Operating Fund
State Support $ 374.0 $ 3429 $ 356.7 $ 376.7 $ 396.5
Tuition (Net of Discounts) 377.5 402.7 426.4 445.3 454.8
Fees 133.5 136.1 137.7 154.5 133.6
Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 214.8 217.5 218.9 177.6 114.4
All Other Revenues 130.6 137.6 173.6 189.3 210.8
Total Operating Fund $1,230.4 $1,236.8 $1,313.3 $1,343.4 $1,310.1
Research Fund 107.5 107.5 122.2 118.9 124.3
Total Current Funds Revenues $1,337.9 $1,344.3 $1,435.5 $1,462.3 $1,434.4
Current Funds Expenditures:
Operating Fund
Personal Services $ 4958 $ 505.0 $ 501.2 $ 531.6 $ 5439
Fringe Benefits 241.7 259.1 285.9 305.9 320.8
Other Expenses 219.5 241.2 258.5 250.9 200.8
Equipment 17.3 29.6 23.2 22.3 11.3
Student Financial Aid 160.5 170.2 188.2 211.7 216.6
Non-mandatory/Projects 94.9 31.7 49.6 225 25.2
Total Operating Fund $1,229.7 $1,236.8  $1,306.6  $1,344.9 $1,318.6
Research Fund Expenditures 101.2 105.1 122.4 119.8 123.3
Total Current Funds Expenditures $1,330.9 $1,341.9 $1,429.0 $1,464.7 $1,441.9
Net Gain (Loss) $ 7.0 $ 24 $ 65 (24 ¢ 1.5

Note: use of decimals may result in rounding differences — Totals may not add due to rounding.

State Support of the University — Appropriations

The State develops a biennial budget, which includes the University appropriation request. The
appropriations are applicable to each specific year and the second year’s appropriation is subject to review and
adjustment. The University has historically received a substantial percentage of its operating revenue from the State
General Fund Appropriation. In the Connecticut State system of higher education, the University of Connecticut
receives more State support than any other State institution of higher education. The annual State appropriation the
University receives is in the form of a block grant and is allotted quarterly. The University has independent
authority to purchase goods and services; hire, fire and promote administrators, faculty and staff; and plan, design
and construct capital projects. Public Act 19-117 appropriated $211.3 million to the University for Fiscal Year
2021. The Fiscal Year 2021 appropriation has since been reduced by the State by $2.5 million for allocable bottom
line savings for the State budget. This reduction results in a forecasted allotment of $208.8 million for Fiscal Year
2021.
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No assurance can be made that the State will not change the Fiscal Year 2021 funding prior to the end of
such Fiscal Year. Any State funding cuts are expected to be managed by the University through reduced hiring,
reduced operating costs, fewer projects, and other deficit mitigation efforts.

The University requested $27.5 million from the State for Fiscal Year 2021 to address the extraordinary
financial impact brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic. On November 17, 2020, the State allocated the
University $20.0 million from the Coronavirus Relief Fund established within the federal CARES Act. As the
remainder of the year unfolds, the State has indicated that it will continue to evaluate any additional funding
opportunities to address the pandemic impact.

Schedule of State Operating Support and Fringe Benefits to the University
for Fiscal Years 2017 — 2021 (in millions)

Operating Fringe

Fiscal Appropriations' Benefits/ Operating
Year and Allotments Adjustments Total
2017 $220.8 $153.2 $374.0
2018 191.3 151.7 343.0
2019 194.7 162.0 356.7
2020 198.5 178.2 376.7
2021 208.8 187.7 396.5

IExcludes State Debt Service Commitment for UCONN 2000 general
obligation bonds issued to fund University capital projects.

State Support of the University - Bond Issuance

In addition to appropriating funds for the general operating support of the University, the State has
authorized its general obligation bonds to fund capital projects of the University.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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State Legislative Bond Authorizations for the University
for Fiscal Years 1996 - 2027

Fiscal State General UCONN

Year Obligation Bonds 2000' Total
1996 $18,000,000 2 $112,542,000 $130,542,000
1997 9,400,000 2 112,001,000 121,401,000
1998 93,146,000 93,146,000
1999 64,311,000 64,311,000
2000 2,000,000 * 130,000,000 132,000,000
2001 20,000,000 * 100,000,000 120,000,000
2002 100,000,000 100,000,000
2003 100,000,000 100,000,000
2004 100,000,000 100,000,000
2005* 100,000,000 100,000,000
2006 79,000,000 79,000,000
2007 89,000,000 89,000,000
2008 8,000,000 ° 115,000,000 123,000,000
2009 140,000,000 140,000,000
2010 0 0
2011 138,800,000 138,800,000
2012 23,000,000 7 157,200,000 180,200,000
2013 20,000,000 ¢ 143,000,000 163,000,000
2014 204,400,000 204,400,000
2015 131,500,000 ¢ 315,500,000 447,000,000
2016 25,000,000 312,100,000 337,100,000
2017 16,000,000 240,400,000 256,400,000
2018 200,000,000 200,000,000
2019 200,000,000 200,000,000
2020 197,200,000 197,200,000
2021 260,000,000 260,000,000
2022 190,500,000 190,500,000
2023 125,100,000 125,100,000
2024 84,700,000 84,700,000
2025 56,000,000 56,000,000
2026 14,000,000 14,000,000
2027 9,000,000 9,000,000
Total $272,900,000 $4,282,900,000  $4,555,800,000

(Footnotes on the following page)
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I Secured by State Debt Service Commitment.

2 For Babbidge Library on the Storrs campus.

3 For the development of a new downtown campus for the University of Connecticut in
Waterbury.

4 For Fiscal Year 2005, $50,000,000 was authorized under UCONN 2000 Phase II and an

additional $50,000,000 was authorized under UCONN 2000 Phase III. Fiscal Years 2005-24

represent authorizations under UCONN 2000 Phase IIT including UConn Health projects. No

UConn Health projects were authorized in Phase I or Phase II.

Special Act 04-2 authorized the issuance of $8,000,000 of State General Obligation Bonds for

renovation, alterations and improvements to the University’s Law Library in Hartford which

was approved by the State Bond Commission on March 28, 2008.

Public Act 11-57, as amended by Public Act 14-98, authorized the issuance of $169,500,000

of State General Obligation Bonds to create a Technology Park on the Storrs Campus.

$18,000,000 was approved by the State Bond Commission on August 26, 2011. $20,000,000

was approved by the State Bond Commission on April 26, 2013. $131,500,000 was approved

by the State Bond Commission on May 11, 2015.

Public Act 11-75 authorized $5,000,000 in State General Obligation Bonds for a
comprehensive cancer center and the University sponsored health disparities institute which
was approved by the Bond Commission on October 28, 2011.

Public Act 15-1 (sections 2 & 21) authorized the issuance of $41 million of State General
Obligation Bonds for the UConn Health Integrated Electronic Medical Record (EMR). The
Integrated EMR will provide the health information technology required for compliance with
federal and state regulations, enable interoperability and improve efficiencies for all UConn
Health entities with access to clinical data updated in real-time in a single patient database.
$25,000,000 was approved by the State Bond Commission on January 29, 2016, and the final
$16,000,000 was approved on February 1, 2017.
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Grants and Contracts

Revenue from federal, state, local and non-governmental grants and contracts totaled $166.9 million in
Fiscal Year 2020, representing 20.7% of total operating revenues reported by the University in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020, included in this
Appendix A. If nongovernmental grants are excluded, the revenue from federal, state and local governmental
grants and contracts, totaled $145.8 million for this time period, which represented 18.1% of total operating
revenues.

Grants and Contracts
for Fiscal Years 2016 - 2020
(in Millions of Dollars)

Fiscal Year Amount
2016 $145.4
2017 145.3
2018 144 .4
2019 163.1
2020 166.9

The University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc.

Two other entities also support the mission of the University: The University of Connecticut Foundation,
Inc., (the “Foundation”), and the University of Connecticut Law School Foundation, Inc., (the “Law School
Foundation”). For financial reporting purposes, the Law School Foundation is included as a component unit with
the University; the Foundation is an independent, privately governed institution, which is separately audited. On
July 1, 2017, the Law School Foundation entered into an agreement with the Foundation and transferred all gift
assets and operations to the Foundation. The Foundation operates exclusively for charitable and educational
purposes, raising funds to promote, encourage, and assist education and research at the University and UConn
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Health. The Foundation solicits and accepts donations of properties, monies, and securities and invests and
administers these gifts. The Foundation materially supports the mission of both the University and UConn Health.

Gift revenue to the University, both capital and noncapital, is derived from gifts made directly to the
University and from the Foundation. These spendable funds are provided to the University for educational,
cultural, recreational, and research activities. The Foundation disburse funds to the University as requests are
made, provided the request is in accordance with donor restrictions, if any. These disbursements paid to the
University and to third parties on behalf of the University from both Foundations totaled approximately $26.0
million in Fiscal Year 2020 compared to $35.3 million in Fiscal Year 2019. In addition, the University receives
gifts directly. Total non-operating gifts and capital gifts and grants revenue to the University from all sources
amounted to $1.6 million and $3.0 million in Fiscal Years 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Giving University-wide continued at record levels, with contributions of $89.5 million to support the
University students, faculty, and programs during Fiscal Year 2020. Of the $89.5 million in new gifts and
commitments, $23.1 million was directed for scholarships and fellowships, $26.3 million for program support,
$16.5 million for research, $6.3 million for faculty support, and $17.3 million for capital improvements. Donors
contributed $25.0 million to the University’s endowment.

The University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc.
Summary of Total Assets, Revenue and Expenditures
For Fiscal Years 2016 - 2020

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Assets
Endowment assets $ 362,419 $ 401,505 $ 446,492 $ 458,743 $ 458,742
All other assets 100,473 102,645 113,857 138,866 158,750
Total Assets $462,892 $504,150 $560,349 $597,609 $617,492
Support and Revenue
Contributions and educational support $ 40,741 $ 35,603 $ 65,045 $ 40,184 $ 38,334
Payment from the University 9,450 10,050 10,480 11,167 12,150
Investment income, net (3,070) 45,653 32,925 21,987 24,051
Other revenues 1,694 1,985 1,591 1,669 1,050
Total Support and Revenue 48,815 93,291 110,041 75,007 75,585
Expenditures
Disbursements to and on behalf of the University $ 34,181 $ 27,598 $ 28,396 $§ 35344 $ 26,049
Foundation expenses (development, asset mgt, admin) 19,711 20,932 22,790 24,049 23,081
Total Expenditures $ 53,8902 § 48,530 $§ 51,186 $ 59,393 $ 49,130
Less change in net assets not owned by Foundation (109)
Support and Revenues Over/Under Expenditures $ (4968) $ 44,761 $ 58,855 $§ 15,614 $§ 26,455

University Indebtedness

The UCONN 2000 Act, as amended, empowers the University to borrow money and issue securities to
finance the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, improvement or equipping of any UCONN 2000 project and to
provide for the security and payment of those securities and to refund such securities. Toward this purpose, to date,
the University has issued General Obligation Bonds and Special Obligation Bonds, entered into a privately placed
Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement, and assumed a promissory note associated with the purchase of the
Nathan Hale Inn on the Storrs Campus.
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The University of Connecticut General Obligation Bonds are issued pursuant to the Master Indenture of
Trust, as amended (the “Master Indenture”), and are secured by the full faith and credit of the University and are
additionally secured by the pledge of and a lien upon the State Debt Service Commitment. The State Debt Service
Commitment is defined by the Act and the Master Indenture as the commitment by the State to pay an annual
amount for the punctual payment of Special Debt Service Requirements on securities issued as general obligations
of the University, as the same shall arise and shall become due and payable. Special Debt Service Requirements
include, among other things, the principal on serial General Obligation Bonds or sinking fund installments on term
General Obligation Bonds and interest accruing thereon. As of the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, the
University’s General Obligation Bonds principal outstanding will be $1,686,150,000 including the 2020 Bonds.

The University of Connecticut also has issued Special Obligation Bonds pursuant to the Special Obligation
Indenture of Trust, dated as of January 1, 1997, between the University, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as successor to State Street Bank & Trust Company, as Trustee, as amended (the “Special Obligation
Master Indenture”). The Board of Trustees approved the Special Obligation Master Indenture on November 8,
1996. Unlike the UCONN 2000 General Obligation Bonds that are paid from the State’s General Fund, debt
service on the Special Obligation Bonds is paid from certain pledged revenues, including student fees of the
University as defined in the Special Obligation Master Indenture. To date, ten projects have been authorized to
receive $374,180,000 of the UCONN 2000 Special Obligation Bond proceeds, and some of these projects also were
supported by State General Obligation Bonds or other funding. See “GOVERNANCE, ACADEMIC PROGRAMS
AND CAMPUSES — Status of UCONN 2000 Projects” in this Appendix A. As of the date of delivery of the 2020
Bonds, the Special Obligation Bonds principal outstanding will be $200,915,000.

A privately placed Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement (the “Lease”), with Caterpillar Financial
Services Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, secured by the University’s general obligation was entered into to
finance the cogeneration facility portion of the UCONN 2000 Heating Plant Upgrade project. The cogeneration
facility is part of the UCONN 2000 Heating Plant Upgrade project, as defined under the UCONN 2000 Act, which
generates substantially all of the needs for electrical power, heating and cooling on the main campus at Storrs. The
$81,900,000 original principal amount of the Lease, comprised of $75,000,000 executed in 2003, and, pursuant to
an amendment, an additional $6,900,000 executed in 2005, is a UCONN 2000 debt obligation entered into under
certain separately negotiated documents and agreements and is not secured by the Master Indenture or the Special
Obligation Master Indenture. Subsequent to 2005, the University has amended the Lease twice to lower interest
rates and reduce its monthly Lease payments. As of January 2017, the Lease interest rate became 2.22% resulting
in a monthly Lease payment of $461,645. As of the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, the principal amount of the
Lease outstanding will be $26,586,092 with a final maturity date of December 29, 2025. The UCONN 2000
Heating Plant Upgrade project also has been partially funded with General Obligation Bonds of the University
secured by the State Debt Service Commitment.

In addition to UCONN 2000 indebtedness, the University has certain other limited indebtedness; see
Schedule 1, “AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2019”.

The following schedule sets forth the debt service payments to be made in each University fiscal year on

the general obligation bonds issued and outstanding by the University as of the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds,
including the 2020 Bonds.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds!
as of December 17, 2020

Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds as of December 17, 2020

Outstanding General Obligation Bonds This Issue General Obligation Bonds
EYE June Principal Interest Subtotal Principal Interest Subtotal Total Debt I?ebt
30 - _ - I— Service
2021 $102,490,000 $33,740,000 $136,230,000 $ 0 $ 2,182,915 $ 2,182,915 $138,412,915
2022 107,130,000 62,084,231 169,214,231 20,365,000 13,549,125 33,914,125 203,128,356
2023 98,520,000 56,924,881 155,444,881 25,095,000 12,530,875 37,625,875 193,070,756
2024 98,925,000 52,125,881 151,050,881 20,170,000 11,331,625 31,501,625 182,552,506
2025 93,790,000 47,240,625 141,030,625 20,105,000 10,323,125 30,428,125 171,458,750
2026 90,045,000 42,657,550 132,702,550 19,990,000 9,357,775 29,347,775 162,050,325
2027 86,410,000 38,161,300 124,571,300 19,905,000 8,358,275 28,263,275 152,834,575
2028 82,630,000 33,898,550 116,528,550 19,805,000 7,363,025 27,168,025 143,696,575
2029 82,845,000 29,761,675 112,606,675 19,700,000 6,372,775 26,072,775 138,679,450
2030 76,270,000 25,826,950 102,096,950 19,610,000 5,387,775 24,997,775 127,094,725
2031 76,265,000 22,263,038 98,528,038 14,470,000 4,631,800 19,101,800 117,629,838
2032 76,265,000 18,471,575 94,736,575 8,010,000 3,908,300 11,918,300 106,654,875
2033 76,265,000 14,745,713 91,010,713 8,010,000 3,507,800 11,517,800 102,528,513
2034 76,265,000 11,398,888 87,663,888 8,010,000 3,107,300 11,117,300 98,781,188
2035 62,180,000 8,095,250 70,275,250 8,010,000 2,706,800 10,716,800 80,992,050
2036 51,175,000 5,227,050 56,402,050 8,010,000 2,386,400 10,396,400 66,798,450
2037 38,095,000 2,799,175 40,894,175 8,010,000 1,985,900 9,995,900 50,890,075
2038 22,535,000 1,076,100 23,611,100 8,010,000 1,585,400 9,595,400 33,206,500
2039 8,735,000 174,700 8,909,700 8,010,000 1,184,900 9,194,900 18,104,600
2040 8,010,000 784,400 8,794,400 8,794,400
2041 8,010,000 383,900 8,393,900 8,393,900
Totals? $1,406,835,000 $506,673,131 $1,913,508,131 $279,315,000 $112,930,190 $392,245,190 $2,305,753,321

!'Secured by State Debt Service Commitment, net of bonds previously refunded.
?Totals may not sum due to rounding.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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The following table sets forth all bonds and capital leases issued by the University under the UCONN 2000

program and outstanding as of the date of delivery of the 2020 Bonds, including the 2020 Bonds.
Total UCONN 2000 Debt Obligations Outstanding

Amount
Original Par Outstanding Final

Amount! Currently! Dated Date Maturity Date
General Obligation Debt Service Commitment
Bonds
GO DSC 2010 Series A $97,115,000 $4,855,000  May 25,2010 February 15, 2030
GO DSC 2010 Series A Refunding? 36,095,000 4,840,000  May 25,2010 February 15, 2021
GO DSC 2011 Series A 179,730,000 8,985,000  December 8,2011  February 15, 2031
GO DSC 2011 Series A Refunding? 31,905,000 4,710,000 December 8, 2011 February 15,2023
GO DSC 2013 Series A 172,660,000 29,670,000  July 31, 2013 August 15,2033
GO DSC 2013 Series A Refunding* 51,250,000 112,220,000  July 31, 2013 February 15, 2024
GO DSC 2014 Series A 109,050,000 4,075,000  April 22,2014 February 15, 2034
GO DSC 2014 Series A Refunding’ 92,940,000 76,325,000  April 22,2014 February 15, 2025
GO DSC 2015 Series A 220,165,000 20,665,000  April 16,2015 February 15, 2035
GO DSC 2015 Series A Refunding® 34,625,000 165,125,000  April 16,2015 February 15, 2026
GO DSC 2016 Series A 261,510,000 25,910,000  April 21,2016 March 15, 2036
GO DSC 2016 Series A Refunding’ 80,425,000 209,200,000  April 21,2016 March 15,2027
GO DSC 2017 Series A 311,200,000 18,050,000  January 19, 2017 January 15, 2037
GO DSC 2017 Series A Refunding® 33,950,000 264,520,000  January 19, 2017 January 15, 2022
GO DSC 2018 Series A 276,075,000 248,470,000 May 3,2018 April 15,2038
GO DSC 2019 Series A 174,785,000 51,910,000  May 8, 2019 November 1, 2038
GO DSC 2019 Series A Refunding® 64,680,000 157,305,000  May 8, 2019 November 1, 2028
GO DSC 2020 Series A 160,230,000 160,230,000  December 17,2020 February 15, 2041
GO DSC 2020 Series A Refunding'’ 119,085,000 119,085,000  December 17,2020 February 15, 2031

Total!16 $1,686,150,000
Special Obligation Student Fee Revenue Bonds'?
UCONN 2000 SPEC OB 2012-A Refunding'? 87,980,000 64,650,000  December 13,2012 November 15, 2029
UCONN 2000 SPEC OB 2018-A 141,725,000 136,265,000  March 29, 2018 November 15, 2047
Total'* ' $ 200,915,000

Capital Leases
Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement $ 75,000,000 $ 24,307,064 December 18,2003 December 29, 2025
Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement 6,900,000 2.279.027  August 15, 2005 December 29, 2025

Total'> 1

$ 26,586,092

! “Original Par Amount” includes bonds previously refunded. “Amount Currently Outstanding” is net of bonds previously refunded.
2 The General Obligation 2010-A Refunding Bonds refunded $35,885,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 1999-A, 2001-A, 2003-A and 2004-A Bonds.
3 The General Obligation 2011-A Refunding Bonds refunded $33,735,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2003-A and 2004 Bonds.
* The General Obligation 2013-A Refunding Bonds refunded $54,375,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2004A and 2005A Bonds.
5 The General Obligation 2014-A Refunding Bonds refunded $97,930,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2004A and 2005A Bonds.
©The General Obligation 2015-A Refunding Bonds refunded $38,550,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2006A Bonds.

’ The General Obligation 2016-A Refunding Bonds refunded $88,535,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2006A Refunding Bonds and 2007A Bonds.
8 The General Obligation 2017-A Refunding Bonds refunded $36,095,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2007A Refunding Bonds.
°The General Obligation 2019-A Refunding Bonds refunded $72,060,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2009A Refunding Bonds.
1 The General Obligation 2020-A Refunding Bonds refunded $138,340,000 of the outstanding GO DSC Series 2010A, 2011A and 2011 A Refunding Bonds.

" Debt Service on the General Obligation Bonds is payable from the Debt Service Commitment of the State.

12The SPEC OB 2010-A Refunding Bonds all outstanding principal was cash defeased on November 15, 2019.

13 The SPEC-OB-2012-A Refunding Bonds refunded all of the outstanding $75,430,000 SPEC-OB Series 2002-A Bonds and $96,130,000 Series

2002-A Refunding Bonds.

!4 Debt Service on the Special Obligation Bonds are payable from certain Pledged Revenues of the University as further defined in the Special

Obligation Indenture of Trust, dated as of January 1, 1997 as amended.
> Does not include capital lease obligations subject to annual appropriation.

!¢ Totals may not sum due to rounding.
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Employee Data

Faculty and Staff. As of Fall 2020, the University had 5,106 full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees. Full
and part-time faculty accounted for 1,909 FTE employees. The University hires adjunct lecturers on a semester-by-
semester basis, as needed, who are not included in the above employee count. In Fall 2020, 55.9% of full-time
teaching faculty were tenured, 15.7% were tenure track and the remaining were non-tenure track faculty. The
average age range of full-time faculty was 45-49. Additionally, the University also has 912 FTE graduate student
assistants who receive stipends; and other non-permanent employees (i.e. special payroll, students) not captured in
any of the prior categories.

Six bargaining units represented approximately 4,549 FTE union members as of November 2020.
Approximately 11% of University faculty and staff were non-union employees. The University bargains with two
units covering 3,851 FTE employees: the American Association of University Professors (AAUP) and the
University of Connecticut Professional Employees Association (UCPEA). Law school faculty, University exempt
(management) and certain temporary and part-time employees are not represented by bargaining units. The
remaining four unions covering 698 FTE employees bargain directly with the State. In addition, the University
bargains directly with the Graduate Employee Union Local 6950 (GEU-UAW) for graduate student assistants and
with the UAW for bargaining unit recognized in July 2018 of post-doctoral research associates.

The University has statutory authority to negotiate and enter into collective bargaining agreements with the
labor unions that represent its faculty (AAUP) and non-teaching professionals (UCPEA). The collective
bargaining agreements are currently in effect and will be in full force and effect through June 30, 2021.
Negotiations have commenced for the successor agreement with AAUP and are starting shortly with UCPEA. The
University has negotiated a successor agreement with the GEU-UAW which is currently in effect and will be in full
force and effect until June 30, 2022. The University has reached a tentative inaugural agreement with the UAW in
early 2020 that covers a unit of post-doctoral research associates that would be in effect through June 30, 2024 and
that agreement will need to be approved by the Connecticut General Assembly.

Retirement Plans and Post-Employment Benefits. Most State employees are eligible to receive
retirement benefits under a State retirement plan. Various retirement plans are available for University employees
none of which are administered by the University. Additional information on retirement benefits may be found in
the Notes to the University’s financial statements included as Schedule 1 herein.

Insurance and Litigation

Insurance. The University, as an agency of the State, relies upon sovereign immunity for protection from
liability. However, the University participates in the State’s program of liability coverage. The State is self-insured
for the first $4,000,000. The State purchases excess liability policies beyond its self-insured retention. The State
also purchases other coverages to mitigate risk, including property, casualty and hazard insurance for all State
agencies. The State pays the premiums for such insurance policies. The University may request disbursement of
insurance proceeds, which the State receives from a claim arising out of the loss of University property. The Act
authorizes the University to purchase insurance for its assets, actions and activities. With regard to design and
construction projects, the University requires errors and omissions insurance from the lead project design
professional (project architect of record), and selected sub-consultants on all construction projects. The University
requires that contractors engaged on all construction projects provide and maintain general liability, automobile and
statutory workers’ compensation coverage. With regard to builders risk policies and protection of construction
work in progress for existing buildings, the State, through its property policy provides builders risk coverage
subject to a deductible. The University requires the contractors to provide builders risk insurance for construction
projects involving new buildings. The University directly purchases workers’ compensation insurance as part of an
owner-controlled insurance program (OCIP) for select UCONN 2000 Health projects.

Litigation. The University (not including UConn Health) is currently defending various legal matters in
state and federal courts. None of those suits, either individually or in the aggregate, are likely to have a material
adverse impact on the University’s financial position.
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UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT HEALTH CENTER

An organizational unit of the University of Connecticut, UConn Health is a comprehensive State-owned
academic Health Center, which has the traditional tripartite missions of education, patient care and research. In
conjunction with this mission, UConn Health is focused on community service and public health. Its main campus
is located in a complex of buildings in suburban Farmington, Connecticut. UConn Health was established in 1961
and is currently comprised of the School of Medicine, the School of Dental Medicine (and their associated
Educational Clinics), the UConn John Dempsey Hospital, the University Medical Group, University of Connecticut
Finance Corporation, research laboratories, health sciences/medical library and administrative and other support
facilities. It operates more than 400 clinical and educational programs throughout Connecticut and is a referral
center for persons with certain illnesses requiring complex patient care. As of Fall 2020, UConn Health had 646
professional students in the Schools of Medicine and Dental Medicine, 290 graduate students in Master’s and
Doctoral programs, and approximately 780 residents, interns and postdoctoral fellows. It also provides an
extensive array of continuing education activities to health professionals throughout the State. UConn Health
submits separate operating and capital budgets to the Governor and the General Assembly and receives its
appropriation and allotment separate from the University. See “UNIVERSITY FINANCES - Budget and
Budgeting Procedure of the University” in this Appendix A. The University issued a Solicitation of Interest
seeking proposals for a public private partnership for its Clinical Enterprise (John Dempsey Hospital and UConn
Medical Group). See “University of Connecticut Health Center Clinical Operations” in this Appendix A.

GOVERNANCE, ACADEMIC PROGRAMS AND CAMPUSES

Board of Directors

Composition. The Board of Directors of UConn Health consists of up to 18 members. Pursuant to Section
35 of Public Act No. 01-173, the Board of Trustees for the University created the board of directors for the
governance of UConn Health, and has determined such duties and authority as it deemed necessary and appropriate
to delegate to said board of directors. The Board consists of nine members at large appointed by a nominating
committee of the Board of Directors, three members appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees, three
members appointed by the Governor and three voting ex-officio members (the Secretary of the State’s Office of
Policy and Management, the President of the University and the Commissioner of Public Health or their designees).

Membership. Currently, two positions on the Board of Directors are vacant. The name, term, position and
affiliation or profession of each member of the Board of Directors is as follows:

Name Term Ends  Position Affiliation/Profession
Kenneth Alleyne 2020* Member Orthopedic Surgeon, Eastern
Orthopedics
Francis X. Archambault Jr. 2016* Member Retired Emeritus Professor, University
of Connecticut
Richard M. Barry 2016* Member Deputy Chief Risk Officer, Key Bank
Andy F. Bessette 2016* Appointed by EVP & CAO, The Travelers Companies,
Chairperson, Board  Inc.
of Trustees
Richard T. Carbray Jr. 2015%* Appointed by Owner, Apex Pharmacy, Home Care and
Chairperson, Board  Nutritional Center
of Trustees
Cheryl A. Chase 2015%* Vice-Chair Co-President, Principal and General

Counsel, Chase Enterprises
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Name Term Ends Position Affiliation/Profession

Sanford Cloud, Jr. 2014* Chair; Appointed by  Chairman and CEO, The Cloud
Chairperson, Board  Company, LLC
of Trustees
John F. Droney 2016* Member Partner, Hinckley Allen Snyder, LLP
Mike Walsh Ex-Officio Undersecretary, Strategic Initiatives &

Accountability, Office of Policy &
Management, State of Connecticut

Joel Freedman 2017* Appointed by the Owner, Freedman Consulting, LLC
Governor

Thomas Katsouleas Ex-officio President, University of Connecticut

Timothy A. Holt 2016* Member Retired Director, Virtus Investment
Partners and MGIC Investment

Deidra Gifford Ex-officio Commissioner, Connecticut Department
of Public Health

Wayne Rawlins 2015% Member Vice President & Senior Medical

Director of Healthcare Services,
ConnectiCare, Inc.

Teresa M. Ressel 2012* Appointed by the Private Company Management
Governor

Kathleen D. Woods 2013* Appointed by the Chairperson, Farmington Woods Golf
Governor Club

* Board members continue to serve until re-appointed or replacements are appointed.

Duties of the University of Connecticut Health Center Board of Directors. Subject to duties outlined by
the University’s Board of Trustees, the Board is authorized to establish rules and general policies for the
governance of UConn Health and its academic programs. The Board of Directors manages and directs the
expenditures of UConn Health. The Board of Directors is required by law to review and approve UConn Health
budget requests and propose facility, planning and capital expenditure budget priorities.

Officers of the Board of Directors. The officers of the Board of Directors are the Chair of the Board
(Sanford Cloud Jr.), the Vice-Chair (Cheryl Chase), the Secretary (John Droney) and the Treasurer (vacant). The
Chair is privileged to make or discuss motions and to vote on all questions.

Academic Programs of the School of Medicine and School of Dental Medicine

Post Baccalaureate Programs. The Schools of Medicine and Dental Medicine each conduct a four-year
post baccalaureate program leading to the M.D. and D.M.D. degrees, respectively.

Residency. The School of Medicine and the School of Dental Medicine each offer residency programs,
which provide advanced training in preparation for licensure practice and certification within a field of
specialization. Approximately 780 residents and fellows populate UConn John Dempsey and other regional
hospitals.

Graduate Programs. Programs leading to either a Ph.D. or Master's degree in medically related sciences

are offered in nine biomedical sciences and in community health and dental sciences. There are also programs of
post-doctoral education of biomedical scientists.
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Continuing Education. The schools provide facilities and/or opportunities for the practicing professionals
to continue their education by offering a wide variety of courses, lectures, seminars, and visiting lectureships.

Research. The faculty of the Schools of Medicine and Dental Medicine are generally expected to develop
an active research program, both to advance knowledge within their field of expertise and to enhance the quality of
the educational program. Approximately $88.3 million was generated in Fiscal Year 2019 by the research activities
of the various faculties, which supplements appropriations from the State.

Student Enrollment

Enrollment. UConn Health’s enrollment in Fall 2020 was 449 in the School of Medicine, 197 in the
School of Dental Medicine, and 290 Graduate students. Historically, enrollment at UConn Health has been flat. A
key component of the Bioscience Connecticut initiative, described below under the sub caption “Strategic Plan
Initiatives”, is to grow enrollment 30%. With 449 enrolled students, the School of Medicine has met its goal of
enrolling 110 students per class. The Dental School’s class of 2023 included 52 students marking their first class at
Bioscience goal levels.

Each year, approximately 450 students work toward their medical doctor's degree and 200 toward their
doctor of medical dentistry degree. Admission to each school is highly competitive, but both schools offer
preferential consideration to qualified Connecticut residents in their admissions policies. School of Dental Medicine
students have a long history of outstanding performance on the National Boards.

Average Total MCAT and DAT Scores
Fall 2016 - 2020

Fall MCAT DAT
2016 509.3 21.6
2017 511.3 21.5
2018 5122 21.4
2019 512.1 22.0
2020 512.0 21.6

Passing Rates on National Exams

2015 - 2019
Year School of Medicine  School of Dental Medicine
2015 99% 100%
2016 98 100
2017 99 100
2018 97 100
2019 97 100

Tuition and Other Fees

Pursuant to State law, the Board of Directors is authorized to adopt a comprehensive schedule of tuition
and other fees which are expected to prevail during the following fiscal year. Such tuition and fees must comply
with the policy of the Office of Higher Education that requires them to be between the 70" and 75" percentiles of
public schools nationally.
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Tuition. For the academic year 2021, students classified as full-time residents of Connecticut will pay
tuition of $40,287 for the School of Medicine and $37,063 for the School of Dental Medicine. Out-of-state students
will pay $74,367 for the School of Medicine and $74,817 for the School of Dental Medicine.

Mandatory Fees. For academic year 2021, students will pay a fee of $2,660 for the School of Medicine
and $2,719 for the School of Dental Medicine per year. This fee includes payments for commencement, student
affairs, and a student activity fee. An optional student health plan is available for an additional fee.

Annual Cost of an In-State Student Enrolled
at UConn Health by School
Academic Years 2017 - 2021

School of Medicine
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Tuition $32,554 $34,706 $36,932 $38,585 $40,287
Fees* 7.500 3.660 3.160 2.910 2,660
Total $40,054 $38,366 $40,092 $41,495 $42,947

School of Dental Medicine

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Tuition $30,667 $32,599  $34,599  $35810  $37,063
Fees* 6.681 2,940 2,538 2,627 2,719
Total $37,348 $35,539  $37,137  $38,437  $39,782

* Beginning in 2018, the optional student health fee is excluded.

Percentage of Enrollment by Residence Status
Fall 2016 - 2020

School of Medicine School of Dental Medicine
Fall In-State Out-of-State In-State Out-of-State
2016 91.2 8.8 90.0 10.0
2017 92.5 7.5 89.0 11.0
2018 90.8 9.2 87.0 13.0
2019 96.2 3.8 86.0 14.0
2020 90.7 9.3 90.0 10.0

University of Connecticut Health Center Clinical Operations

Per Public Act 17-2, on April 2, 2018, UConn Health submitted a report to the General Assembly on the
status of efforts to explore a public-private partnership aimed at strengthening UConn Health by continuing the
journey of financial stabilization and growth of clinical operations. The process included a nation-wide Solicitation
of Interest (the “RFP”) distributed in October 2018. By the December 2018 deadline for responses, UConn Health
had received several responses. None of the responses received met the stated objectives of the RFP. The RFP
process is still however active and UConn Health is currently working with State administration to decide on the
best next steps. UConn Health continues to focus on growth and strengthening its finances while providing
excellent care.
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UConn John Dempsey Hospital. UConn Health’s John Dempsey Hospital, along with UConn Medical
Group (UMG), makes up UConn Health’s “Clinical Operations”. The Hospital has 234 licensed beds (186 staffed),
and is located in Farmington, a suburb of Hartford. It serves as the primary teaching hospital for the Schools of
Medicine and Dental Medicine, and participates in the clinical education of students from other health profession
education programs. As the primary teaching hospital, it contains a full range of services, including surgery,
medicine, cardiac care, psychiatry, and obstetrics and gynecology. The Hospital is also the focus of specialized
programs, including programs dealing with arthritis, lupus, alcoholism, cancer, hemophilia, high-risk pregnancies,
dental diseases in the handicapped, and taste and smell deficiencies. The Hospital also provides emergency dental
care through an agreement with the Educational Clinics.

UConn Medical Group, the medical faculty practice of UConn Health a key component of UConn
Health's integrated health care delivery system. UMG includes an extensive array of ambulatory clinics
representing a range of specialty and primary care fields. UMG’s operation is an essential element for the
education and training of medical students that enables the University of Connecticut School Of Medicine to
accomplish its mission. Medical students, for example, learn diagnosis and treatment by training side-by-side with
faculty clinicians as these doctors see patients.

Clinical Operations is the vehicle through which UConn Health contracts with managed care and other
health care payors. Clinical Operations also does business through the University of Connecticut Health Center
Finance Corporation (the “Finance Corporation”), a statutory corporation authorized to enter into joint ventures,
other affiliations and contracts in furtherance of the operations of the clinical programs. Through this affiliation,
Clinical Operations may also engage in joint ventures and other arrangements.

University Dentists. University Dentists is the dental faculty practice at UConn Health. Together with the
Educational Clinics, these entities comprise what is called the Dental Clinics. UD provides services in 8 different
specialties such as endodontics, periodontics, and oral surgery. The practice is open to the general public.

Educational Clinics. The Educational Clinics offer comprehensive dental care provided by dental students
(pre-doctoral students) in multidisciplinary clinics or by dental residents (postdoctoral students) receiving advanced
or specialty training under the supervision of licensed clinical faculty. The Predoctoral Teaching Program is
designed to train dental students to be future general dentists or specialists. Dental care provided in the predoctoral
program is provided by students under the supervision of experienced dentists. The Postdoctoral Teaching Program
is a practice comprised of licensed dentists who spend 2 to 6 years under intensive training to be specialists in
endodontics, periodontics, oral surgery, orthodontics, pediatric dentistry, prosthodontics, or advanced education
general dentistry (AEGD).

Patient Service Revenue

Pursuant to the Master Indenture, patient revenues or any other revenues derived from clinical operations of
the University are not pledged towards the repayment of Bonds.

Strategic Plan Initiative

Our Mission. UConn Health is dedicated to helping people achieve and maintain healthy lives and
restoring wellness/health to maximum attainable levels.

In this quest, UConn Health will continuously enable students, professionals and agencies to promote the
health of Connecticut’s citizens. UConn Health will consistently pursue excellence and innovation in the education
of health professionals; the discovery, dissemination and utilization of new knowledge; the provision of patient
care; and the promotion of wellness.

Market Assessment and Regional Planning. UConn Health employs a variety of means to assess the
market. Using data available from the Connecticut Hospital Association and the Office of Health Care Access,
UConn John Dempsey Hospital assesses its performance relative to other hospitals and in terms of market share.
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Both UConn John Dempsey Hospital and UConn Medical Group use publicly available and purchased data sets
relative to population and disease trends, utilization rates for services, physician and service demand. UConn
Health executives and product line leaders, both physician and non-physician staff, through professional
associations, networking with peers and patient interactions, supply data, information and expertise that is used for
assessment and planning. Public input is sought through formal and informal interactions with UConn Health
Board of Directors, the UConn Board of Trustees, the State Legislature, Town of Farmington, Connecticut officials,
community leaders, patients and the many people who attend the public programs of UConn Health. Strategic
plans are developed given the market assessment, in combination with an assessment of the strengths of UConn
Health programs and staff. UConn Health has focused efforts on programs that integrate the academic, research,
and clinical strengths of the institution to serve the health care needs of the citizens of the State. In order to best
extend the access to UConn Health services, UConn Health has established and continues to seek relationships with
other health care providers including and especially primary care providers.

UConn Health is expected to continue to be challenged by managed care and federal reimbursement rates.
UConn Health has adopted a strategy of actively monitoring the market and pursuing agreements with all managed
care payors. UConn Health has entered into participation agreements with most of the major HMOs and PPOs.
Payors are increasingly interested in shared risk arrangements with providers. UConn Health has executed a
number of shared risk agreements and will likely be requested to do more. UConn Health is actively developing
programs and systems necessary to accept and manage risk.

Bioscience Connecticut. UConn Health has benefitted from the major economic revitalization plan called
Bioscience Connecticut (Public Act 10-104, as amended by Public Act 11-75). Bioscience Connecticut’s aim is to
make the State a leader in bioscience research and in turn, jumpstart the State’s economy by creating jobs and
generating long-term economic growth. Program initiatives related to UConn Health were:

e Renovating existing UConn Health facilities to increase bioscience research capacity and productivity,
increasing the number of basic and clinical/translational scientists, and expanding small business incubator
facilities to foster new business start-ups.

e Increasing UConn Health’s medical and dental schools’ enrollment by 30 percent, and establishing a loan
forgiveness program to attract more graduates to practice primary care medicine and dentistry in
Connecticut.

e Constructing a new patient tower and a new ambulatory care center, and increasing the number of UConn
Health primary and specialty care clinicians.

The $864 million Bioscience Connecticut plan was funded with $592 million of bond funds. Construction
of the ambulatory care center (also known as the “Outpatient Pavilion”) was financed by a $203 million credit
tenant lease between Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and the University of Connecticut Health Center
Finance Corporation through a bankruptcy remote special purpose entity named UCHCFC Circle Road Corp.
UConn Health operating funds, private financing or philanthropy will be utilized to fund the remainder of the
program.

In October 2011, the Connecticut General Assembly adopted legislation, which established the Connecticut
Bioscience Collaboration Program (the “Collaboration”) and authorized $290.7 million of State general obligation
bonds to be issued between fiscal years 2012 and 2021 and to be deposited in the Connecticut Bioscience
Collaboration Fund. This fund is held and administered by Connecticut Innovations Incorporated, a separate
authority of the State of Connecticut, to support the establishment of a bioscience cluster anchored by a research
laboratory housed at UConn Health. As of fiscal year end 2020, substantially all of the funds for UConn Health
have been allocated.

Construction work related to the Bioscience Connecticut initiative at UConn Health is largely complete.
The new John Dempsey Hospital University Tower, which also includes the third and final parking garage, opened
in May 2016. Work on the final phase of the Hospital project was substantially completed by late 2016. The
Outpatient Pavilion was completed and the building was occupied by mid-September 2016. The Main Building
Lab Renovations were completed in March of 2017. The Academic Building Addition and Renovation project was
completed in October of 2017. The Incubator Lab addition to the Cell and Genome Sciences Building was
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completed in January 2016 and the labs are now being leased to companies for technology development. The
Clinic Building Renovations began in July 2016. Phases 1, 2 and 3 of the renovations are complete and the final
phase, phase 4, was substantially completed in fiscal 2020. The renovations focused on the Dental School clinical
practice areas, the Cardiology clinical area, a multi-specialty clinic and the Main Lobby renovation.

Employment

UConn Health employed approximately 4,500 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees as of Fall 2020.
UConn Health employees are State employees. The terms and conditions of employment of almost 3,900 FTE
employees as of Fall 2020 are governed by collective bargaining agreements with nine bargaining units. The State
bargains with all bargaining units representing UConn Health employees except the University Health Professions
(the “UHP”) and the American Association of University Professors (the “AAUP-UCHC”). UConn Health has
statutory authority to negotiate and enter into collective bargaining agreements with the labor unions that represent
its faculty (AAUP-UCHC) and non-teaching professionals (UHP). UConn Health has reached agreement on
successor contracts with these unions. The collective bargaining agreements are currently in effect and will be in
full force and effect through June 30, 2021. Negotiations will commence shortly with AAUP-UCHC and UHP.
The remaining seven unions bargain directly with the State. University exempt (management) and certain
temporary and part-time employees are not represented by bargaining units.

UCONN HEALTH FINANCES
Financial Statements of UConn Health

Below is a five-year presentation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for
the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 (unaudited).

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

($ in thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
(unaudited)

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees! $ 15,728 $ 17,499 $ 18,613 $ 20,655 $ 21,636
Patient services? 532,876 539,777 580,697 534,494 512,697
Federal grants and contracts 59,529 58,148 50,748 58,196 62,302
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 27,116 29,009 29,337 30,016 27,872
Contract and other operating revenues 108,017 114,283 127,188 159,745 179,223
Total operating revenues $743.266 $758.716 $806.583 $803.106 $803.730
OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and General
Instruction $ 168,299 $ 169,130 $ 179,948 $ 157,396 $ 198,909
Research 58,233 59,400 56,102 52,832 51,418
Patient services 648,072 713,342 747,637 663,701 810,802
Academic support 18,070 19,186 19,322 15,173 20,616
Institutional support 80,638 82,233 112,126 126,922 75,145
Operations and maintenance of plant 38,714 37,295 38,223 37,659 49,407
Depreciation 41,468 52,046 52,637 72,575 72,893
Student aid 84 194 364 71 53
Total operating expenses 1.053.578 1,132,826 1,206,359 1,126,329 1,279,243

Operating (loss) income (3 310.312) ($ 374.110) (3 399.776) ($ 323.223) ($ 475.513)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations $ 289,287 $ 278,211 $279,513 $ 250,846 $296,520
Transfer to State and Outside Programs -- -- -- (1,991) --
Gifts 6,866 4,079 5,706 6,146 6,897
Interest income 141 104 654 1,385 600
Interest on capital asset — related debt (10,487) (10,214) (9.909) (9,619) (9,353)
Net nonoperating revenues 285.807 272,180 275,964 246,767 294,664
Income before other revenues, ($_ 24.505) ($ 101,930) ($ 123.812) ($ 76.456) ($180,849)
expenses, gains or losses
Loss on disposal (695) (989) (3,092) (1,898) (332)
Capital appropriations 175,000 43.479 88.806 13,000 =
Total other revenues 174,305 42,490 85,714 11,102 (332)
Increase (decrease) in net position $ 149,800 ($ 59,440) ($ 38,098) ($ 65,354) (181,181)
NET POSITION
Net position-beginning of year $ 35971 $ 185,771 $ 126331 § (1.014.953) $ (1.120,178)
Cumulative impact of implementing
GASB 68, 71 and 75 — — (1.103.186) — =
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes and error corrections - - == -- (39.871) --
i\i::;:gsltlon beginning of year as . . (976.855) ($1.054.824) $1.120.178
Net position-end of year $ 185771 $ 126,331 ($1,014,953) ($1,120.178) ($1,301,359)

! Net of scholarship allowances of $6,205, $6,250, $5,964, $6,786 and $7,359 respectively.
2 Net of charity care of $438, $310, $422, $396 and $1,345 respectively.

Note: Although governed by a single Board of Trustees with one chief executive officer, the University and UConn Health
maintain separate budgets and are by statute separate entities for purposes of maintaining operating funds and State
appropriations. See “UCONN HEALTH FINANCES — Budget and Budgeting Procedure of UConn Health”.
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Budget and Budgeting Procedure of UConn Health

UConn Health submits a separate biennial operating budget to the Governor and General Assembly through
the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management. The operating budget request sets forth a proposed
expenditures plan for the amount necessary to meet cost increases while providing a constant level of service. The
budget may also include funds for expansion of UConn Health programs. The operating budget includes various
revenue sources including patient services, federal and private grant funding and State appropriations. The
General Assembly appropriates and allocates funds directly to UConn Health. The Governor may reduce State
agency allotments by not more than five percent unless such reduction is approved by the Appropriations
Committee of the General Assembly which shall, within ten days, approve or reject such reduction. UConn
Health’s Board of Directors approves annually the Unrestricted Operating Budgets for UConn Health, which then
must be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees.

During each fiscal year, the Board of Trustees must quarterly submit to the General Assembly and the
Office of Policy and Management, a report of the actual expenditures of UConn Health.

UConn Health’s capital budget request process is combined with the University as part of UCONN 2000
Phase III for Fiscal Years 2005-2027. Rather than annual requests, the University is required to provide a semi-
annual update as to the progress of capital projects approved as part of UCONN 2000.

Fiscal Year 2021 Budget and the Anticipated Financial and Operational Impact on UConn Health
from COVID-19. With the current COVID-19 global pandemic, UConn Health faces increased uncertainty for
Fiscal Year 2021. In particular, operating revenues will be dependent upon UConn Health remaining open for
elective procedures and on patients continuing to seek out such services. The current budget forecast includes
projections for a return to normal operating volumes, facility readiness expenditures, and manageable COVID
caseloads. As a result, on November 23, 2020 the current Fiscal Year 2021 budget forecast included $1,290.8
million in expenditures and $1,175.9 million of revenue, yielding a net loss forecast of $114.9 million. On the date
hereof the current Fiscal Year 2021 budget forecast includes $1,277.4 million in expenditures and $1,252.2 million
of revenues, yielding a net loss forecast of $25.2 million. An additional spike, or second wave, that either requires
conversion of designated space or reduces demand for elective procedures would unfavorably impact these
projections. UConn Health has already implemented a financial improvement plan targeting $40.0 million of
budget reductions through clinical volume initiatives, contract reviews, management furloughs, and targeted
expenditure reductions. In July, UConn Health also received provider relief funds of approximately $13.6 million.
UConn Health continues to evaluate all deficit mitigation opportunities.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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In addition to actual results of operations for Fiscal Years 2017-2019, the following schedule reflects the
Fiscal Year 2020 unaudited results and the Fiscal Year 2021 budget.

Statement of Current Funds Operations (in millions)

FY FY FY FY FY

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues: Actual Actual Actual Unaudited' Budget
State Support $224.3 $225.6 $250.9 $296.5 $340.0
Tuition & Fees 23.7 24.2 27.4 29.4 29.7
Research Grants and Contracts 87.2 80.1 88.2 85.9 86.5
Interns and Residents 63.0 67.1 69.4 69.2 77.4
Net Patient Care 459.5 501.0 534.5 516.4 569.7
Correctional Managed Health 82.7 79.7 0.0 0.0 0.0
Care
Other Income 46.7 60.9 91.1 116.7 148.9
Total Revenues $987.1 $1,038.6 $1,061.5 $1,114.1 $1,252.2
Expenses:
Personal Services $385.7 $389.7 $418.6 $443.1 $467.2
Fringe Benefits 293.0 3153 256.0 396.0 305.9
Correctional Managed Health 82.7 79.7 0.0 0 0.0
Care
Medical/Dental House Staff 52.9 53.6 55.9 58.0 61.8
Drugs/Medical Supplies 87.7 95.1 127.3 124.1 139.9
Outside & Other Purchased 75.5 93.2 95.6 98.4 106.1
Services
Other Expenses 111.5 135.8 186.3 170.0 196.5
Total Expenses $1,089.0 $1,162.4 $1,139.7 $1,289.6 $1,277.4
Net Gain (Loss) (5 100L.9)  ($1238) (S 782) (8 175.5) ¢ 252)

' Source: UConn Health Office of Finance
State Support of UConn Health — Appropriations

The State develops a biennial budget, which includes UConn Health’s appropriation request. The
appropriations are applicable to each specific year and the second year’s appropriation is subject to review and
adjustment. Public Act 19-117 appropriated $135.9 million to UConn Health for Fiscal Year 2021. The Fiscal
Year 2021 appropriation has since been reduced by the State by $77,000 for allocable bottom line savings for the
State budget. This reduction results in a forecasted allotment of $135.8 million for Fiscal Year 2021.

No assurance can be made that the State will not change the Fiscal Year funding prior to the end of such
Fiscal Year. Any State funding cuts are expected to be managed by UConn Health through reduced hiring, reduced
operating costs, fewer projects, and other deficit mitigation efforts.

UConn Health’s initial Fiscal Year 2021 deficit projection of $58.0 million has been communicated to the
State. Of this, UConn Health has been told to assume that $33.2 million may be allocated for fringe benefit relief
similar to that provided in Fiscal Year 2020.

Grants and Contracts

Revenue from federal, state, local and non-governmental grants and contracts totaled $90.2 million in
Fiscal Year 2020, representing 11.0% of total operating revenues reported by UConn Health in the Statement of
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Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020, included in this
Appendix A.

Governmental Grants and Contracts
for Fiscal Years 2016 - 2020
(in Millions of Dollars)

Fiscal Year Amount
2016 $86.6
2017 87.2
2018 80.1
2019 88.2
2020 90.2

Professional Liability, Litigation and Insurance

Professional Liability. Connecticut statutes provide that the State Claims Commissioner may authorize
suit against the State, including its agencies (such as UConn Health), if the Claims Commissioner deems it just and
equitable and where a claimant has presented an issue of law or fact under which the State, were it a private person,
could be liable. State officers and employees cannot be personally liable for damage or injury, not wanton, reckless
or malicious, caused in the discharge of their duties or within the scope of their employment.

Litigation. UConn Health is currently defending various legal matters in state and federal courts. None of
those suits, either individually or in the aggregate, are likely to have a material adverse impact on UConn Health’s
financial position.

Insurance. UConn Health operates a statutorily created insurance fund designated the “Medical
Malpractice Fund” (the “Fund”). The Fund is a separate trust fund of the Finance Corporation. The Fund is
required by State law to be established and operated by the Finance Corporation and to be held by the State
Treasurer. The Fund is charged with all payments required to satisfy claims against UConn Health arising from the
delivery of health care services. Since the Fund was established in 1987, UConn Health has not maintained private
professional liability insurance. The Fund has paid all claims against UConn Health and the State for professional
liability since 1987. The Hospital Group has implemented quality assurance, risk assessment and peer review
processes to mitigate, identify and evaluate risks. The Fund is a cash based fund that maintains the investment
balance to cover expected current payments for the fiscal year. To the extent that claims for cases exceed current
year premium charged by UConn Health, UConn Health may petition the State to make up the difference.
However, operational subsidies from the State and/or UConn Health may be affected by the performance of UConn
Health’s malpractice program. At June 30, 2020, the Fund had actuarial reserves of approximately $9.4 million and
assets of approximately $5.4 million. It was estimated that $2.4 million could be used in Fiscal Year 2021 in
settling cases.

UConn Health Long-Term Liabilities

Summarized information on UConn Health long-term liabilities is presented in the breakout of long-term
debt presented below.

In addition to the Malpractice Fund, UConn Health also maintains certain accrued compensated absences,
to the extent that they are not expected to be utilized in the current year, as long-term liabilities. These amounts
have been accrued as payables and will offset future payroll expenses as they are utilized.

The following schedules present UConn Health’s composition and current year activity related to long-term

debt and a breakout of debt service payments to be made in each of UConn Health’s upcoming fiscal years related
to debt outstanding as of June 30, 2019.
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Long-term liability composition and activity for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Long-Term Debt
Capital Lease John Dempsey
Hospital
Mortgage Agreements Primary
Institution

Malpractice Reserve
Compensated Absences

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Estimated cash basis interest and principal requirements for the long-term debt are as follows:

Long-Term Liability for Years Ended June 30, 2019

Amounts Due

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 1,701,117 $2,180,000 ($605,957) $ 3,275,160 $ 844,456
198,823,037 - (6,411,004) 192,412,033 6,748,463
14,981,000 2,935,956 (5,758,956) 12,158,000 3,062,000
43,646,392 28,959,109  (32,242.376) 40,363,125 14,869,775
$259,151,546  $34,075,065 ($45,018,293) $248,208,318 $25,524,694

Fiscal Year Total Long
Ending June 30" Term Debt
2020 $16,905,580
2021 16,905,580
2022 16,571,036
2023 16,382,506
2024 16,382,506
Thereafter 221,145,139
Totals $304,292,347

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Schedule 1

Audited Financial Statements of the University of Connecticut
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

December 30, 2019

To President Katsouleas,
Members of the Board of Trustees, and
University of Connecticut Community:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the University of
Connecticut for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. For
purposes of this report, the University of Connecticut
(University) is herein defined as all financial activity from
Storrs-based undergraduate and graduate programs, the
regional campuses, the School of Law, and the School of
Social Work. The University of Connecticut Health
Center (UConn Health), which maintains a separate
budget and issues its own audited financial statements, is
excluded from this report.

The CAFR includes the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), the basic financial statements, notes,
other supplementary and statistical information. The
CAFR provides financial information about the
University’s results of activities during the year and
describes its financial position at the end of the year based
on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions.

Management assumes full responsibility for the contents
of this report including the accuracy, completeness, and
fairness of the data presented. We believe the University’s
system of internal controls is sufficient to identify material
misstatements. Although we have strong internal controls,
the cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits.
Therefore, the objective of the University’s internal
control system is to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free
of material misstatements, and that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.

The University’s Joint Audit and Compliance Committee
of the Board of Trustees exercises oversight over the
integrity of its financial statements and internal control
systems, as well as direct engagement in the approval of
independent auditing services. Certain bond covenants
require that the University’s accounting and financial
records be subject to an annual independent audit. The
University’s annual audit for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019, was performed by the State of Connecticut
Auditors of Public Accounts. They have issued an
unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the
financial statements. The independent auditors’ opinion
can be found in the front of the financial section.

The CAFR is prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and in conformity
with standards established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), as well as using
guidelines of the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). The
MD&A is presented to supplement the financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with this
letter of transmittal. The MD&A can be found
immediately following the auditors’ report

University Profile

Background

The University was founded in 1881 when Charles and
Augustus Storrs donated land and money to the State of
Connecticut (State), establishing the Storrs Agricultural
School later to become Connecticut’s land-grant college.
Today the University serves as the State’s flagship
institution for higher education, meeting the educational
needs of undergraduate, graduate, professional, and
continuing education students through the integration of
teaching, research, service, and outreach.

The University is governed by the Board of Trustees that
is composed of 21 members, including the Governor, the
UConn Health Board of Directors Chair, and the
Commissioners of  Agriculture, Economic and
Community Development, and Education. The University
is reported as an enterprise fund in the State’s CAFR and
operates as a state-assisted institution of higher education.

The University supports a robust research program, with
a “Research 1” classification that places it among those
universities with the highest level of research activity. A
number of University programs rank among the top
research programs in their respective disciplines.

In addition to academics, the University also participates
in Division I athletics. The University’s women’s
basketball team is a dominant powerhouse that has won
eleven national championships overall and has appeared
in the last twelve NCAA final fours. In 2017, the women’s
field hockey team posted the program’s first undefeated
season en route to winning their third national title in the
last seven years.

Student and Faculty Data

For the 2018-2019 academic year, the number of
applications for undergraduate admissions grew to over
38,000 for just 5,500 seats. Total enrollment in the fall of
2018 was 31,646 students, including nearly 7,700
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graduate students. There were 42 states represented in the
University’s student population, as well as 106 countries.
Of'the 23,978 undergraduates, 51 percent were female and
35 percent were minority students. The University
employs 1,540 full-time faculty members and an
additional 783 part-time faculty and adjuncts. In 2018-
2019, the University awarded 8,776 degrees.
Approximately 73 percent of graduates who attended high
school in Connecticut and who are employed, continue to
work in the State of Connecticut.

Related Organization

The University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc.
(Foundation), a related organization, operates exclusively
to promote the educational, scientific, cultural, research
and recreational objectives for both the University and
UConn Health, and therefore is not included as a
component unit in the accompanying financial statements.
See Notes 1 and 15 for additional information.

Economic Condition

The Connecticut economy continues to experience steady
growth in some categories. In September 2018, the
unemployment rate was 3.9 percent. Since then, the
unemployment rate has dropped 0.3 percent to 3.6 percent.
Between fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018, the
statewide average weekly wage grew 1.3 percent to
$1,334. However, according to the Connecticut Economic
Digest in 2018, single-family home sales decreased by 1.9
percent over the prior year and conventional mortgage
rates increased to an average of 4.54%, the highest
average rate since 2010.

Connecticut continues to deal with extremely large
unfunded pension liabilities. As those costs are passed
onto the University through fringe benefit rates, it
negatively  affects  the  University’s  research
competitiveness. The University expects to pay $27.7
million in fiscal year 2020 towards both unfunded pension
and retiree health liabilities from non-state funds such as
tuition, student fees and other outside revenues.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Despite recent cuts in State support and increasing fringe
benefit costs, the University is a financially stable
institution with exceptional educational programs and
research, and it continues to successfully balance financial
needs and investments for long-term growth while
improving the educational quality for students and faculty
alike. The University’s long-term plan includes becoming
more self-reliant in generating diverse operating revenues
amid a potential for decreases in State support. The
University will maintain a balanced budget for its growing

operations through increases in student tuition, increases
in philanthropy, and reductions in spending.

Increases in Student Tuition

Starting in fiscal year 2017 and growing since that time,
tuition revenue has become the largest source of revenue
for the University. During fiscal year 2016, the
University’s Board of Trustees approved a new four-year
tuition plan through fiscal year 2020. Fiscal year 2019
represented the third year of that plan with modest
increases. This is the second time that the Board of
Trustees has adopted a four-year tuition plan rather than
addressing tuition each year. The multi-year plan provides
more certainty for students as they plan with their families
for their college careers. Although tuition will increase,
more financial aid will also be available to help address
issues of affordability and accessibility for the
University’s students.

Increases in Philanthropy

Philanthropy is an area of revenue growth for the
University and is part of the University’s long-term
financial planning. The Foundation, which supports both
the University and UConn Health, has seen substantial
changes in the last few years. In fiscal years 2018 and
2019, the Foundation raised $153.8 million in
commitments. Since 2010, the Foundation has raised
nearly $672 million in commitments from private sources
for direct operational and endowment support at the
University.

Reductions in Spending

Over the last several years, the University has been and
will continue to implement spending cuts across
departments, requiring attrition and vacancy savings to
achieve cost savings. The University has also taken
measures to increase operational efficiencies, such as the
One UConn effort to consolidate cross-campus
administrative functions to streamline or eliminate non-
core activities whenever possible. University departments
continue to look for ways to do more with less support
while attempting to maintain academic excellence and a
high standard of service to our students.

Major Initiatives

Next Generation Connecticut (NextGenCT) represents
one of the most ambitious State investments in economic
development, higher education, and research in the nation,
with a particular focus on capital investment. The
NextGenCT initiative added $1.5 billion in bond funds for
new and renovated facilities, extending the UCONN 2000
capital improvement program that began in 1995 to 2027.
An operating component was also included, but has been
limited due to the State’s financial constraints. The
general obligation bonds issued through UCONN 2000
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and NextGenCT are secured by the State’s debt service
commitment, thus there are no revenues budgeted for
payment of these bonds. Since fiscal year 2015, UConn
has been authorized $1.0 billion in funding for this
initiative, with an additional $291.6 million and $186.2
million coming in fiscal years 2020 and 2021,
respectively. These funds have allowed UConn to open a
new residential hall, renovate the associated dining hall,
build a new downtown Hartford campus, complete the
Engineering and Science Building, open the Innovation
Partnership Building, update and renovate various
buildings throughout campus, and address needed
infrastructure and deferred maintenance improvements.

Despite reductions in operating funding, the NextGenCT
initiative has provided a strong framework for the
University and has aided the State’s economy. Since the
beginning of the initiative, many new faculty have been
hired, particularly in the fields of science, technology,
engineering, and math (STEM). Additionally, funds have
been provided for STEM scholarships and STEM
fellowships, as well as for staff positions. Since fiscal year
2013, undergraduate enrollment has grown by 1,677 at all
campuses with a 33 percent increase in STEM
undergraduate enrollment at Storrs. This ongoing success
has attracted higher quality students and the University
maintains solid rankings in virtually all relevant areas.

Academic and Financial Highlights

Highlights from the 2018-2019 academic year include the
following:

®  For fall 2018, the University ranks 19% out of the top
58 public research universities in graduation rates for
all freshmen and 23 for minority freshmen.
Furthermore, the University ranks 16" among the
national public research universities for freshman
retention.

®  Among the graduates from the 2017-2018 academic
year, 88 percent have a positive outcome including
employment, continuing their education, serving in
the U.S. Armed Forces, or living or volunteering in
the State.

®  The University reduced the time to graduation to 4.2
years, which ranks 4" among public research
university peers. This was accomplished by
increasing the number of class offerings and reducing
the student-to-faculty ratio. Decreasing the time to
graduation helps UConn students pay less in tuition
and join the workforce more quickly.

® In fiscal year 2019, the University provided $115
million in tuition funded financial aid, which
represents nearly a 10.9 percent increase over last
fiscal year. An additional $8.1 million is budgeted for
fiscal year 2020.

® As of this date, the University has expended $3.1
billion out of the $3.3 billion of bonds authorized
under the UCONN 2000 capital improvement
program.

Looking ahead, the University will continue to build on
these accomplishments and further strengthen its
programs and services for faculty, staff, students, and the
University community.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The University marked its ninth consecutive year among
the nation’s top 25 public universities, according to the
2020 U.S. News & World Report rankings. The No. 24
ranking reflects the University’s strong graduation and
retention rates, academic excellence, faculty resources,
and other factors that are weighed into the annual
evaluations. Similarly, according to the Wall Street
Journal/Times Higher Education College Rankings, the
University sits at No. 27 for top public universities in the
United States. The Wall Street Journal ranking system
puts emphasis on student success and learning, by
factoring in (1) resources, (2) engagement, (3) outcomes,
and (4) the environment, as measures of university
quality.

Finally, the University holds a number of other worthy
distinctions among universities domestically and globally.
According to Money Magazine’s 2019 “Best Colleges For
Your Money” rankings, the University ranks 27" out of
268 public higher education institutions across the United
States, citing financial assistance, strong graduation rates,
and salaries of graduates as the key factors in their
rankings. The University occupies the 5™ spot (out of 282)
on the Sierra Club’s 2019 “Cool Schools” ranking. This is
due in part because of the University’s plan to become
carbon neutral by 2050. Furthermore, the University was
10™ out of more than 600 universities worldwide, and 2™
in the United States, on the 2018 GreenMetric World
University Ranking, which rates universities on their
response to sustainability issues.

The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the University for its
CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. To receive
a Certificate of Achievement, a report issuer must publish
an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR, and
must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a
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period of one year only. The University will submit its
CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 to the
GFOA, and anticipates this year’s report will continue to
meet the requirements to receive the Certificate of
Achievement.

Respectfully submitted,

Scott Jordan
Executive Vice President for Administration
and Chief Financial Officer

Preparation of this CAFR in a timely manner would not
have been possible without the coordinated efforts from
staff within the Office of the Controller and other
University financial staff. Each member has my sincere
appreciation for their individual contribution in the
preparation of the report.
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

AUDITORS OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
STATE CAPITOL
JOHN C. GERAGOSIAN 20 TRINITY STREET ROBERT J, KANE
HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06106-1559

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees of the
University of Connecticut

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the University of Connecticut (UConn), a component unit of the University
of Connecticut system, which includes UConn, the University of Connecticut Health Center and the University of Connecticut
Foundation, Inc. The accompanying financial statements, which consist of the statement of net position as of June 30, 2019 and the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements, collectively comprise UConn’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, based upon our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of UConn as of June 30, 2019 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Emphasis of Matter

As part of our audit of the 2019 financial statements, we also audited the adjustments described in Note 18 in which UConn restated
the beginning net position to correct a misstatement and for the adjustment to correct net position categories prior to July 1, 2018.
In our opinion, the adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these
matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 15 through 25 and the Required Supplementary Information on
pages 55 through 57 is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
The introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic

financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express and opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Sincerely,
John C. Geragosian Robert J. Kane
State Auditor State Auditor

December 30, 2019
State Capitol
Hartford, Connecticut
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) provides an overview and analysis of the
financial position and results of activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019, and selected comparative
information from fiscal year 2018. It includes highly
summarized information and should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying financial statements
and notes.

Reporting Entity
The University of Connecticut (University) is herein

defined as all programs except for the University of
Connecticut Health Center (UConn Health, see Note 1).
This includes programs offered at the Storrs main campus,
regional campuses, the School of Law, and the School of
Social Work.

The University’s financial report includes three basic
financial statements: a Statement of Net Position; a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. These
statements are prepared in accordance with standards
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The MD&A, financial statements, notes, and
other supplementary information are the responsibility of
management.

Key Reporting Changes
In fiscal year 2019, the University recorded a prior period

adjustment of $11.2 million to correct the overstatement
of compensated absences as of June 30, 2018, and an
additional $4.3 million to reclassify long-term software
commitments to net investment in capital assets from
unrestricted net position (see Note 18).

In addition, the University changed its method of
accounting for certain executed memorandums of
understanding (MOUs) with UConn Health. In fiscal year
2018, an aggregate $12.4 million provided by UConn
Health per the MOUs was reported as a reduction to
operating expenses. Starting in fiscal year 2019, an
aggregate $16.2 million resulting from the same
transactions was recorded as operating revenues under
other sources in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position. Prior fiscal year 2018 data
presented in this MD&A was not restated (see Notes 1 and
15).

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position presents either an increase or decrease in net
position based on the revenues received, the expenses
paid, and any other gains and losses recognized by the
University. Revenues and expenses are classified as

operating, nonoperating, or other changes in net position
according to definitions prescribed by GASB.

Generally, operating revenues are earned when providing
goods and services to the various customers of the
University. Operating expenses are incurred in the normal
operations of the University and represent those expenses
paid to acquire or produce the goods and services provided
in return for operating revenues. Operating expenses also
include a provision for estimated depreciation and
amortization of property and equipment. The difference
between operating revenues and operating expenses is the
operating income or loss.

By its very nature, a state-funded institution does not
receive tuition, fees, room, and board revenues sufficient
to support the operations of the University. Nonoperating
revenues are received for which goods and services are not
provided but are essential to the programs and services
provided by the University. Significant recurring sources
of nonoperating revenues utilized in balancing the
operating loss each year include appropriations from the
State of Connecticut (State) for general operations, the
State’s debt service commitment for interest, federal and
state financial aid, noncapital gifts, and short-term
investment income.

Other changes in net position are composed primarily of
the State’s debt service commitment for principal and
capital grants and gifts.

The Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position on the following page reflects an
increase in net position, exclusive of the prior period
adjustment, at the end of fiscal year 2019. Summarized
highlights of the information presented in the Condensed
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position are as follows:

Revenues
Operating revenues increased $43.4 million in fiscal year
2019 based on the following factors:

® Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances,
increased $9.9 million. This change was mainly due to
planned tuition increases and a marginal increase in
undergraduate enrollment, offset in part by higher
scholarship allowances and the elimination of certain
student fees. Scholarship allowances increased due to
higher tuition and increases in financial aid.
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The following graph presents undergraduate and graduate enrollment over the last 10 years:

HEADCOUNT ENROLLMENT IN FALL OF EACH FISCAL YEAR
10-YEAR COMPARISON
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The following table shows a Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the fiscal years
ended June 30 ($ in millions):

2019 2018 $ Change % Change
Operating Revenues
Student tuition and fees, net $ 396.8 $ 3869 $ 9.9 2.6%
Grants and contracts 163.1 144.4 18.7 13.0%
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net 211.0 211.0 - 0.0%
Other 52.5 37.7 14.8 39.3%
Total Operating Revenues 823.4 780.0 43.4 5.6%
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 569.8 569.3 0.5 0.1%
Fringe benefits 417.7 338.5 79.2 23.4%
Supplies and other expenses 279.6 264.5 15.1 5.7%
Utilities 21.1 19.7 1.4 7.1%
Depreciation and amortization 119.3 108.2 11.1 10.3%
Scholarships and fellowships 11.4 8.9 2.5 28.1%
Total Operating Expenses 1,418.9 1,309.1 109.8 8.4%
Operating Loss (595.5) (529.1) (66.4) 12.5%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriation 356.9 343.0 13.9 4.1%
State debt service commitment for interest 77.3 70.7 6.6 9.3%
Federal and state financial aid 42.2 38.0 4.2 11.1%
Gifts and investment income 40.1 25.8 143 55.4%
Interest and other expenses, net (72.0) (68.6) (3.4) 5.0%
Net Nonoperating Revenues 444.5 408.9 35.6 8.7%
Loss Before Other Changes in Net Position (151.0) (120.2) (30.8) 25.6%
Other Changes in Net Position
State debt service commitment for principal 154.4 187.3 (32.9) (17.6)%
Capital grants and gifts 3.9 5.1 (1.2) (23.5)%
Additions to permanent endowments 0.2 0.3 (0.1) (33.3)%
Net Other Changes in Net Position 158.5 192.7 (34.2) (17.7)%
Increase in Net Position 7.5 72.5 (65.0) (89.7)%
Net Position — Beginning of Year 80.2 1,243.2 (1,163.0) (93.5)%
Cumulative effect of applying GASB 75 - (1,235.5) 1,235.5 (100.0)%
Prior period adjustment (Note 18) 11.2 - 11.2 100.0%
Net Position — Beginning of Year, As Restated 91.4 7.7 83.7 1087.0%
Net Position — End of Year $ 989 3 80.2 § 18.7 23.3%
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Grant revenue can fluctuate year over year depending
on various factors including the availability of funding
from sponsors, the timing of large grants, and when
expenses are incurred. Total grants and contracts
increased $18.7 million. Of this amount, federal grants
and contracts increased $15.0 million, primarily due to
an increase in funding from the U.S. Public Health
Service, the National Institutes of Health, the National
Science Foundation, and the U.S. Department of
Defense. Nongovernmental grants increased $5.2
million due to higher revenues from nonprofit and
corporate grants in fiscal year 2019. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in state and local
grants of $1.5 million attributed to a reduction in
revenues from the Connecticut Education Network
program.

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of
scholarship allowances, increased less than $0.1
million in fiscal year 2019. This change was due to an
increase in room and board fees and bookstore
revenues offset by decreases in athletic revenues.
Room and board fees, net of scholarship allowances,
were higher due to average rate increases and a slight
rise in occupancy. Revenues related to athletic
programs decreased due to lower athletic conference
and sponsorship revenues combined with lower ticket
sales in fiscal year 2019.

Other operating revenues increased $14.8 million. This
increase was primarily due to an increase of $16.2
million attributed to the UConn Health MOU
accounting change in fiscal year 2019 (see Note 1) and
higher renewable energy credits. These changes were
partially offset by adjustments to bad debt provisions
and decreases in revenues related to education abroad
programs, pre-college summer programs, and library
services.

Revenues under nonoperating and other changes in net
position increased $4.8 million based on the following:

State appropriation was higher by $13.9 million in
fiscal year 2019 due to higher fringe benefit
reimbursements. This increase was due to employees
that transferred from the Alternate Retirement Plan
(ARP) to the State Employees’ Retirement System
(SERS) in accordance with the State Employees’
Bargaining Agent Coalition (SEBAC) grievance
award. This increase was partially offset by
appropriations related to the one-time bonus payouts
that occurred in fiscal year 2018.

The State commits to paying for interest incurred on
general obligation bonds issued by the University for
capital purposes and for UConn Health projects (see
Note 6). Effectively, this revenue offsets a significant
portion of interest expense each year, and the noted
increase in revenue from interest corresponds with a
related increase in interest expense. In addition, as
general obligation bonds are issued, the State commits
to the repayment of the future principal amounts. The
decrease in revenue related to principal of $32.9
million was mainly due to general obligations issued
with a lower face value in the current year. This change
was offset by a decrease in bond proceeds designated
for UConn Health projects that are reported as a
reduction to revenue.

Federal and state financial aid was $4.2 million higher
in fiscal year 2019, mainly due to increases in the
Federal Pell and the Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grants.

The following graph shows the University’s total operating and nonoperating revenues by category, excluding other changes
in net position:

REVENUES BY CATEGORY
($ IN MILLIONS)
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Gifts and investment income increased $14.3 million.
Gift revenue increased $8.4 million due to an increase
in reimbursement requests of eligible expenses from
spendable resources held by the University of
Connecticut Foundation (Foundation). Investment
income increased $5.9 million, mainly due to higher
interest rates and larger average balances from unspent
bond proceeds held in the State’s short-term
investment fund.

Capital grants and gifts decreased $1.2 million. The
University received more capital gifts in fiscal year
2018 than in the current year including several works
of art for the Benton Museum and various one-time
donations of equipment. This decrease was offset in
part by capital gifts related to the Werth Hall of Fame
received in fiscal year 2019.

Expenses
Total expenses increased $113.2 million in fiscal year

2019 based on the following:

Salaries and wages increased $0.5 million, primarily
due to a 1.4 percent increase in full-time equivalents
and changes related to the UConn Health MOUs.
Funding provided by UConn Health to cover salaries
of $3.1 million was recorded as a reduction to salary
and wages in fiscal year 2018, whereas the same
funding was recorded as revenue in fiscal year 2019
(see Note 1). In addition, the UConn Health public
safety MOU covered a full year of services in fiscal
year 2019 compared with a partial year covered in
fiscal year 2018. These increases were offset by the
one-time lump-sum bonuses awarded to employees in
accordance with collective bargaining agreements in
fiscal year 2018.

Fringe benefits increased $79.2 million. Pension
expenses for defined benefit plans were higher by
$76.6 million, primarily due to one-time benefit

changes related to the SEBAC 2017 agreement that
reduced expenses in fiscal year 2018. Fringe benefits
also increased due to higher full-time equivalents,
increases in other post-employment benefit expenses
of $1.7 million, and changes related to the UConn
Health MOUs of $2.6 million. These increases were
partially offset by decreases related to the
overstatement of compensated absences in fiscal year
2018 (see Note 18), and the one-time lump-sum
bonuses accrued for in the prior fiscal year.

Supplies and other expenses increased $15.1 million.
Of this amount, $6.7 million related to the UConn
Health MOU accounting change in fiscal year 2019.
The remaining difference consisted of increases across
various functions including research, public service,
academic support, and institutional support. These
changes were driven mainly by increases in sub-award
agreements, software licenses, consulting and
professional services, and electronic library purchases.
Furthermore, these increases were offset in part by a
decrease in non-capital expenses related to
construction projects included in operations and
maintenance of plant.

Utilities expense increased $1.4 million, mainly due to
an increase in natural gas expenses offset in part by a
decrease in oil costs. Natural gas was higher in fiscal
year 2019 due to commodity cost increases, higher
volume, and additional costs incurred to guarantee
pipeline access. The decrease in oil costs was triggered
by a lower usage of temporary boilers combined with
the Cogeneration Facility switching from natural gas
to oil for a shorter period in fiscal year 2019.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased
$11.1 million, primarily due to a full year of
depreciation recognized on buildings that were placed
into service at the end of fiscal year 2018.

The following graph shows University’s operating expenses by natural classification:

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION
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® Scholarships and fellowships increased $2.5 million,
primarily due to increases in University aid, private
scholarships, and Federal Pell Grants combined with
higher tuition.

" Interest expense and other expenses, net, increased
$3.4 million. Interest expense was higher by $5.8
million, mainly due to a full year of interest incurred
on the 2018 Series A General Obligation Bonds and on
new debt issued in fiscal year 2019. This change was

partially offset by a decrease of interest expense on
remaining bonds due to lower principal balances. Net
losses related to the disposal of property and
equipment also increased $0.8 million. Other
nonoperating revenues (expenses), net, decreased $3.2
million due to one-time litigation recoveries in fiscal
year 2019 and lower bond issuance costs. Bond
issuance costs decreased in fiscal year 2019 due to the
2018 Special Obligation Student Fee Revenue Bonds
issued in the prior fiscal year.

The University’s operating expenses by functional classification are presented below:

OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION
($ IN MILLIONS)
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position of the University as of the end
of the fiscal year. The Statement of Net Position is a point
in time financial statement and is used as a measure of the
financial condition of the University. This statement
presents a snapshot concerning assets classified as current
(those available for use within one year) and noncurrent
(those available beyond one year), liabilities categorized
as current (those maturing and due within one year) and
noncurrent (those maturing and due after one year), and
net position.

Assets represent what is owned by or what is owed to the
University, including payments made to others before a
service was received. Assets are recorded at their current

$150.0

$438.7
$419.7

® FY 2019 ® FY 2018

$300.0 $450.0

value except for property and equipment, which is
recorded at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Liabilities represent what
is owed to others or what has been received from others
prior to services being provided by the University. A
deferred outflow of resources represents the consumption
of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future
reporting period, whereas a deferred inflow of resources
is an acquisition of net assets by the University that is
applicable to a future reporting period.

The University’s net position is the residual value in assets
and deferred outflows after liabilities and deferred inflows
are deducted. Over time, an increase in net position is an
indicator of the University’s improving financial strength.
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The following table shows a Condensed Schedule of Net Position at June 30 ($ in millions):
2019 2018 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current assets $ 9720 $ 995.9 $ (23.9) 2.4)%
Property and equipment, net 2,203.5 2,099.3 104.2 5.0%
Other noncurrent assets 1,591.6 1,557.5 34.1 2.2%
Total Assets 4,767.1 4,652.7 114.4 2.5%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 410.3 383.9 26.4 6.9%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 464.7 497.0 (32.3) (6.5)%
Noncurrent liabilities 4,514.8 4,392.0 122.8 2.8%
Total Liabilities 4,979.5 4,889.0 90.5 1.9%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 99.0 67.4 31.6 46.9%
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,681.7 1,682.3 (0.6) (0.0)%
Restricted nonexpendable 15.0 15.0 - 0.0%
Restricted expendable 201.1 169.3 31.8 18.8%
Unrestricted (1,798.9) (1,786.4) (12.5) 0.7%
Total Net Position $ 989 $ 80.2 $ 18.7 23.3%
Assets » Due from affiliate (UConn Health) increased $5.5

Total assets increased $114.4 million in fiscal year 2019.
Total current assets decreased $23.9 million, net property
and equipment increased $104.2 million, and noncurrent
assets increased $34.1 million.

® The change in current assets was due to the following:

» Cash and cash equivalents increased $43.8 million.
This change was primarily due to a $39.4 million
transfer from bond proceeds held by the Trustee
Bank to the University’s operating cash for
reimbursement of prior year capital project
expenditures. Interest income received and
significant property sales that occurred in fiscal year
2019 also contributed to the increase.

» Accounts receivable increased $13.7 million, mainly
due to increases in gifts receivable from the
Foundation at year-end combined with increases in
grants and contracts.

» Due from State decreased $12.3 million, primarily a
result of capital expenditures paid by State General
Obligation Bonds for the Technology Park during
fiscal year 2019, and a lower State appropriation
receivable due to the one-time bonus payments
accrued for General Fund employees in fiscal year
2018.

million, partially due to the timing of the branding
and marketing MOU payments owed by UConn
Health. Receivables related to the public safety
MOU also increased in fiscal year 2019.

» The current portion of the State debt service
commitment increased $1.4 million due to the
issuance of the 2019 Series A General Obligation
Bonds, partially offset by principal payments and
refundings.

» Deposits with bond trustee decreased $80.8 million
due to expenditures funded by bond proceeds in
fiscal year 2019, partially offset by the addition of
new general obligation bonds issued in the current
fiscal year.

» Prepaid expenses and other assets increased $4.8
million, primarily due to $5.1 million of revenue
retained by the American Athletic Conference that
will be applied to the exit fee in fiscal year 2020 (see
Note 19). This change was offset in part by
decreases due to the phase-out of the University’s
consumable inventory.

The net increase in capital assets consists of $238.9
million in additions, offset in part by $119.3 million of
depreciation and $15.4 million of retirements. The
large additions are mostly due to the University’s
active construction program.
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= The change in noncurrent assets corresponds with the
increase in the long-term portion of the State debt

by a decrease in student loans receivable due to the
closeout of the Federal Perkins Loan Program (see

service commitment of $36.1 million, partially offset Note 7).
The following graph shows total assets by major category:
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

($ IN MILLIONS)
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Liabilities

Total liabilities increased $90.5 million in fiscal year
2019. Current liabilities decreased $32.3 million and
noncurrent liabilities increased $122.8 million.

= The change in current liabilities was primarily
attributed to the following:

» Wages payable and due to State reflected a
combined decrease of $9.2 million due to longevity
payments, one-time lump-sum bonuses and the
related fringe benefits reimbursed to the State that
were accrued for in the prior fiscal year.

» The current portion of compensated absences also
decreased $4.8 million, mainly due to the prior
period adjustment that reduced the liability’s
beginning balance in fiscal year 2019 (see Note 18).

» Due to affiliate decreased $28.5 million. This
decrease was primarily a result of current year
expenditures of $41.5 million for UConn Health
capital projects, partially offset by the addition of
$13.0 million in general obligation bond proceeds
allocated to UConn Health projects.

» The University’s current portion of debt payable
increased $8.6 million. This was primarily due to
new general obligation bonds issued during the year,
partially offset by debt refundings.

B Cash and cash equivalents
M Receivables
Deposits with bond trustee
State debt service commitment
B Property and equipment, net

Other

The change in noncurrent liabilities was primarily
attributed to the following:

» Similar to the current portion, the long-term portion

of compensated absences decreased $7.0 million,
mainly due to the overstatement of the liability in the
prior year. Prior year balances included fringe
benefits that were already accounted for within the
net pension and net OPEB liabilities.

Long-term debt increased $38.6 million resulting
from issuances of new debt and the addition of long-
term software commitments, offset in part by
refundings and repayments in fiscal year 2019.

Net pension liabilities increased $87.6 million,
primarily due to an increase in the University’s
proportionate share combined with experience
losses in the SERS pension plan.

Net OPEB liability increased $9.8 million, primarily
due to an increase in the University’s proportionate
share offset by gains from actuarial assumption
changes. The assumption changes were a result of a
higher discount rate used to determine the net OPEB
liability recorded for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019.

Other liabilities decreased $4.2 million, mainly due
to the reclassification of long-term software
commitments to long-term debt in fiscal year 2019.
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The following graph shows total liabilities by major categ

ory:

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019
(S IN MILLIONS)
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Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources increased $26.4 million,
mainly due to increases in contributions made subsequent
to the measurement date and changes in proportions
related to the net pension and net OPEB liabilities. The
increase was partially offset by the amortization of
deferrals.

Deferred inflows increased $31.6 million, mainly due to
actuarial assumption changes that were deferred in
relation to the net OPEB liability recorded as of June 30,
2019, partially offset by the amortization of deferrals.

Net Position

Net position is divided into three major categories. The
first category, net investment in capital assets, represents
the University’s equity in property and equipment. The
second category, restricted net position, is subdivided into
nonexpendable and expendable. The corpus of restricted
nonexpendable resources is only available for investment
purposes and is included with investments in the
University’s Statement of Net Position. Expendable
restricted net position is available for expenditure by the
institution. However, it must be spent for purposes
determined by donors or external entities that have placed
time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. The
final category is unrestricted net position, representing
funds available to the University for any lawful purpose
of the institution. Generally, unrestricted funds are
internally assigned to academic and research programs,
capital programs, retirement of debt, and auxiliary
enterprise activities.

W Accounts payable
W Payroll liabilities
Due to affiliate
Debt payable
B Noncurrent pension and OPEB liabilities

Unearned revenue and other

The increase in net position of $18.7 million in fiscal year
2019 included the following changes:

= Net investment in capital assets decreased $0.6
million. This change was due to a net increase in
capital assets of $104.2 million, reduced by a net
increase of $100.5 million in capital-related debt and
the reclassification of $4.3 million for long-term
software commitments (see Note 18).

= Restricted nonexpendable had a decrease of less than
$0.1 million due to reductions of endowment
investments offset by additions to permanent
endowments received during fiscal year 2019.

= Restricted expendable increased $31.8 million as
follows:

» Restricted expendable under capital projects
increased $42.4 million due to a higher amount of
unspent general obligation bond proceeds at year-
end than in the prior year combined with the addition
of $5.2 million related to the sale of the West
Harford campus. These additions were partially
offset by a decrease in State bond proceeds allocated
for the Technology Park.

» Restricted expendable related to research and
scholarships decreased $10.6 million, primarily due
to a transfer to unrestricted funds related to
differences in projected versus actual fringe benefit
costs charged on grants. This decrease was partially
offset by an increase in large private donations in
fiscal year 2019.
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=  Unrestricted net position decreased $12.5 million. This
change was mainly due to OPEB and pension related
expenses in fiscal year 2019 that were partially offset
by the reimbursement of unrestricted funds from

general obligation and revenue bond proceeds, prior
period adjustments (see Note 18), investment income,
and transfers related to differences in projected versus
actual fringe benefit costs.

The following graph shows net position by major category:

NET POSITION AS OF JUNE 30, 2019
$98.9 ($ IN MILLIONS)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Statement of Cash Flows presents detailed
information about the cash activity of the University
during the year. The first section of this statement, cash
flows from operating activities, will always be different
from the operating loss amount on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The
difference results from noncash items such as depreciation
and amortization expense and the use of the accrual basis
of accounting in preparing the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The Statement of
Cash Flows, on the other hand, shows cash inflows and
outflows without regard to accruals.

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

($1,798.9)

Restricted ® Unrestricted

The Statement of Cash Flows has four additional sections.
The second section reflects cash flows from noncapital
financing activities including State appropriation, debt
transactions related to affiliate (UConn Health), financial
aid, and gifts. The third section shows cash flows from
capital and related financing activities, capital grants and
gifts, and State debt service commitments for principal
and interest. The fourth section consists of cash flows
from investing activities showing the purchases, proceeds,
and interest provided from investing activities. The final
section is a reconciliation of the operating loss shown on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position to net cash used in operating activities.

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, consisted of the following ($ in millions):

2019 2018 $ Change % Change
Land $ 20.1 S 207 S (0.6) (2.9)%
Construction in progress 279.6 224.6 55.0 24.5%
Art and historical collections 56.4 56.0 0.4 0.7%
Non-structural improvements 260.3 153.2 107.1 69.9%
Buildings and improvements 1,465.7 1,522.3 (56.6) (3. 1%
Intangible assets 21.6 20.2 1.4 6.9%
Library materials 5.8 6.6 (0.8) (12.1)%
Equipment 94.0 95.7 (1.7) (1.8)%
Total Property and Equipment, Net $ 22035 § 2,093 § 104.2 5.0%
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Construction in progress increased approximately
$55.0 million as projects including Student Recreation
Center, Fine Arts Phase 2 — Renovation and
Improvements, Gant Building STEM Renovations,
Central Campus Infrastructure Upgrades, Central
Utility Plant Equipment Replacement and Pumping
Project, University Athletic District Development, and
other projects continued construction. Additions to
Construction in progress also include net interest costs
relating to projects financed by University funded
debt. Additions were offset as projects including the
North  Eagleville Road Area Infrastructure
Repair/Replacement and Upgrades — Phase 3, the
Energy Services Performance Contract — Phase 1, the
Northwest Science Quad Infrastructure — Phase 1, and
other projects were completed and transferred from
construction in  progress to buildings and
improvements and non-structural improvements.

Art and historical collections increased by $0.4
million, representing additions in fiscal year 2019.

Non-structural improvements increased by $107.1
million. Additions totaling $118.0 million included
North  Eagleville Road Area Infrastructure
Repair/Replacement and Upgrades — Phase 3, Energy
Services Performance Contract — Phase 1, Northwest
Science Quad Infrastructure — Phase 1, Southwest
Campus Infrastructure Upgrade, and other projects.
These additions were offset by depreciation expense of
$10.2 million and net retirements of $0.7 million.

Buildings and improvements decreased by $56.6
million. Additions of $41.2 million included Beach
Hall Lab Renovations, additional costs relating to the
Technology Quadrant Innovation Partnership Building
and Engineering and Science Building, and other
renovation projects. These additions were offset by
depreciation expense of $84.0 million and net
disposals of $13.8 million.

Intangible assets increased by $1.4 million. Additions
of $6.5 million included long-term software licensing
commitments, costs associated with the Concur Travel
and Expense project and other software
implementations offset by amortization expense of
$5.1 million.

Library materials decreased by $0.8 million.
Additions of approximately $0.7 million were offset
by $1.5 million in depreciation expense.

Equipment decreased by $1.7 million. Additions of
$17.0 million were offset by depreciation expense and
net asset disposals of $18.7 million.

In October 2018, the University sold the West Hartford
campus property to a third-party buyer. As part of the
purchase and sale agreement, the University

transferred buildings and real property (land,
improvements, and easements) in exchange for $5.2
million.

® In June 2019, the University sold the Nathan Hale Inn
to a third-party buyer. As part of the purchase and sale
agreement, the University transferred real property
(hotel building and improvements and land
improvements) and personal property in exchange for
$8.3 million.

See also Note 4 in the financial statements for details
related to capital activities.

DEBT ACTIVITIES

The University issues general obligation bonds in its own
name for a special capital improvement program
(UCONN 2000) designed to modernize and expand the
physical plant of the University. As amended, the program
provides for a capital budget in three phases for the
University and UConn Health, with an estimated total cost
of $4.6 billion.

The State has made a commitment to fund the University
for all principal and interest payments due on UCONN
2000 general obligation debt. As the general obligation
debt is incurred, the commitment from the State is
recorded as a current and noncurrent receivable in the
Statement of Net Position.

In fiscal year 2019, the University issued UCONN 2000
general obligation bonds with a combined face value of
$239.5 million, of which $13.0 million was committed to
UConn Health for its UCONN 2000 projects. This
issuance included the refunding of the general obligation
2009 Series A bonds.

In addition to general obligation bonds, the University
may issue special obligation bonds, also called Student
Fee Revenue Bonds, which are secured by certain pledged
revenues. There were no special obligation bonds issued
or refunded in fiscal year 2019.

Subsequent to June 30, 2019, the University exercised its
call option on the Special Obligation Student Fee Revenue
Bonds 2010 Refunding Series and redeemed the entire
$16.7 million of outstanding principal on the bonds (see
Note 19).

Obligations under capital leases include a lease purchase
agreement to finance the UCONN 2000 Cogeneration
Facility and a sublease agreement to provide student
housing at the Stamford campus. There were no new
capital lease obligations in fiscal year 2019.

In fiscal year 2019, the University reclassified the
beginning balance of long-term software commitments
from long-term liabilities to long-term debt and bonds
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payable (see Note 18). In addition, in fiscal year 2019, the
University entered into additional long-term software
commitments totaling $4.8 million.

See also Note 6 in the financial statements for details
related to debt activities.

The following graph illustrates total debt by category, exclusive of premiums and discounts:

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019
(S IN MILLIONS)

$85.7

$233.4

TOTAL DEBT
$2,019.3

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

In June 2019, the University’s Board of Trustees approved
an annual budget of $1.5 billion that encompasses an
initial projected deficit of $19.6 million for fiscal year
2020. The $19.6 million deficit is a direct result of costs
associated with the unfunded pension and retiree health
insurance liabilities allocated by the State. To balance the
budget, the University will utilize additional salary
savings from attrition and funds from unrestricted sources
previously set aside for other initiatives.

Student tuition and fees budgeted in fiscal year 2020
represent about 41 percent of total revenues, greater than
State support at about 26 percent. Per the agreement
reached with the Governor and the General Assembly,
State support budgeted in fiscal year 2020 includes a block
grant of $200.4 million and payment for fringe benefits
and adjustments of $171.1 million. Due to ongoing
financial constraints on the State, the University is at risk
for an additional 5 percent cut as part of the Governor’s
rescission authority in order to mitigate potential State
deficits in fiscal year 2020.

Salary and fringe benefit costs have continued to grow at
a significant pace, representing over 57 percent of the
University’s fiscal year 2020 budget. This is mainly due
to mandatory raises for unionized employees and rising
fringe benefit rates. Transfers from ARP to SERS as
result of the SEBAC grievance award have also
contributed to higher costs. To address shortfalls going
forward, the University implemented strategic cuts to
units across all campuses, created operational efficiencies
including reorganization of various administrative areas,

$1,700.2

M General obligation bonds

M Revenue bonds

Obligations under capital leases and other debt

and raised tuition in the final year of the four-year tuition
plan.

In the midst of this difficult financial climate, the
University continues its focus on protecting and
enhancing academic excellence, and to deliver a high
standard of service to the students and citizens of the State.
According to the fiscal year 2020 budget plan, the
University will increase financial aid support to $194.7
million to assist students and to demonstrate the
University’s commitment to affordability.

In August 2019, the University completed construction of
its four-story, 191,000 square foot Student Recreation
Center located on the Storrs campus. Starting in the fall of
2019, all Storrs matriculated students pay a mandatory fee
that supports the Student Recreation Center’s operations
and the University’s debt service related to the facility.
Undergraduate and graduate students pay $250 and $200
per semester, respectively.

Other significant events for fiscal year 2020 include the
University’s withdrawal from the American Athletic
Conference (AAC). Based on the AAC separation
agreement, the University will pay an exit fee of $17.0
million, and the AAC will retain revenue distribution
payments earned for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
and for the following fiscal year as partial payment.
Furthermore, the University will pay a $3.5 million
entrance fee to the Big East Conference in fiscal year
2020. See Note 19 for additional details.
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UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2019
(8 in thousands)
2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 391,116
Accounts receivable, net 65,569
Student loans receivable, net 2,295
Due from State of Connecticut 52,342
Due from affiliate (Note 1) 13,829
State debt service commitment 157,354
Deposits with bond trustee 277,131
Prepaid expenses and other assets 12,373
Total Current Assets 972,009
Noncurrent Assets
Investments 16,187
Student loans receivable, net 6,510
State debt service commitment 1,568,905
Property and equipment, net 2,203,537
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,795,139
Total Assets 4,767,148
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 410,273
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 94,158
Unearned revenue 38,712
Deposits held for others 1,937
Federal refundable loans 4,166
Wages payable 61,514
Compensated absences 18,284
Due to State of Connecticut 34,271
Due to affiliate (Note 1) 6,889
Current portion of long-term debt and bonds payable 167,319
Other current liabilities 37,445
Total Current Liabilities 464,695
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences 13,015
Long-term debt and bonds payable 2,096,055
Federal refundable loans 7,754
Net pension liabilities 1,100,278
Net other post-employment benefits liability 1,293,696
Other liabilities 4,035
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,514,833
Total Liabilities 4,979,528
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 99,033
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,681,657
Restricted nonexpendable 15,005
Restricted expendable
Research, instruction, scholarships, and other 21,716
Loans 2,608
Capital projects and debt service 176,785
Unrestricted (1,798,911)
Total Net Position $ 98,860

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

26



UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(3 in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES

Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances of $172,581

Federal grants and contracts

State and local grants and contracts
Nongovernmental grants and contracts

Sales and services of educational departments

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances of $7,827

Other sources
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Fringe benefits

Supplies and other expenses

Utilities

Depreciation and amortization

Scholarships and fellowships

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriation
State debt service commitment for interest
Federal and state financial aid
Gifts
Investment income
Interest expense
Disposal of property and equipment, net
Other nonoperating revenues, net
Net Nonoperating Revenues
Loss Before Other Changes in Net Position

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
State debt service commitment for principal
Capital grants and gifts
Additions to permanent endowments

Net Other Changes in Net Position
Increase in Net Position

NET POSITION
Net Position — Beginning of Year, As Restated (Note 18)
Net Position — End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2019

396,780
121,593
17,959
23,577
22,710
211,036
29,750
823,405

569,872
417,689
279,602
21,063
119,346
11,409
1,418,981

(595,576)

356,898
77,333
42,222
28,185
11,957

(70,460)
(2,345)

745

444,535

(151,041)

154,405
3,907
171
158,483
7,442

91,418
98,860



UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(8 in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student tuition and fees
Grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational departments
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Payments to employees
Payments for benefits
Payments to suppliers and others
Collections of loans to students
Loans issued to students
Other cash receipts
Other cash payments
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriation
State debt service commitment related to affiliate
Federal and state financial aid
Gifts
Proceeds from bonds related to affiliate
Principal paid on debt and bonds payable related to affiliate
Interest paid on debt and bonds payable related to affiliate
Net Cash Provided from Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bonds
State debt service commitment
Principal paid on debt and bonds payable
Interest paid on debt and bonds payable
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Capital allocation
Capital grants and gifts
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments, net
Interest on investments
Deposit with bond trustee
Net Cash Provided from Investing Activities

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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390,161
159,543
22,653
206,808
(577,592)
(314,031)
(347,952)
2,161
(68)
26,893
(108)

(431,532)

359,481
65,287
42,067
19,636
13,000

(38,358)

(26,929)

434,184

187,000
141,953
(105,951)
(59,919)

13,056
(238,472)

9,361

2,736
(50,236)

(462)
11,067
80,783
91,388

43,804

347,312
391,116



(3 in thousands)

UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided from Operating Activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense

Investment

Property and equipment

In-kind workers' compensation
Other nonoperating revenues, net
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables, net

Deposits

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable, wages payable, and compensated absences

Unearned revenue

Due from (to) State of Connecticut, net

Due from (to) affiliate, net
Deferred outflows (inflows)
Other liabilities

Federal refundable loans

Net pension and net other post-employment benefits liabilities
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

ACCOMPANYING SCHEDULE OF SIGNIFICANT NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

Proceeds from refunding bonds

Amortization of premiums, discounts, and net loss on debt refundings
Conference revenue retained by the American Athletic Conference
Acquisition of software licenses under long-term purchase contracts
Capital assets acquired through gifts

Unrealized loss on investment

Net loss on disposal of capital assets with an original cost of $40,241,
accumulated depreciation of $24,840, and cash proceeds of $13,056

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$ (595,576)

119,346
108
4,800
364
745

(3,233)
231
(4,794)
(5,375)
258
(1,695)
(49,947)
1,806
1,645
2,460
97,325
$ (431,532)

$ 72,813
16,460

5171

4,846

494
(108)

(2,345)
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity
The University of Connecticut, a comprehensive

institution for higher education governed by a 21-member
Board of Trustees, serves as the flagship for higher
education in the State of Connecticut (State). This
institution is composed of programs based in Storrs and at
the four regional campuses: Avery Point, Hartford,
Stamford, and Waterbury. It also includes the School of
Law, the School of Social Work, and the University of
Connecticut Health Center (UConn Health). UConn
Health is a fiscally independent branch, defined in State
statute as a healthcare institution, that oversees clinical
care, advanced biomedical research, and academic
education in medicine. Separate for purposes of audit and
financial reporting, UConn Health has its own Board of
Directors to whom the Board of Trustees has delegated
authority and by State statute is a separate entity for
purposes of budgeting, maintaining operating funds, and
receiving appropriations from the State. The transactions
and balances of UConn Health are not included within this
comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended
June 30, 2019, and the University of Connecticut
(University) is herein defined as all programs except for
UConn Health.

In accordance with standards issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the financial
reporting entity consists of the primary government,
organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and other organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be
misleading. Legally separate and tax exempt entities shall
be presented as component units of the reporting entity if
they meet all of the following criteria: the economic
resources of the organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the reporting unit; the
reporting unit is entitled to access all or a majority of the
economic resources received or held by the organization;
and the economic resources received or held by the
organization are significant to the reporting unit.

The financial operations of the University along with
those of UConn Health are reported in the State’s
comprehensive annual report using the fund structure
prescribed by GASB. The State includes the transactions
and balances of the University within an enterprise fund
under the major business-type activities of the
government-wide financial statements, and has noted that
State colleges and universities do not possess corporate

powers that would distinguish them as being legally
separate.

The University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc.
(Foundation) is a related, but independent, corporate
entity that supports the mission of the University and is
also included in the State’s annual report. The Foundation
raises funds to promote, encourage, and assist education
and research at both the University and UConn Health.
Although the Foundation materially supports the mission
of both the University and UConn Health, displaying the
Foundation’s financial statements as a component unit of
either entity individually would distort its actual
contribution or economic benefit to that entity. Therefore,
the Foundation is not included as a component unit in the
accompanying financial statements, but is included as a
component unit of the State.

Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as prescribed by
GASB. The University is considered a special-purpose
government engaged in business-type activities, defined
by GASB as those activities that are financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or
services.

The University’s financial statements include a Statement
of Net Position; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position; and a Statement of Cash Flows.
These financial statements have been prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned, expenses are recognized when incurred, and all
significant  intra-agency transactions have been
eliminated.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Effective for the University’s fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, GASB issued the following statements that were
adopted for this financial report:

" GASB Statement No. 83 (GASB 83), Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations, addresses accounting and
financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible
capital asset. ARO recognition occurs when a liability
is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The
measurement of an ARO is based on the best estimate
of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred.
A deferred outflow of resources associated with an
ARO is also recognized at the amount of the
corresponding liability upon initial measurement. As a
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result of adopting GASB 83, the University recorded a
long-term liability and a related deferred outflow for
an ARO in the accompanying financial statements as
of June 30, 2019. The cumulative effect of applying
this standard was not recorded as it was immaterial to
the financial statements. See Note 7 for additional
disclosures related to AROs.

" GASB Statement No. 88 (GASB 88), Certain
Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements, requires that
additional essential information related to debt,
including direct borrowings, direct placements, and
unused lines of credit, be disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. GASB 88 also clarifies which
liabilities should be included when disclosing
information related to debt. As a result of adopting
GASB 88, the University included long-term software
commitments in its debt-related disclosures (see Note
6). In conjunction with implementing this standard,
beginning balances related to long-term software
commitments under other long-term liabilities were
also reclassified to long-term debt and bonds payable
in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. See
also Note 18 regarding a prior period adjustment
related to long-term software commitments.

Other Accounting Changes
In recent years, the University executed several

memorandums of understanding (MOUs) with UConn
Health to combine various operating activities such as
public safety, branding, and other services in efforts to
achieve cost-savings and efficiencies. These agreements
require UConn Health to pay an agreed-upon amount to
the University to cover the increase in personnel costs and
other expenses incurred from managing these operations
on UConn Health’s behalf. In prior fiscal years, these
transactions were treated as reimbursements and were
recorded as reductions to expenses in the University’s
financial statements. Due to the significant increase of
UConn Health MOU activity during fiscal year 2019, the
University reassessed and changed its accounting method
to report the related UConn Health payments as operating
revenues under other sources in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the
year ended June 30, 2019. This change is expected to
further increase transparency and better reflect the
University’s operating activities. There was no cumulative
effect of applying this change and, therefore, no
adjustment to the beginning balance of net position as of
June 30, 2019, was required. Furthermore, this change had
no effect on the change in net position for the year ended
June 30, 2019. See Note 15 for additional disclosures.

Cash Equivalents
The University considers all highly liquid investments

with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. Funds invested in the State of Connecticut

Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) are also
considered cash equivalents, with the exception of those
classified as restricted balances included in deposits with
bond trustee.

Accounts and Student Loans Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of tuition, fees, auxiliary
enterprises service fees, and amounts due from state and
federal governments for grants and contracts. Student
loans receivable consists primarily of amounts due from
students under the Federal Perkins Loan Program, which
are subject to significant restrictions. The receivable for
student loans is classified as current and noncurrent based
on the amount estimated to be collected from students
within one year and beyond one year, respectively.
Accounts and student loans receivable are recorded net of
an estimated allowance for doubtful accounts.

Due From State and Due To State

Due from State includes an appropriation receivable from
the General Fund of the State (General Fund) for payroll,
as well as unspent State bond funds designated to the
University by the State Bond Commission for specific
capital projects.

The State administers employee benefit and retirement
plans and charges the University based on an annual fringe
benefit cost recovery rate that is applied to employee
salaries. The amount due to State consists of fringe
benefits accrued in relation to wages payable reported at
the fiscal year-end.

Due From Affiliate and Due To Affiliate

Due from affiliate includes amounts owed by UConn
Health resulting from various MOUs and other operating
activities (see Note 15). Due to affiliate includes the
unspent portion of general obligation bond proceeds
allocated to UConn Health for capital projects that are
administered by the University. The proceeds are reported
net of accruals for capital expenditures and retainage.

State Debt Service Commitment

The State has made a commitment to paying an annual
amount of debt service on securities issued as general
obligations of the University. As general obligation debt
and related interest are incurred, the commitment from the
State is recorded as revenue for principal and interest in
the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position. A corresponding receivable is
recorded in the accompanying Statement of Net Position
and is classified as current and noncurrent based on debt
service payments owed in one year and beyond one year,
respectively.

Deposits with Bond Trustee

Tax-exempt bond proceeds are deposited to various
accounts held by the Trustee Bank as required by certain
trust indentures. The funds are invested and disbursed as
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directed by the University. The University’s bond
proceeds investment policy is to balance an appropriate
risk-return level heavily weighted towards safety of
assets, as defined and permitted under the relative
indentures and the General Statutes of Connecticut (State
General Statutes).

The University has directed the Trustee Bank to invest
UCONN 2000 indenture related construction fund
proceeds in STIF. Similarly, the University has directed
the Trustee Bank to invest other related funds in dedicated
STIF accounts for debt service funds, capitalized interest,
and cost of issuance for the Special Obligation Student
Fee Revenue Bonds. Additionally, the University
transfers unrestricted funds periodically to a dedicated
STIF account in accordance with the Renewal and
Replacement Fund Requirement (see Note 2). The
Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement is defined
by the Special Obligation Indenture as an amount deemed
necessary to maintain assets financed with bond proceeds
in sound operating condition.

Investment earnings from UCONN 2000 General
Obligation Bond proceeds are retained by the State
Treasurer’s Office and do not flow to the University or to
the Trustee Bank. Investment earnings from Student Fee
Revenue Bonds are part of pledged revenues and are
directly retained by the Trustee Bank to pay debt service
on the bonds or for other indenture permitted purposes.
Earnings on the UCONN 2000 General Obligation Debt
Service Commitment Refunding Bonds and the Special
Obligation Student Fee Revenue Refunding Redemption
Fund escrows form part of the irrevocable escrows that are
used by the Trustee Bank to meet debt service payments
on defeased bonds until called.

Inventories

Inventories classified as available for resale are included
with prepaid expenses and other assets in the
accompanying Statement of Net Position and are valued
at cost as determined by the first-in, first-out method.
Maintenance and custodial supplies, repair parts, and
other general supplies used in daily operations are
expensed when purchased.

Investments

The University accounts for its investments at fair value,
categorized for disclosure purposes within the fair value
hierarchy established by GAAP. The hierarchy is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
investment. The three-level hierarchy of inputs is
summarized as follows:

" Level 1 —Quoted prices for identical investments in an
active market.

" Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable,
such as quoted prices for similar investments in active

markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
investments in markets that are not active; or inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable such as
interest rate and yield curves, volatilities, and credit
spreads, among others.

" Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable but supported
by the University’s or the Foundation’s own
assumptions, taking into  consideration the
assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the investment. These inputs are developed
based on the best information available under the
circumstances.

The net asset value (NAV), or its equivalent, is used to
determine the fair value of all investments that do not have
a readily determinable fair value. Since they are not
readily determinable, the fair values of these investments
may differ from the values that would have been used had
a ready market existed for these investments.

Changes in the unrealized gain or loss on the carrying
value of the University’s investments are recorded as
nonoperating revenues or expenses in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are reported at cost at the date of
acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at acquisition value. All
land is capitalized regardless of cost. Capital projects
greater than $100,000 that significantly increase the value
or useful life of an asset are capitalized. Routine repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to operating expenses
in the year incurred. Equipment with a value of $5,000 or
more and a useful life of more than one year is capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization expenses are recorded on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets:

Non-structural improvements 10 — 50 years
Buildings and building components 6 — 60 years
Intangible assets 3 —10 years
Library materials 15 years
Equipment 3 —30 years

Art and historical collections are recognized at their
acquisition values and are not depreciated. The Thomas J.
Dodd Research Center at the University maintains
historical collections of original source materials used for
research and serves as the University’s official archive.
New items are added to the collection if their acquisition
value can be substantiated by an external appraisal.

The University does not include interest in the cost of
constructed capital assets financed through general
obligation bonds. The repayment of interest on these
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bonds is funded by the State. Interest incurred during the
construction phase on projects financed through
University funded debt is capitalized, net of interest
earned on the invested proceeds of the borrowing.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue includes amounts received for services
to be rendered in a future accounting period. This amount
is composed primarily of student charges (tuition, fees,
room, and board) received in advance of the applicable
academic period and amounts received from sponsors
related to certain restricted research grants that will not be
included in revenue until the funds are expended. It also
includes advance ticket sales for sporting events and
commitments received in advance of the athletic season.

Compensated Absences

Employee vacation, holiday, compensatory, and sick
leave are accrued at year-end for financial statement
purposes. The liability is included as compensated
absences in the accompanying Statement of Net Position
and is classified as current and noncurrent based on the
amount estimated to be paid to eligible employees in one
year and beyond one year, respectively. The related
expense is included as an operating expense in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position.

Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities include (1) the long-term portion of
compensated absences, (2) principal payments due on
bonds (net of unamortized premiums and discounts), loans
and capital leases with a maturity of more than one year,
(3) net pension and net other post-employment benefits
(OPEB) liabilities, (4) the long-term portion of
governmental advances for revolving student loan
programs required to be returned to the federal
government upon cessation of the program, and (5) other
liabilities consisting of an ARO and the long-term portion
of the University’s bookstore service concession
arrangement liability.

Net Pension and Net OPEB Liabilities

For purposes of measuring net pension and net OPEB
liabilities, related deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources, and related expenses,
information about the fiduciary net position as well as
additions to and deductions from each plans’ fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by each plan. For this purpose, plan member
contributions are recognized in the period the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are
recognized in the period the contributions are
appropriated. Benefits and refunds to pension plan
members are both recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of each plan. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Changes in the net pension and net OPEB liabilities not
included in pension or OPEB expense, respectively, are
reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources. The University’s contributions to the
pension and OPEB plans made subsequent to the
measurement date of the net pension and net OPEB
liabilities are reported as deferred outflows.

A deferred outflow recorded upon the initial measurement
of an ARO is amortized over the useful life of the related
asset. The difference between the reacquisition price and
the net carrying amount of refunded bonds is classified as
an accumulated net gain or loss in deferred inflows or
deferred outflows of resources. Such amounts are
amortized as a component of interest expense on a
straight-line basis over the life of either the old debt or the
new debt, whichever is shorter. The difference between
assets and contractual liabilities recorded in connection
with a service concession arrangement is also reported as
a deferred inflow of resources to be amortized as revenue
over the contract term.

Net Position

GASB requires that resources be classified for accounting
and reporting purposes into the following categories of net
position:

= Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced
by outstanding principal balances of bonds (net of
State debt service commitment) and notes that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets or related debt are also
included in this component.

" Restricted nonexpendable: Endowment and similar
type assets for which donors or outside sources have
stipulated as a condition of the gift instrument that the
principal is to be maintained inviolate and in
perpetuity. These assets are invested for the purpose of
producing present and future income, which may be
expended or reinvested in principal.

" Restricted expendable: Assets reduced by liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources related to those
assets that are expendable but where the University is
legally or contractually obligated to spend the
resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by
external third parties.

= Unrestricted: The net amount of assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. These

33



University of Connecticut

June 30, 2019

assets are not subject to externally imposed
stipulations, but they may be subject to internal
designations. For example, amounts classified as
unrestricted may be assigned to specific purposes by
action of management or the Board of Trustees, or may
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with
outside parties. In general, all unrestricted amounts in
net position are assigned to support academic and
research programs, capital projects, retirement of
indebtedness, and auxiliary enterprise activities.

The University’s policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is
incurred is based on a variety of factors. These factors
include consideration of prior or future revenue sources,
the type of expense incurred, the University’s budgetary
policies surrounding the various revenue sources, and
whether the expense is a recurring cost.

In order to ensure observance of limitations and
restrictions placed on the use of the resources available to
the University, the accounts of the University are
maintained internally following the principles of fund
accounting. This is the procedure by which resources for
various purposes are classified for accounting and
reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with
specified activities or objectives.

Revenues and Expenses

The University has classified its revenues and expenses as
either operating or nonoperating according to the
following criteria:

" Operating revenues and expenses: Operating
revenues consist of tuition and fees, grants and
contracts, sales and services of educational activities,
auxiliary enterprises revenue, and other sources of
revenue that generally have the characteristics of
exchange transactions. GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions, requires recipients of government-

mandated and voluntary nonexchange transactions to
recognize revenue when all applicable eligibility
requirements are met for these transactions. Restricted
grant revenue that does not meet the nonexchange
transaction definition is also recognized to the extent
expended or, in the case of fixed price contracts, when
the contract terms are met or completed. Operating
expenses include all expense transactions incurred
other than those related to investing or financing,
irrespective as to whether the revenues associated with
those expenses are classified as operating or
nonoperating. These expenses are reported using
natural classification, comprehensive of expenses
incurred under both educational and general programs
and auxiliary enterprises. See also Note 17 for
operating expenses presented by functional
classification.

" Nonoperating revenues and expenses: All other
revenues and expenses of the University are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses including State
appropriation, State debt service commitment for
interest, federal and state financial aid, noncapital
gifts, and investment income. Interest expense and
disposal of property and equipment, net, are also
reported as nonoperating.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

GASB requires that revenues be reported net of
scholarship discounts and allowances, representing the
difference between the stated charge for goods and
services provided by the University and the amount that is
ultimately paid by students or on their behalf. Any aid
applied directly to student accounts in payment of tuition
and fees, housing charges, and dining services is reflected
as a scholarship allowance deducted from the University’s
operating revenues. Scholarships and fellowships expense
in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position includes financial aid
payments made directly to students.
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NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS

The University’s total cash and cash equivalents, deposits,
and investments included the following as of June 30,
2019 (amounts in thousands):

2019
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash maintained by State Treasurer $ 363,837
Invested in STIF 17,283
Other deposits 9,996
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 391,116
Deposits with Bond Trustee
Invested in STIF 277,109
Cash 22
Total Deposits with Bond Trustee 277,131
Investments
Foundation-managed endowments 15,005
POET Technologies, Inc. 459

UConn Innovations Fund, LLC 723

Total Investments 16,187
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Deposits, and Investments $ 684434

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Collateralized deposits are protected by State General

Statute. This statute requires that any bank holding public
deposits must at all times maintain, segregated from its
other assets, eligible collateral in an amount equal to at
least a certain percentage of its public deposits. The
applicable percentage is determined mainly by the bank’s
financial condition, which is measured using ratios of
leverage, net worth, and risk-based capital. The collateral
is kept in the custody of the trust department of either the
pledging bank or another bank in the name of the pledging
bank. Portions of the bank balance of the State are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized. As a State agency, the University benefits
from this protection, though the extent to which the
deposits of an individual State agency such as the
University are protected cannot be readily determined.

The University's cash management investment policy
permits the University to invest in STIF, United States
Treasury bills, United States Treasury notes and bonds,
United States Government Agency obligations, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit (including EURO
Dollars), commercial paper, money market funds,
repurchase agreements, and savings accounts.

STIF is a money market investment pool in which the
State, municipal entities, and other political subdivisions
of the State are eligible to invest. The State Treasurer is
authorized to invest monies of STIF in United States
government and agency obligations, certificates of

deposit, commercial paper, corporate bonds, savings
accounts, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements,
asset-backed securities, and student loans. STIF had a
Standard and Poor’s rating of AAAm and a weighted
average maturity of 43 days as of June 30, 2019.

Deposits with Bond Trustee

Deposits of the University include UCONN 2000 bond
indenture related funds held by the Trustee Bank at the
direction of the University. As of June 30, 2019, deposits
with bond trustee included $277.1 million invested in
STIF. Of this amount, $10.2 million related to the
Renewal and Replacement Fund, an indenture defined
account funded with non-bond proceeds. The Trustee
Bank’s FDIC deposit insurance covers the University’s
deposits up to $250,000.

Foundation-Managed Endowments

The University designated the Foundation as the manager
of the University's endowment funds. The Foundation
makes spending allocation distributions to the University
for each participating endowment. The distribution is
spent by the University in accordance with the respective
purposes of the endowments, the policies and procedures
of the University and State General Statutes, and in
accordance with the Foundation’s endowment spending
policy described below.

The endowment spending policy adopted by the
Foundation's Board of Directors, in conjunction with a
strategic asset allocation policy for the long-term pooled
investment portfolio, is designed to provide reliable
growth in annual spending allocation levels and to
preserve or increase the real value of the endowment
principal over time. To meet these objectives, the
Foundation utilizes a total return investment approach,
with total return consisting of interest and dividends as
well as realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of
management fees.

The Foundation’s endowment spending allocation policy
adheres to the Connecticut Uniform Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). UPMIFA considers
prudence in maintaining an endowment fund in
perpetuity. Therefore, spending can occur from an
endowment fund whose fair value is below its historic
value as long as the governing body has determined that
its policies will continue the perpetual nature of the
endowment over time.

An advancement fee is assessed to fund expenses incurred
in meeting the Foundation’s fiduciary and fundraising
responsibilities to donors and the University. The
endowment spending allocation and advancement fee
taken together cannot exceed 6.75 percent or fall below 3
percent of the quarterly fair value of endowment funds.
Should this occur, the calculated amounts will be
decreased or increased, respectively, on a pro rata basis.
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Over the long term, the Foundation expects the current
spending allocation and advancement fee policies to allow
endowments to grow on average at least at the annualized
rate of inflation. This is consistent with the organization’s
objective of providing resources for the underlying
purposes of its endowment assets over the life of the
endowments, whether in perpetuity or for a specified term,
as well as to provide additional growth through new gifts
and investment return.

University endowment investments are managed by the
Foundation in a pooled portfolio that is actively managed
by professional investment managers as determined by the
Investment Committee of the Foundation’s Board of
Directors. The Foundation has established asset allocation
guidelines for the pooled investment portfolio, providing
that the maximum exposure with any one manager would
be 20 percent for actively managed liquid assets and 5
percent for illiquid assets. The Foundation’s Board of
Directors also established an asset allocation policy for the
long-term pooled investment portfolio. The Foundation
expects that portfolios will be invested in only the
strategies described in the following table, and not above
or below the individual strategy percentage and its total
percentage by objective, unless otherwise specified by its
Board of Directors.

Allocation Range as
Percentage of

Investment Objectives and Strategies Market Value
Growth

Public equity 10% — 60%

Private equity 5% —45%
Risk Minimizing

Global fixed income 5% —30%

Hedge funds — non-directional 0% —20%
Inflation Hedging

Real assets 0% — 10%

The endowments invested with the Foundation are subject
to risk due to the uncollateralized nature of most of its
investments. Certain investments of the Foundation
include external investment pools. The bond mutual funds
had effective durations of 0.44 years and a Standard and
Poor’s rating of BBB totaling $1.8 million and a rating of
AAA totaling $56,000. The University endowment’s
foreign publicly traded equities totaled $2.9 million as of
June 30, 2019. Private capital investments totaled
approximately $1.0 million as of June 30, 2019.

Other Investments

Certain investments are also held directly by the
University. As of June 30, 2019, the University held 1.5
million shares in POET Technologies, Inc. (POET) that
were received in previous years in connection with
technology licensing and royalty-related transactions. In
addition, the University held an ownership interest in
UConn Innovation Fund, LLC as of June 30, 2019 (see
Note 15).

The investment in POET is denominated in Canadian
dollars and therefore is subject to foreign currency risk.
Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments
denominated in foreign currencies may lose value due to
adverse fluctuation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative
to the foreign currencies.

Funds Held in Trust by Others

Certain other funds are held in trust for investment by
outside trustees. The University is designated as the
income beneficiary and the funds are not under the direct
control of the University. Accordingly, the assets of these
funds are not included in the accompanying financial
statements. The fair value of these funds was $15.9
million as of June 30, 2019. Investment income earned on
these assets is transferred to the University in accordance
with applicable trust agreements. Income received from
those sources for the year ended June 30, 2019, was
$602,000.

Fair Value Measurement

Certain investments managed by the Foundation are
measured at fair value pricing using NAV, or its
equivalent. NAVs provided by third-parties have been
utilized in determining fair value where there are
significant unobservable inputs related to Level 3 assets,
as all investments have been made through commingled
fund structures with no direct ownership. The
Foundation’s investment managers utilize outside pricing
services and administrators as well as their own internal
valuation models in determining and verifying fair values.

The Foundation performs ongoing due diligence with its
investment managers that includes evaluation of
managers’ operations and valuation procedures, site visits,
investor calls, and review of manager filings and audited
financial statements. The Investment Committee of the
Foundation’s Board of Directors monitors performance of
investment managers and meets formally with managers
on a periodic basis in addition to the ongoing due diligence
performed by the Foundation investment staff.
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The fair value amounts presented in the following table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the
investment balance presented in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2019 (amounts in thousands):

2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV Total

Foundation-Managed Investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 353 $ - $ - $ - $ 353

Fixed income securities

Corporate investment grade 1,837 - - - 1,837
Equity securities
Domestic 10,404 - - - 10,404
Foreign 11 - - - 11
Private capital
Buyout and venture capital - - - 379 379
Debt - - - 131 131
Royalties - - - 521 521
Long and short equities - - - 1 1
Private real estate - - - 24 24
Private natural resources - - - 419 419
Relative value - - - 925 925
Total Foundation-Managed Investments 12,605 - - 2,400 15,005

University-Held Investments

Equity securities — foreign 459 - - - 459
Other - - - 723 723
Total University-Held Investments 459 - - 723 1,182

Total Investments $ 13,064 $ - $ - $ 3,123 $ 16,187

The Foundation has agreements with external investment managers that include certain redemption terms and restrictions as
noted in the following table as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 (amounts in thousands):

2019
Unfunded Redemption Redemption

Investment Strategy Fair Value Commitments Remaining Life Terms Restrictions
Private capital partnerships including

venture, buyout, and debt in the

U.S. and international, and other $ 1,031 $ 78 Less than 1 to 8 years Not applicable Not redeemable
Private real estate partnerships in

commercial, residential, office, and

industrial properties 24 39 1 to 3 years Not applicable Not redeemable
Natural resource partnerships in

energy and timber 419 76 1 to 5 years Not applicable Not redeemable

Total $ 1474 $ 193
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NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS AND STUDENT LOANS
RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019, consisted of the
following (amounts in thousands):

2019
Grants and contracts $ 38,736
Student and general 32,187
Investment income 2,285
Allowance for doubtful accounts (7,639)
Total Accounts Receivable, Net $ 65,569

The University participated in the U.S. Department of
Education Federal Direct Lending Program during fiscal
year 2019 and distributed student loans through this

NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

program of $169.1 million. These distributions and related
funding are not reflected as expenses and revenues or as
cash disbursements and cash receipts in the accompanying
financial statements. The excess of direct loans distributed
over funding received from the U.S. Department of
Education as of June 30, 2019, was $349,000; this amount
was included as a receivable under grants and contracts.

The University reported student loans receivable of $8.8
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Student
loans receivable are substantially composed of amounts
owed from students under the U.S. Department of
Education Federal Perkins Loan Program and are reported
separately from accounts receivable in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position. The 2019 amount is reported
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.0 million
at June 30, 2019. See Note 7 for information regarding the
closeout of the Federal Perkins Loan Program.

The following table describes the changes in property and equipment for the year ended June 30, 2019 (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2019

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 20,678 $ - $ 568) $ - $ 20,110
Construction in progress 224,571 138,897 - (83,839) 279,629
Art and historical collections 56,011 424 (68) - 56,367

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 301,260 139,321 (636) (83,839) 356,106
Depreciable Capital Assets
Non-structural improvements 312,733 40,855 (1,409) 77,164 429,343
Buildings and improvements 2,576,316 34,549 (24,767) 6,675 2,592,773
Intangible assets 45,158 6,476 (641) - 50,993
Library materials 54,231 740 - - 54,971
Equipment 278,728 17,027 (12,787) - 282,968

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 3,267,166 99,647 (39,604) 83,839 3,411,048
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Non-structural improvements 159,579 10,178 (698) - 169,059
Buildings and improvements 1,054,046 83,979 (10,949) - 1,127,076
Intangible assets 24,880 5,114 (641) - 29,353
Library materials 47,577 1,536 - - 49,113
Equipment 183,028 18,539 (12,551) - 189,016

Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,469,110 119,346 (24,839) - 1,563,617
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 1,798,056 (19,699) (14,765) 83,839 1,847,431
Property and Equipment, Net $ 2,099,316 $ 119,622 $ (15.,401) $ - $ 2,203,537
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In October 2018, the University sold the West Hartford
campus property to a third-party buyer. As part of the
purchase and sale agreement, the University transferred
buildings and real property (land, improvements, and
easements) in exchange for $5.2 million. In addition, the
State and the University are released from any claims
relating to the physical or environmental conditions of the
property. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the University
recognized a loss on the sale of $1.7 million, which is
included in disposal of property and equipment, net, in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position.

In June 2019, the University sold the Nathan Hale Inn to
a third-party buyer. As part of the purchase and sale
agreement, the University transferred real property (hotel
building and improvements and land improvements) and
personal property in exchange for $8.3 million. As part of
a ground lease agreement, the University will lease the
land on which the hotel is situated to the buyer for $1 per
year for 98 years. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the
University recognized a gain on the sale of $250,000,
which is included in disposal of property and equipment,
net. Operating revenues and expenses reported from the
Nathan Hale Inn operations during fiscal year 2019, were
$1.9 million and $900,000, respectively. These amounts
were included under the corresponding operating
categories for auxiliary enterprises in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position.

The University capitalized $4.8 million of net interest cost
for the year ended June 30, 2019.
NOTE S. UNEARNED REVENUE

As of June 30, 2019, unearned revenue included the
following (amounts in thousands):

2019
Tuition, fees, and other student charges $ 20,970
Amounts received from grant sponsors 12,958
Athletic tickets, commitments, and other 4,784
Total Unearned Revenue $ 38,712

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT AND BONDS
PAYABLE

The UConn 2000 Infrastructure Improvement Program
(UCONN 2000) established by The University of
Connecticut 2000 Act (Act) is designed to modernize,
rehabilitate and expand the physical plant of the
University. The Act provides for a 32-year capital budget
program in three phases, estimated to cost $4,619.3
million. The Act was originally adopted in 1995 to

authorize and finance the UCONN 2000 Phase I Projects
and the UCONN 2000 Phase II Projects at University
campuses not including UConn Health. The Act was
amended in 2002 by the 21st Century UConn Act to add
the authorization and financing of UCONN 2000 Phase 111
Projects that included projects at UConn Health.

In 2010, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor
signed Public Act (PA) 10-104 that increased the cost of
certain UConn Health projects, authorized additional
projects for UConn Health, and extended UCONN 2000
for an additional two fiscal years to 2018. In 2011, the
General Assembly enacted and the Governor signed
PA 11-75 that increased the estimated cost of two UConn
Health projects. In 2013, the General Assembly enacted
and the Governor signed PA 13-233, Next Generation
Connecticut, that authorized additional projects, increased
the cost of certain projects, increased the authorized
funding amount for bonds secured by the State debt
service commitment, and extended UCONN 2000 for an
additional six fiscal years to 2024.

In 2017, the General Assembly enacted and the Governor
signed PA 17-2 that extended UCONN 2000 for an
additional three fiscal years to 2027, but did not increase
the total amount that may be authorized by the Board of
Trustees for the UCONN 2000 projects.

UCONN 2000 is to be funded in part by the issuance of
$4,282.9 million of general obligation bonds of the
University secured by the State debt service commitment.
The balance of the estimated cost of UCONN 2000
projects that is not to be financed by the University’s
bonds secured by the State debt service commitment may
be funded by the issuance of the University’s special
obligation bonds, other University debt obligations, State
general obligation bonds, from gifts, and other revenue or
borrowing resources of the University.

The University has also issued several series of general
obligation refunding bonds, providing debt service
savings for bonds refunded in advance of maturity.
Sufficient proceeds are deposited into irrevocable escrow
accounts held by the Trustee Bank to meet all obligations
on the refunded debt. These bonds are general obligations
of the University, for which its full faith and credit are
pledged, and are payable from all assured revenues. The
bonds are additionally secured by the pledge of and a lien
upon the State debt service commitment. The University,
consistent with the Act, is relying upon the receipt of the
annual amount of the pledged State debt service
commitment for the payment of the bonds and,
accordingly, is not planning to budget any revenues for the
payment of these bonds. Under the Master Indenture, the
University expects to issue additional bonds to finance
UCONN 2000 projects secured by the State debt service
commitment.
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In May 2019, the University issued general obligation
bonds at a face value of $239.5 million, comprising
$174.8 million of 2019 Series A bonds and $64.7 million
of 2019 Refunding Series A bonds. The total bonds were
issued at a premium of $34.9 million. Total net proceeds
realized from the 2019 Series A bonds were $200.0
million after the payment of issuance costs and
underwriter fees. Of this amount, $13.0 million was
allocated to finance projects at UConn Health.

Net proceeds realized from the 2019 Refunding Series A
bonds were used to refund $72.1 million of the previously
issued 2009 Series A General Obligation Bonds in
advance of maturity. This reduced the general obligation
debt service in future years by $9.6 million and resulted in
an economic gain (present value of the savings) of $7.9
million. The difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt totaled $3.1
million. This difference was reported within deferred
outflows of resources in the accompanying Statement of
Net Position and is amortized to interest expense through
fiscal year 2029 using the straight-line method.

As general obligation bonds are issued, nonoperating
revenue for State debt service commitment for principal is
recognized at face value less any refunded debt and
amounts set aside to finance UConn Health projects. For
the year ended June 30, 2019, total State debt service
commitment for principal recognized was $154.4 million.
The portion of proceeds allocated to UConn Health is
recorded as due to affiliate in the accompanying Statement
of Net Position. As of June 30, 2019, the unspent portion
of this balance was $6.9 million. In addition, nonoperating
revenue for State debt service commitment for interest on
general obligation bonds of $77.3 million was recognized
for the year ended June 30, 2019, of which approximately
$26.4 million was associated with UConn Health projects.
As of June 30, 2019, approximately $619.4 million of the
total general obligation bonds outstanding, net of
premiums and discounts, pertained to proceeds used to
finance UConn Health projects.

In addition to general obligation bonds, the University
may issue special obligation bonds, also called Student
Fee Revenue Bonds, which are backed by certain pledged
revenues of the University. There were no special
obligation bonds issued or refunded in fiscal year 2019.

Special obligation bonds are secured by certain pledged
revenues as defined in the indenture. In fiscal year 2019,
this consisted of gross and net revenue amounts of
approximately $100.4 million. Gross pledged revenues
include the Infrastructure Maintenance Fee, the General
University Fee, and other revenue. Other revenue consists
of the FIT (Facilities Investment Together) surcharge on
athletic ticket sales plus investment income on the bond
accounts held by the Trustee Bank. Net pledged revenues
include the residential life room fee, student apartment
rentals, Greek housing fee, board (dining) fee, and parking
and transportation fees, after providing for the cost of
maintaining, repairing, insuring, and operating the
facilities for which the fees are imposed and before
depreciation expense is deducted. In addition to securing
revenue bonds, the gross and net pledged revenues
available are pledged toward certain other debt. The
University has covenanted to collect, in each fiscal year,
fees representing pledged revenues so that the sum of
gross and net revenue amounts is no less than 1.25 times
the debt service requirements in each respective fiscal
year for its special obligation bonds.

The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on all
special obligation bonds as of June 30, 2019, was $383.7
million. The total amount of $7.5 million for the principal
and $6.9 million for the interest was paid on this debt from
pledged revenues in fiscal year 2019.

Unamortized premiums and discounts are recorded as
additions or reductions to the face value of bonds payable.
These amounts are amortized using the straight-line basis
over the life of the bonds, reducing interest expense for
premiums and increasing it for discounts.

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows (amounts in thousands):

(Restated)

Balance Balance Current

July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 Portion
General obligation bonds $ 1,661,785 $ 239,465 $ (201,070) $ 1,700,180 $ 131,275
Revenue bonds 240,980 - (7,535) 233,445 10,045
Installment loans 62 - (37 25 25

Obligations under capital leases

Cogeneration Facility 38,195 - (4,729) 33,466 4,834
Stamford residential facility 46,004 - (955) 45,049 932
Long-term software commitments 4,330 4,846 (2,044) 7,132 1,735
Total Long-Term Debt 1,991,356 244,311 (216,370) 2,019,297 148,846
Premiums and discounts 229,155 34,853 (19,931) 244,077 18,473
Total Long-Term Debt, Net $ 2,220,511 $ 279.164 § (236,301) $ 2,263,374 $ 167,319
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Long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2019, consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Maturity
Dates
Original Through Interest 2019
Type of Debt and Issue Date Amount Fiscal Year Rate* Balance
Bonds
GO 2010 Series A $ 97,115 2030 3.0-5.0% $ 53,400
GO 2010 Refunding Series A 36,095 2021 2.25-5.0% 6,095
GO 2011 Series A 179,730 2031 3.515-5.0% 107,820
GO 2011 Refunding Series A 31,905 2023 2.0-5.0% 14,520
GO 2013 Series A 172,660 2034 2.0-5.0% 129,490
GO 2013 Refunding Series A 51,250 2024 2.0-5.0% 34,295
GO 2014 Series A 109,050 2034 2.0-5.0% 81,780
GO 2014 Refunding Series A 92,940 2025 2.0-5.0% 9,675
GO 2015 Series A 220,165 2035 1.0-5.0% 176,135
GO 2015 Refunding Series A 34,625 2026 4.0-5.0% 24,135
GO 2016 Series A 261,510 2036 3.0-5.0% 222,275
GO 2016 Refunding Series A 80,425 2027 4.0-5.0% 31,855
GO 2017 Series A 311,200 2037 2.5-5.0% 280,080
GO 2017 Refunding Series A 33,950 2022 2.5-5.0% 26,885
GO 2018 Series A 276,075 2038 3.0-5.0% 262,275
GO 2019 Series A 174,785 2038 3.0-5.0% 174,785
GO 2019 Refunding Series A 64,680 2028 5.0% 64,680
Total General Obligation Bonds 2,228,160 1,700,180
Rev 2010 Refunding Series A 47,545 2028 3.0-5.0% 21,310
Rev 2012 Refunding Series A 87,980 2030 1.5-5.0% 71,135
Rev 2018 Series A 141,725 2047 3.0-5.25% 141,000
Total Revenue Bonds 277,250 233,445
Total Bonds 2,505,410 1,933,625
Loans and Other Debt
Installment loans 246 various 1.31-1.40% 25
Obligations under capital leases
Cogeneration Facility 81,900 2026 2.22% 33,466
Stamford residential facility 47,000 2042 2.62% 45,049
Long-term software commitments 9,997 various 4.94% 7,132
Total Loans and Other Debt 139,143 85,672
Total Bonds, Loans, and
Other Debt "$2,644,553 " 2,019,297
Add: premiums and discounts 244,077
Total Bonds, Loans, and Installment Purchases, Net 2,263,374
Less: current portion, net 167,319
Total Noncurrent Portion, Net $2,096,055

*For bonds, the weighted average coupon rates are averaged by year of redemption.
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Other debt obligations of the University include long-term
software commitments and obligations under capital
leases. Long-term software commitments represent the
University’s obligations to make payments to various
vendors in accordance with contract terms in exchange for
the right to use certain software applications. In fiscal year
2019, the University incurred new commitments totaling
$4.8 million.

Obligations under capital leases include a long-term
UCONN 2000 Governmental Lease Purchase Agreement
to finance the UCONN 2000 Cogeneration Facility (see
Note 8). In addition, in August 2017, the University
entered into an agreement to sublease a residential facility
for student housing at the Stamford campus (see Note 8).

Long-term debt, including general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and other obligations, is scheduled to mature in the
following fiscal years as of June 30 (amounts in thousands):

Long-Term Debt Other Than General
General Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds Total Obligations
Year(s) Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 131,275 § 80,792 $ 212,067 [$ 17,571 $ 132249 § 30,820 | $ 148,846 $ 94,041 $ 242,887
2021 126,220 74,869 201,089 17,928 12,675 30,603 144,148 87,544 231,692
2022 120,970 68,880 189,850 17,874 11,981 29,855 138,844 80,861 219,705
2023 117,155 63,040 180,195 17,685 11,302 28,987 134,840 74,342 209,182
2024 112,765 57,313 170,078 17,956 10,583 28,539 130,721 67,896 198,617
2025-2029 504,920 207,440 712,360 77,054 42,374 119,428 581,974 249,814 831,788
2030-2034 404,155 94,244 498,399 39,440 29,000 68,440 443,595 123,244 566,839
2035-2039 182,720 17,372 200,092 38,509 21,880 60,389 221,229 39,252 260,481
2040-2044 - - - 42,100 13,320 55,420 42,100 13,320 55,420
2045-2049 - - - 33,000 3,579 36,579 33,000 3,579 36,579
Total $ 1,700,180 $ 663,950 § 2,364,130 | § 319,117 $ 169,943 $ 489,060 |$ 2,019,297 $§ 833,893 § 2,853,190

NOTE 7. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity other than debt and bonds payable for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows (amounts in

thousands):
(Restated)
Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019 Portion
Compensated absences $ 31,919 $ 3,031 $ (3,651) $ 31,299 § 18,284
Federal refundable loans 11,835 107 (22) 11,920 4,166
Net pension liabilities 1,012,709 163,494 (75,925) 1,100,278 -
Net OPEB liability 1,283,941 114,096 (104,341) 1,293,696 -
Other liabilities
Service concession arrangement 5,426 - (784) 4,642 751
Asset retirement obligation - 144 - 144 -
Total Other Long-Term Liabilities _$ 2,345,830  § 280,872 $ (184,723) $ 2441979 § 23,201

Beginning balances as of July 1, 2018, shown in the table
above, were restated due to prior period adjustments
related to compensated absences and long-term software
commitments (see Note 18).

The federal refundable loans include the federal liability
for the Federal Perkins Loan Program that expired
September 30, 2017. No new disbursements were
permitted under the program after June 30, 2018. As part
of the closeout of the Federal Perkins Loan Program, the

University opted to continue to service outstanding loans,
assign defaulted loans, and return the federal portion of
the program’s total cash on hand as required by the U.S.
Department of Education.

An asset retirement obligation (ARO) in the amount of
$144,000 was recorded in other long-term liabilities
relating to the University’s 90-day storage facility for
hazardous waste. The closure of these facilities is subject
to State regulations as defined by the Connecticut
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Department of Energy and Environmental Protection. In
fiscal year 2015, the University paid $144,000 to close its
former 90-day storage facility. The University considers
this a reasonable estimate to close the new facility, which
has a 40-year useful life beginning January 1, 2017.

The University has an ARO relating to the closure of its
Wastewater Treatment Facility that is not yet recognized
because it is not reasonably estimable.

NOTE 8. LEASES

Capital Leases
In December 2003, the University entered into a 20-year

lease purchase agreement for a project to provide on-site
generation of electricity, steam, and chilled water for
heating and cooling at the University’s Storrs campus. The
project initially assumed a total cost of $75.0 million and
included construction of a building and the engineering,
design, and installation of certain equipment to establish
the Cogeneration Facility. The lease was amended in
August 2005 as a result of an increase in the total
anticipated cost to $81.9 million. After another
amendment, the remaining monthly payments decreased
from $517,000 to $482,000 beginning August 2013 and
the original lease term did not change. In November 2016,
the lease was amended again to reflect a new nominal rate,
decreasing monthly payments to $462,000 beginning
January 2017. Amounts advanced by the lessor include
capitalized interest during construction and are reflected
as long-term debt in the accompanying Statement of Net
Position. At the completion of the lease term, the
University has an option to purchase the project assets for
$1. The historical cost and accumulated depreciation of
the Cogeneration Facility were $82.6 million and $46.6
million, respectively, as of June 30, 2019.

On August 1, 2017, the University entered into a 25-year
master sublease agreement for 116 apartment units at 900
Washington Boulevard in Stamford. The apartments serve
as the University’s residential facility for the Stamford
campus. The University will have options to purchase the
property on each tenth anniversary of the term, and a right
of first refusal if the lessor receives a bona-fide offer to
buy the property. Lease payments for the first year of the
master sublease total $2.7 million, and increase by 1.9%
annually. The historical cost and accumulated
depreciation of the Stamford residential facility were
$47.1 million and $2.8 million, respectively, as of June 30,
2019.

Equipment financed by capital leases had a historical cost
and accumulated depreciation of $98,000 and $27,000,
respectively, as of June 30, 2019.

All assets subject to capital lease agreements are included
in property and equipment in the accompanying Statement

of Net Position, and depreciation on these assets is
included in depreciation and amortization expense in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position (see Note 4). Loans related to
these capital lease agreements are included in long-term
debt and bonds payable in the accompanying Statement of
Net Position (see Note 6).

Operating Leases
The University has leases related to equipment and

building space that expire at various dates. Future
minimum rental payments at June 30, 2019, under non-
cancellable operating leases that exceeded $500,000 each
were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Payments
2020 $ 3,848
2021 3,891
2022 3,878
2023 3,368
2024 3,100
Thereafter 12,475
Total $ 30,560

Expenses related to operating lease commitments in
excess of $500,000 each were approximately $4.3 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 9. RETIREMENT PLANS

State Retirement Systems

The University sponsors two defined benefit plans
administered through the State: the State Employees’
Retirement System (SERS) and the Connecticut Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS). SERS and TRS do not issue
stand-alone financial reports but are reported as fiduciary
funds within the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR). Financial reports are available on the
website of the Office of the State Comptroller at
WWW.0Sc.ct.gov.

Effective July 1, 2017, the State legislature approved the
State Employees’ Bargaining Agent Coalition (SEBAC)
2017 agreement, which amended certain provisions under
collective bargaining agreements for existing SERS plans
by revising certain factors including employee
contribution rates, annual cost-of-living adjustments
(COLAs) for plan members retiring after July 1,2022, and
disability retirement requirements. In addition, the
agreement implemented the Tier IV Plan for the State’s
employees hired on or after the effective date.

Plan descriptions. SERS is a single-employer defined
benefit plan that covers substantially all of the State’s full-
time employees who are not eligible for another State
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sponsored retirement plan. SERS consists of Tier I, Tier
II, Tier IIA, Tier III, Tier IV, and the Hybrid Plan, which
are administered by the State Comptroller’s Retirement
Division under the direction of the State Employees’
Retirement Commission.

The percentage of the University’s eligible employees
participating in SERS was approximately 50 percent in
fiscal year 2018 and 62 percent in fiscal year 2019.
Individuals actively employed and participating in the
State Alternate Retirement Program (ARP) on September
22,2010, were eligible to participate in the SEBAC ARP
Grievance (SAG) Award. The SAG Award provided
participants in ARP a one-time irrevocable opportunity to
elect to transfer to SERS Tier II or Tier IIA (based on hire
date) or to remain an ARP member. Accordingly, 567
University employees transferred to SERS from ARP
during fiscal year 2019. The closing date for this one-time
election was December 14, 2018.

TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
plan covering any teacher, principal, superintendent, or
supervisor engaged in service of public schools in the
State. Employees previously qualified for TRS continue
coverage during employment with the University and do
not participate in any other offered retirement plans. TRS
is governed by Chapter 167a of the State General Statutes,
as amended through the current session of the State
legislature, and is administered by the Teachers’
Retirement Board.

Benefits provided. SERS provides retirement, disability,
and death benefits along with COLAs to plan members
and their beneficiaries. A brief summary of benefit terms
for each SERS plan is presented below.

Deferred Vesting - SERS

Tier I 10 years of service

Tier II and TIA Effective July 1, 1997, 5 years of
actual state service, 10 years of
vesting service, or age 70 with 5 years
of service

Tier Il and IV 10 years of benefit service

Generally, the monthly pension benefit is calculated in
accordance with a basic formula that takes into
consideration average salary, credited service, and age at
retirement. The details on plan benefits for the Tier IV
Plan, revised COLAs for plan members retiring on or after
July 1, 2022, and revised disability retirement
requirements are described in the SEBAC 2017
agreement. Further details on plan benefits, COLAs, and
other plan provisions are described in Sections 5-152 to 5-
192x of the State General Statutes.

TRS also provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits along with annual COLAs to plan members and
their beneficiaries. Generally, monthly plan benefits are
based on a formula in combination with the member’s age,
service, and the average of the highest 3 years of paid
salaries. Members are 100 percent vested after 10 or more
years of credited service. Further information on TRS plan
benefits, COLAs, and other plan provisions are described
in Sections 10-183b to 10-183ss of the State General
Statutes.

Contributions. SERS contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by the State legislature
subject to the contractual rights established by collective
bargaining. The State is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. Employee contribution rates
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 were:

Tier I Hazardous — 5.5 percent of earnings up to Social
Security Taxable Wage Base plus 6.5 percent of
earnings above that level

Tier I Plan B — 3.5 percent of earnings up to Social
Security Taxable Base plus 6.5 percent of earnings
above that level

Tier I Plan C — 6.5 percent of earnings

Tier II Hazardous — 5.5 percent of earnings

Tier II (all others) — none

Tier IIA and III Hazardous — 6.5 percent of earnings
Tier ITA and III (all others) — 3.5 percent of earnings
Tier IV Hazardous — 8 percent of earnings

Tier IV (all others) — 5 percent of earnings

Contributions may vary for anyone electing to maintain
retirement eligibility.

In accordance with the SEBAC 2017 agreement, an
increase to all non-Tier IV members contribution rates of
1.5 percent of earnings became effective July 1,2017, and
an additional 0.5 percent of earnings was effective July 1,
2019. In years where asset losses require further increases
in contributions, Tier IV employees’ contributions may
increase by half the necessary increase in rates (up to 2
percent). Finally, all Tier IV employees must contribute 1
percent to the defined contribution component of the
Hybrid Plan and may elect additional contributions of up
to 3 percent of salary. The State is required to contribute
at an actuarially determined rate to the defined benefit
component and 1 percent of eligible compensation to the
defined contribution component.

Individuals hired on or after July 1, 2011 and before July
1, 2017, who were otherwise eligible for the ARP, were
also eligible to become members of the Hybrid Plan. The
Hybrid Plan has defined benefits identical to Tiers II, ITA,
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and III, but requires employee contributions 3 percent
higher than the contribution required from the applicable
Tier 11, ITA, or III Plan.

TRS contribution requirements are also established and
may be amended by the State legislature. Plan members
are required to contribute 7 percent of their annual salary.
Employer contributions are funded by the State on behalf
of the participating municipal employers, which is
considered to be a special funding situation. However, this
special funding situation does not apply to the University,
an agency of the State, because there is not a separate non-
employer contributing entity.

The University contributes to both plans on behalf of its
employees by applying fringe benefit rates assessed by the
State to eligible salaries and wages in each participant
category. The rates of actual University contributions as a
percentage of covered payroll during fiscal year 2019
were 41.4 percent and 39.4 percent for SERS and TRS,
respectively. These amounts are expected to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year and
any unfunded accrued liability. The University’s
contributions for fiscal year 2019 were $94.4 million and
$452,000 for SERS and TRS, respectively.

Proportionate share of collective net pension liability
(NPL) and collective pension expense. The total pension
liability (TPL) used to calculate the collective NPL was
determined based on the annual actuarial funding
valuation report as of June 30, 2018. The University’s
proportion of the collective NPL was based on the
University’s share of contributions relative to total
contributions made to the respective pension plans. Based
on this calculation, the University’s proportion was 5.05
percent and 0.04 percent for SERS and TRS, respectively,
at the measurement date of June 30, 2018. SERS increased
0.27 of a percentage point from its proportion measured
as of June 30, 2017, and TRS increased by 0.01 of a
percentage point from the same measurement date.

The University’s proportionate share of the collective
NPL at June 30, 2019, and related pension expense for
fiscal year 2019 consisted of the following (amounts in
thousands):

SERS TRS Total

Proportionate share of
collective NPL $1,095,530 $ 4,748 $1,100,278
Proportionate share of
collective pension
expense $ 172346 $ 357 $ 172,703

Due to the SAG Award transfers in fiscal year 2019, the
University’s proportionate share of the SERS collective
NPL and pension expense is expected to increase
significantly for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

However, the extent of this change cannot be estimated at
the date of this report.

Actuarial assumptions. The TPL was determined based on
the actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011
— June 30, 2015 for SERS and for the period July 1, 2010
— June 30, 2015 for TRS, using the following key actuarial
assumptions:

SERS TRS
Inflation 2.50% 2.75%
Salary increases, including 3.50% — 3.25% —
inflation 19.50% 6.50%
Investment rate of return, net
of pension plan investment
expense, including inflation 6.90% 8.00%

For SERS, the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Table
projected to 2020 by scale BB at 100 percent for males
and 95 percent for females is used for the period after
service retirement and for dependent beneficiaries. The
RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table at 65 percent
for males and 85 percent for females is used for the period
after disability.

TRS mortality rates were based on the RPH-2014 White
Collar Table with employee and annuitant rates blended
from ages 50 to 80, projected to the year 2020 using the
BB improvement scale, and further adjusted to grade in
increases (5 percent for females and 8 percent for males)
to rates over age 80 for the period after service retirement
and for dependent beneficiaries as well as for active
members. The RPH-2014 Disabled Mortality Table
projected to 2017 with Scale BB is used for the period
after disability retirement.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation.
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of the June 30,
2018 measurement date are summarized in the following table for each plan:

SERS TRS
Long-Term Long-Term

Target Expected Real Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return
Large cap U.S. equities 21.0% 5.8% 21.0% 5.8%
Developed non-U.S. equities 18.0% 6.6% 18.0% 6.6%
Emerging markets (non-U.S.) 9.0% 8.3% 9.0% 8.3%
Real estate 7.0% 5.1% 7.0% 5.1%
Private equity 11.0% 7.6% 11.0% 7.6%
Alternative investment 8.0% 4.1% 8.0% 4.1%
Fixed income (core) 8.0% 1.3% 7.0% 1.3%
High yield bonds 5.0% 3.9% 5.0% 3.9%
Emerging market bond 4.0% 3.7% 5.0% 3.7%
Inflation linked bonds 5.0% 1.0% 3.0% 1.0%
Cash 4.0% 0.4% 6.0% 0.4%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the TPL
was 6.9 percent and 8.0 percent for SERS and TRS,
respectively. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rates assumed that employee
contributions would be made at the current contribution
rates and that employer contributions would be made
according to actuarially determined amounts in future
years. Based on those assumptions, the SERS and TRS
pension plans’ fiduciary net position were projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
TPL.

Sensitivity analysis. The following table presents the
University’s proportionate share of the collective NPL
calculated using the discount rate of 6.9 percent and 8.0
percent for SERS and TRS, respectively. The table also

shows what the University’s proportionate share of the
collective NPL would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher than the current rate (amounts in
thousands).

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
SERS $1,307,306 $1,095,530 $ 918,826
TRS $ 6,001 $ 4,748 $ 3,689

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information
about the fiduciary net position of the SERS and TRS
pension plans are available in the State’s CAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
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Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2019, the University reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources (amounts in

thousands):

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes in assumptions

Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

University contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Difference between expected and actual experience
Total Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments

Difference between expected and actual experience

Total Deferred Inflows

The $94.9 million in deferred outflows relating to
University contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
collective NPL in the reporting year ending June 30, 2020.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Fiscal Year SERS TRS Total

2020 $ 91,365 $ 1 $ 91,366
2021 68,074 (51) 68,023
2022 37,824 95) 37,729
2023 9,553 (33) 9,520
2024 8,050 (36) 8,014
Thereafter - (8) ®)
Total $ 214,866 $ (222) $ 214,644

At June 30, 2019, the University reported a payable of
$10.2 million within due to State in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position for the outstanding amount of
SERS and TRS pension contributions required for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Alternate Retirement Plan

The University also sponsors the State Alternate
Retirement Plan (ARP), a defined contribution plan
administered through a third-party administrator,
Prudential Financial, Inc. The Connecticut State

SERS TRS Total
$119,371 446  $119,817
73,989 11 74,000

- 88 88
94,410 452 94,862
38,668 - 38,668
$326,438 997  $327,435
$ 13,726 571 § 14,297
3,435 - 3,435

- 197 197

$ 17,161 $ 768 § 17,929

Employees Retirement Commission has the authority to
supervise and control the operation of the plan including
the authority to make and amend rules and regulations
relating to the administration of the plan.

All unclassified employees not already in a pension plan
of a constituent unit of the State system of higher
education or the central office staff of the Department of
Higher Education are eligible to participate in ARP.

ARP contribution requirements are established and may
be amended by the State legislature subject to the
contractual rights established by collective bargaining.
The SEBAC 2017 agreement amended certain provisions
for ARP by revising employee and employer contribution
rates. In accordance with the SEBAC 2017 agreement,
employer contribution rates for participants hired prior to
July 1, 2017, will decrease by 1 percent to 7 percent over
a three-year period. Employer contribution rates
decreased by 0.75 of a percent effective July 1, 2017, with
a commensurate increase in employee contributions and
decreased by another 0.25 of a percent effective July 1,
2019, with a commensurate increase in employee
contributions. Except for participants who elected the one-
time option to remain at the previous employee
contribution rate of 5 percent, participants hired prior to
July 1, 2017, must contribute 5.75 percent of their eligible
compensation and their employer must contribute 7.25
percent of eligible compensation. Participants hired on or
after July 1, 2017, have the option to contribute 6.5
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percent or 5 percent of their eligible compensation and
their employer must contribute 6.5 percent of eligible
compensation. There is no minimum vesting period for
ARP. Other ARP provisions are described in Chapter 66
of the State General Statutes, State Employees Retirement
Act.

The University contributes to the plan on behalf of its
employees by applying fringe benefit rates assessed by the
State to eligible salaries and wages of each ARP
participant. The University’s ARP pension expense for
fiscal year 2019 was $16.9 million. At June 30, 2019, the
University reported a payable of $1.8 million within due
to State in the accompanying Statement of Net Position
for the outstanding amount of ARP contributions required
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Department of Dining Services

The University’s Department of Dining Services (DDS)
employs 481 full-time staff, of which 63 participate in
either SERS or ARP. The remaining 418 are eligible to
participate in two other defined contribution plans: the
University of Connecticut, Department of Dining Services
Money Purchase Pension Plan (MPPP) or the University
of Connecticut, Department of Dining Services 403(b)
Retirement Plan (403(b) Retirement Plan). Both plans are
administered through a third-party administrator, Pension
Consultants, Inc. The fiduciary of the plans has the
authority to supervise and control the operation of the
plans including the authority to make and amend rules and
regulations relating to the administration of the plans.

Under the provisions of MPPP, all employees of DDS
with at least 700 hours of service and 12 months of service
are eligible to participate. DDS is required to contribute 6
percent or 8 percent of covered compensation for eligible
employees, dependent upon hire date, and its employees
do not make any contributions to MPPP. Employees are
vested after three years of credited service. Any amounts
forfeited are used to reduce DDS’s contribution. Upon
separation of service in accordance with plan provisions,
a participant or designated beneficiary can withdraw a
lump sum payment or receive annuity payments. Other
plan provisions can be found in the MPPP document.

Under the provisions of the 403(b) Retirement Plan, all
employees who perform services for DDS as common law
employees are eligible to participate. For any participant
employed on September 1, 1994, or terminated and
rehired prior to September 1, 1995, and who has at least
700 hours of service, DDS is required to match 50 percent
of the first 4 percent of the employee’s contributions.
Participants hired after August 31, 1994, do not receive a
DDS match. Participant and State matches are both 100
percent vested. Upon separation of service in accordance
with plan provisions, a participant or designated
beneficiary can withdraw a lump sum payment or receive

annuity payments. Other plan provisions can be found in
the 403(b) Retirement Plan document.

For the fiscal year ended 2019, pension expense was
$773,000, net of forfeitures of $7,000, for MPPP, and
$15,000 for the 403(b) retirement plan. At June 30, 2019,
the University recorded payables for outstanding
contributions of $387,000 and $8,000, for MPPP and the
403(b) retirement, respectively, within other current
liabilities in the accompanying Statement of Net Position.

NOTE 10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS (OPEB)

The State provides OPEB benefits to University
employees through the State Employee OPEB Plan
(SEOPEBP). SEOPEBP does not issue stand-alone
financial reports but is reported as a fiduciary fund within
the State’s CAFR. Financial reports are available on the
website of the Office of the State Comptroller.

Plan description. SEOPEBP is a single-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan that covers employees of the State who
are receiving benefits from a qualifying State-sponsored
retirement system. This plan is administered by the State
Comptroller’s Healthcare Policy and Benefits Division
under the direction of the State Employees Retirement
Commission.

Benefits provided. SEOPEBP provides healthcare benefits
to eligible retirees and their spouses as well as life
insurance benefits to employees when they retire. The
State may pay up to 100 percent of the healthcare
insurance premium cost for eligible retirees. In addition,
the State pays 100 percent of the premium cost for a
portion of the employees’ life insurance continued after
retirement. The amount of life insurance continued at no
cost to the retiree is determined by a formula based on the
number of years of State service that the retiree had at the
time of retirement. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011
are vested for retiree health benefits upon completion of
10 years of actual state service. Employees hired on or
after July 1, 2011 are vested for retiree health benefits
upon completion of 15 years of actual state service. If
employees should resign from service prior to reaching
the age for early or normal retirement eligibility, the
employee would be able to receive the retiree health
benefits according to the Rule of 75 (age + service = 75).
Plan benefits, and other plan provisions are described in
sections 5-257 and 5-259 of the State General Statutes.
Further information regarding plan changes affecting
employees retiring on or after October 2, 2017, are
described in the SEBAC 2017 agreement.

Contributions. SEOPEBP is primarily funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis. The contribution requirements of the plan
members and the State are established and may be
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amended by the State legislature, or by agreement
between the State and employee unions, upon approval by
the State legislature. Current active employees contribute
a percentage of their salary into the Retiree Health Care
Trust Fund (RHCF) for pre-funding of OPEB benefits.
Employees hired prior to July 1, 2017, contribute 3
percent of their salary for a period of 10 years or until
retirement, whichever is sooner. In accordance with the
SEBAC 2017 agreement, employees hired on or after July
1, 2017, contribute 3 percent of their salary for 15 years.
Contributions are refundable to employees that leave State
employment prior to completing the required years of
service.

Similar to pension, the University contributes to
SEOPEBP on behalf of its employees by applying fringe
benefit rates assessed by the State to eligible salaries and
wages for participants in each retirement plan. This
amount is expected to finance retiree healthcare service
costs and fund the matching employer portion that is equal
to the amount contributed by employees to the RHCF each
year beginning on July 1, 2017. The University’s rate of
actual contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
was 15.3 percent and the total amount contributed to the
plan was $68.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019.

Proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability
(NOL) and collective OPEB expense. The total OPEB
liability (TOL) used to calculate the NOL was determined
based on an actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2017,
and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2018. Changes in assumptions that affected the
measurement of the TOL since the prior measurement
date of June 30, 2017, were due to an increase in the
discount rate.

At June 30, 2019, the University reported a liability of
$1,293.7 million for its proportionate share of the
collective NOL. The University’s proportion of the
collective NOL was based on the University’s share of
contributions relative to total contributions made to
SEOPEBP. Based on this calculation, the University’s
proportion was 7.49 percent, which was an increase of
0.10 of a percentage point from its proportion measured
as of June 30, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the University
recognized OPEB expense of $90.4 million. At June 30,
2019, the University reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources (amounts in thousands):

SEOPEBP
Deferred Outflows of Resources
University contributions subsequent to
the measurement date $ 68,115
Changes in proportion 14,306
Total Deferred Outflows $ 82421
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 68,403
Changes in proportion 6,183
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments 520
Total Deferred Inflows $ 75,106

The $68.1 million in deferred outflows for contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a
reduction of the collective NOL in the reporting year
ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in the University’s
OPEB expense as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year SEOPEBP
2020 $ (15,867)
2021 (15,867)
2022 (15,867)
2023 (10,354)
2024 (2,845)
Thereafter -
Total $ (60,800)

At June 30, 2019, the University reported a payable of
$8.4 million within due to State in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position for the outstanding amount of
SEOPEBP contributions required for the year ended June
30, 2019.
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Actuarial assumptions. The TOL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

SEOPEBP

Payroll growth rate
Salary increases
Discount rate

Healthcare cost trend rates
Medical’
Prescription drug'
Dental and Part B
Administrative expense

3.50%

3.25% —19.50%

3.95% as of June 30, 2018

6.50% graded to 4.50% over 4 years
8.00% graded to 4.50% over 7 years
4.50%

3.00%

IShort-term rates were altered to reflect changes from the SEBAC 2017 agreement.

Demographic assumptions used to determine TOL are the
same as those used in the most recent actuarial pension
valuations and experience studies included in Note 9
disclosures for defined benefit pension plans.

The same long-term expected rate of return of 6.9 percent
used in the SERS pension valuation was also used in the
SEOPEBP valuation. See Note 9, under SERS, for the
target allocation and projected arithmetic real return for
each major asset class used in the derivation of the long-
term expected investment rate of return.

Discount rate. The discount rate changed from 3.68
percent as of June 30, 2017, to 3.95 percent as of June 30,
2018. The projection of cash flows used in calculating the
discount rate included employer contributions actuarially
determined in accordance with GASB 75 and employee
contributions made in accordance with the current
SEBAC agreements. The discount rate used is a blend of
the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB trust assets
and the municipal bond rate. The municipal bond rate is a
yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rate of AA/Aa
or higher (3.87 percent as of June 30, 2018). The blending
is based on sufficiency of projected assets to make
projected benefits.

Sensitivity analysis. The following presents the
University’s proportionate share of the collective NOL
and what it would be using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than
the current rate (amounts in thousands):

Sensitivity of Discount Rate
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase

SEOPEBP $1,500,593 $1,293,696 $1,125,683

Also, shown is the University’s proportionate share of the
collective NOL and what it would be using healthcare cost

trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost
trend rates (amounts in thousands):

Sensitivity of Healthcare Cost Trends
1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase

SEOPEBP $1,101,930 $1,293,696 $1,536,693

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information
about SEOPEBP’s fiduciary net position is available in
the State’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 11. SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT

In June 2016, the University contracted with Barnes &
Noble Booksellers, Inc. (Barnes & Noble) to manage the
University’s bookstore facilities for the next 10 years. The
University recorded an execution payment for $1.5
million that is amortized over the 10-year period. In
March 2017, the contract was amended to include an
additional location at the new downtown Hartford
campus. The University is obligated to provide bookstore
facilities and utilities, including amounts related to the
leased locations in Storrs Center and Harford. Barnes &
Noble invested $4.0 million to improve and furnish the
bookstore facilities.

At June 30, 2019, the University reported bookstore
facilities as capital assets with a carrying amount of $7.7
million and a receivable of $1.0 million, representing June
2019 income. The University also reported a liability of
$4.6 million, representing the present value of the lease
obligations and utilities, and a deferred inflow of
resources of $6.0 million that will be amortized as revenue
over the contract term.
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NOTE 12. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
consisted of the following as of June 30, 2019 (amounts
in thousands):

2019
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accumulated loss on debt refundings, net $ 282
Amounts related to net pension liabilities 327,435
Amounts related to net OPEB liability 82,421

Amounts related to ARO 135
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $410,273

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Amounts related to service concession

arrangement $ 5998
Amounts related to net pension liabilities 17,929
Amounts related to net OPEB liability 75,106

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 99,033

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS

The University had outstanding commitments, in excess
of $500,000 each, of $181.2 million as of June 30, 2019.
This amount included $165.1 million related to capital
projects for the University and $5.5 million related to
UCONN 2000 capital projects that are administered by the
University for UConn Health. UCONN 2000 expenditures
made on behalf of UConn Health offset the due to affiliate
liability in the accompanying Statement of Net Position
(see Note 6). In addition to the amounts related to capital
outlay, approximately $10.6 million in outstanding
commitments related to operating expenses. A portion of
the total amount of outstanding commitments was also
included within accounts payable in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2019. See Note 8
for amounts related to operating leases.

NOTE 14. TUITION WAIVERS AND GRADUATE
ASSISTANTSHIPS

The University is required by law to waive tuition for
certain veterans and children of veterans, certain students
over the age of 62, graduate assistants, and certain other
students. The University is also required by collective
bargaining agreements to waive tuition for certain
employees and their dependents. The University has
included the portion of waived tuition related to
employees and their dependents as a fringe benefit cost
and the same amount as tuition revenue in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position. This increased tuition and fee
revenues and operating expenses by $5.3 million for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The total amount of
waivers not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements was $65.5 million in fiscal year 2019.
Approximately 87 percent of this amount was provided to
graduate assistants.

NOTE 15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties occur in the normal
course of the University’s operations. The following
related party transactions were deemed significant and
material in nature:

UConn Health

The University manages certain operating activities for
UConn Health in exchange for payment. This includes
operations related to public safety, branding, library
services, technology commercialization, and other
miscellaneous services. The terms of these arrangements
are set forth in formal MOUSs that are reviewed and agreed
upon by both parties on an annual basis. Payments from
UConn Health are recorded as operating revenues and the
expenses incurred for services provided are reported as
operating expenses in the accompanying Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the University recorded
$16.2 million in other sources of operating revenue related
to these MOUs. In fiscal year 2018, $12.4 million was
previously reported as a reduction to operating expenses
for the same agreements (see Note 1).

In addition to the MOU activity noted above, UConn
Health paid approximately $4.0 million to the University
in fiscal year 2019. These amounts consisted mainly of
grants and contracts, sales and services of educational
departments, other miscellaneous revenues, and expense
reimbursements.

The University is also responsible for the management of
UCONN 2000 bond funds for UConn Health’s
construction projects. The unspent portion of these funds
was recorded under due to affiliate in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position (see Note 6).

The Foundation

The Foundation is a tax-exempt organization supporting
the University and UConn Health (see Note 1). The
University entered into a written agreement with the
Foundation whereby the University agreed to provide
financial support to the Foundation through a guaranteed
contractual amount and the Foundation agreed to
reimburse the University for certain operating expenses
incurred on the Foundation’s behalf. The terms of the
agreement also stipulate that goals, objectives, and
financial arrangements are reviewed and agreed upon by
both parties on an annual basis.
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The following transactions occurred between the
University and the Foundation as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2019 (amounts in thousands):

2019

Total expenses incurred for guaranteed contractual

services provided by the Foundation $ 10,222
Reimbursements from the Foundation for operating

expenses $ 477
Accrued capital and noncapital gift and grant revenue

from the Foundation $ 26,942
Amount receivable from the Foundation*® $ 14,350

*Included in accounts receivable, net, in the accompanying Statement
of Net Position.

The Foundation also has the primary responsibility for
alumni engagement activities for the University. The
University has granted the Foundation rights to use the
Alumni Center building, which is owned by the
University, at an annual rental amount of $1.

In accordance with the terms of a ground lease between
the University and the Foundation, approximately 1.58
acres on which the Foundation building was constructed
is leased to the Foundation at an annual rental amount of
$1. The initial term of the ground lease is 99 years and the
Foundation has the right to extend the term of the ground
lease for another 99 years. The ground lease provides that,
at its expiration or earlier termination, the Foundation
shall surrender the premises and title to the building will
be transferred to the University.

The State

The University receives funding from the State for debt
service on capital projects via UCONN 2000 (see Note 6).
In addition, the State supports the University’s mission
through State appropriation and the provision of payments
for fringe benefits. State appropriation represents amounts
appropriated to the University from the General Fund.
Payments for fringe benefits are made by the State for
reimbursements related to salaries expensed from the
General Fund.

State appropriation and the provision of payments for
fringe benefits for the year ended June 30, 2019, consisted
of the following (amounts in thousands):

2019
General Fund appropriation
received from the State $ 192,469
Payments for fringe benefits
received from the State 167,583
Decrease of General Fund
payroll receivable (3,154)

Total Appropriation and Payments
for Fringe Benefits from the State $ 356,898

The State may also issue general obligation bonds to fund
capital projects at the University. Pursuant to various
public or special bond acts, the General Assembly
empowers the State Bond Commission to allocate and
approve the issuance of bonds for a variety of projects or
purposes. PA No. 11-57, as amended by PA 14-98,
authorized $169.5 million of State General Obligation
Bonds to create a technology park on the Storrs campus.
The State Bond Commission allocated the total $169.5
million to finance the initial design, development costs,
equipment purchases, and construction related to the
technology park. These bonds are an obligation of the
State and therefore are not recorded as a liability by the
University. The unspent portion related to these bonds was
$10.4 million as of June 30, 2019, and was included as
part of due from State in the accompanying Statement of
Net Position.

UConn Innovation Fund, LLC

On April 14, 2016, the University entered into an
agreement with Connecticut Innovations, Inc. and
Webster Bank, N.A. to create an investment fund for the
purpose of making investments in early stage technology
companies affiliated with the University. The original
agreement required each member to commit to contribute
$500,000 to the fund during the commitment period that
extended to April 2018. In fiscal year 2019, an amendment
to the agreement was executed requiring all parties to
contribute an additional $250,000. In fiscal year 2019, the
University paid $250,000 as part of the amended
agreement.

Mansfield Downtown Partnership, Inc.

The Mansfield Downtown Partnership, Inc. (MDP) is a
not-for-profit corporation that is exempt from taxation
under section 501(¢c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
is composed of the Town of Mansfield, the University,
and individual business members and residents. MDP is
responsible for organizing the enhancement and
revitalization of three of the Town of Mansfield’s
commercial areas: Downtown Storrs, King Hill Road, and
Four Corners. In accordance with its governing by-laws,
members are required to submit annual dues, as
determined by the Board of Directors, in lieu of financial
support. In fiscal year 2019, the University paid $132,000
in annual membership dues to MDP.

Fraunhofer Center

In September 2018, the University, Fraunhofer USA, and
the Connecticut Department of Economic and Community
Development (DECD) entered into two inter-related
agreements to support the re-launch of the Fraunhofer
Center for Energy Innovation (Center) located on the
University campus. The Center, which is legally part of
Fraunhofer USA, takes part in the development of
advanced technologies related to energy storage, fuel
cells, in-steam hydro, and power management and
distribution through contract research. Under the
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agreements, Fraunhofer USA has committed $903,000
and DECD has committed up to $1.2 million through May
31, 2020, and the University has committed to provide at
least $903,000 of in-kind contributions to the Center. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the University
recorded $350,000 of grant revenue received from DECD
and a corresponding expense of $350,000 for the
disbursement of the grant funds to Fraunhofer USA as the
grant subrecipient, per the agreement. In addition, the
University provided $489,000 of in-kind contributions to
the Center.

NOTE 16. CONTINGENCIES

The University is a party to various legal actions arising
in the ordinary course of its operations. Although it is not
feasible to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions,
it is the opinion of management that the resolution of the
majority of these matters will not have a material effect on
the University's financial statements. However, there are
a small number of outstanding matters of potential
individual significance. Any damages paid in connection

with those claims would largely be paid through the
State’s fleet insurance policy and/or the State’s General
Fund.

Hazardous environmental conditions in excess of the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency thresholds were
identified in certain properties abutting the former
Stamford parking garage. As of June 30, 2019, a liability
in the amount of $2.5 million was recorded under current
liabilities in the accompanying Statement of Net Position
for remediation efforts of 11 residential properties and
investigative procedures for an additional location. The
University does not expect the remediation costs for the
residential properties to exceed the recorded liability;
however, an estimate for the additional location is not yet
established.

The University also participates in federal, state and local
government programs that are subject to final audit by the
granting agencies. Management believes any adjustment
of costs resulting from such audits would not have a
material effect on the University’s financial statements.

NOTE 17. OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION

The table below details the University’s operating expenses by functional classification for the year ended June 30, 2019

(amounts in thousands):

Supplies and Depreciation Scholarships
Salaries Fringe Other and and
and Wages Benefits Expenses Utilities Amortization Fellowships Total

Instruction $ 246,543 $ 159,030 $ 33,057 $ - $ - $ 72 § 438,702
Research 48,362 19,109 29,206 - - 581 97,258
Public service 25,055 18,862 11,999 - - 165 56,081
Academic support 67,982 56,813 45,351 - - (96) 170,050
Student services 23,339 18,357 8,032 2 - - 49,730
Institutional support 33,993 31,510 24,583 - - - 90,086
Operations and

maintenance 31,881 53,287 50,524 15,897 - - 151,589
Depreciation

and amortization - - - 119,346 - 119,346
Scholarships and

fellowships 68 21 346 - - 10,544 10,979
Auxiliary enterprises 92,649 60,700 76,504 5,164 - 143 235,160
Total $ 569,872 $ 417,689 $§ 279,602 $ 21,063 § 119,346 $ 11,409 $ 1,418,981
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NOTE 18. ADJUSTMENTS TO NET POSITION

Beginning net position was restated for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, to reflect the following adjustments (amounts in

thousands):

Balance as of June 30, 2018 (As Reported) $

Compensated Absences Liability

Increase in beginning net position as of June 30, 2018

Decrease in fringe benefit expenses

Total Impact on the Change in Net Position

Long-term Software Commitments

Decrease in net investment in capital assets

Increase in unrestricted net position
Total Impact on the Change in Net Position -

Total Prior Period Adjustment

Net Position

80,228

8,426
2,764
11,190

(4,330)
4,330

11,190

Balance as of July 1, 2018 (As Restated) $

The compensated absences liability reported as of June 30,
2018, was overstated by $11.2 million. This amount
included fringe benefit costs for defined benefit plans that
were also included in net pension and net OPEB liabilities
upon implementation of GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The University implemented these standards in
fiscal years 2015 and 2018, respectively.

During fiscal year 2019, it was determined that long-term
software commitments were not reported within the
correct net position category as of June 30, 2018.
Corresponding increases and decreases were also
reflected in fiscal year 2019 beginning balances of long-
term debt and bonds payable and other long-term
liabilities, respectively. This reclassification had no
impact on the change in net position.

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 1, 2019, the University notified the American
Athletics Conference (AAC) that it had accepted an
invitation to become a member of the Big East Conference
(Big East) and will be exiting the AAC. The University
and the AAC have mutually agreed that the withdrawal
from the AAC will be effective June 30, 2020, and that the
University will pay a $17.0 million exit fee. The
University’s share of AAC revenues for fiscal years 2019
and 2020 will